
     
  
 
 

 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE CUDAHY CITY COUNCIL 

And JOINT MEETING Of The 
CITY OF CUDAHY AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE CUDAHY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
Monday, July 27, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Council / Agency Member Garcia 
Council / Agency Member Guerrero 
Council / Agency Member Sanchez 
Vice Mayor / Vice Chair Hernandez 
Mayor / Chair Markovich 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

4. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Presentation by the Young Senators from Senator Ricardo Lara’s Office 
B. Introduction of Ref Rodriguez, Newly Elected School Board Member, District 5 
C. Presentation of City’s Internal Controls by Finance Director, Steven Doberen 

 
 
 

“Members of the Public are Advised that all PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES and any OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES are to be turned off upon entering the City Council Chambers.” If you need to 
have a discussion with someone in the audience, kindly step out into the lobby. 
 
Written materials distributed to the City Council within 72 hours of the City Council meeting are available for 
public inspection immediately upon distribution in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall located at 5220 Santa Ana 
Street, Cudahy, CA 90201.    
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, you should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (323) 773-5143 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.  
 

CUDAHY CITY  
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

5240 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 

Phone: (323) 773-5143 
Fax: (323) 771-2072 

Cristian Markovich, Mayor 
Christian Hernandez, Vice Mayor   
Baru Sanchez, Council Member  
Jack Guerrero, Council Member 
Chris Garcia, Council Member  
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 1 of 380



5. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

(Mayor:  This is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council / Agency on matters 
relating only to items on the agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the form located at the 
Council Chambers entrance and submit it to the City Clerk.  Speakers that submitted comment cards 
within the first 20 minutes of the meeting will be permitted to speak. Pursuant to Government Code 
section 54954.3(b), time limits are placed on the public comment period.  The Mayor will announce 
when public comment cards may no longer be submitted to the City Clerk and no public comment 
cards will be accepted after the Mayor’s announcement.  Each person who submits a public 
comment card will be allowed to speak only once and will be limited to three (3) minutes.  When 
addressing the Council / Agency please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state your name 
and address.)   

 
6. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS / REQUESTS FOR AGENDA ITEMS 

 
(This is the time for the City Council / Agency to comment on any topics related to “City Business,” 
including announcements, reflections on city / regional events, response to public comments, 
suggested discussion topics for future council meetings, general concerns about particular city 
matters, questions to the staff, and directives to the staff (subject to approval / consent of the City 
Council majority members present, regarding staff directives).  Each Council / Agency Member will 
be allowed to speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
City Council Members shall not use this comment period for serial discussions or debate between 
members on City business matters not properly agendized.  The City Attorney shall be responsible 
for regulating this aspect of the proceeding.) 
 

7. CITY MANAGER REPORT (information only) 
 
8. WAIVER OF FULL READING OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

 
(Consideration to waive full text reading of all Resolutions and Ordinances by single motion made at 
the start of each meeting, subject to the ability of the City Council / Agency to read the full text of 
selected resolutions and ordinances when the item is addressed by subsequent motion.) (COUNCIL / 
AGENCY) 
 
Recommendation:   Approve the Waiver of Full Reading of Resolutions and Ordinances.  
 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
(Items under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There 
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council / Agency Member so requests, in which 
event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately.) 
(COUNCIL / AGENCY) 
 
A. Consideration to Approve Professional Service Agreement (PSA) with MIG to Prepare the 

Cudahy General Plan Update and Optional Development Code Update  Over Two Fiscal Years 
 

Presented by Acting Community Development Director 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 2 of 380



Recommendation:  (1) Approve a Professional Service Agreement (PSA) with MIG 
(Attachment A) to prepare the Cudahy General Plan Update and 
optional Development Code Update; and 

 
 (2) Authorize the City Manager to execute the multi-year PSA in an 

amount not to exceed $488,088 ($379,368 for the preparation of the 
Cudahy General Plan Update and $108,720 for the preparation of the 
optional Development Code Update).   

 
B. Consideration to Approve Resolution No. 15-38, a Resolution Establishing the Compensation of 

Elected Officials Within the City  
 
Presented by Acting Human Resources Specialist 
 
Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 15-38, a resolution establishing the 

compensation provisions for elected officials within the City. 
 

 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. Consideration to Adopt the Proposed Master Fee and Fine Schedule for Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 
and Adopt Ordinance No. 650, by First Reading Amending Cudahy Municipal Code 3.40.040 to 
3.40.060 
  
Presented by Finance Director 
 
Recommendation: (1)  Review the proposed Master Fee and Fine Schedule for Fiscal Year 

(FY) 2015-16 (Attachment A);  
 

(2)  Introduce Ordinance No. 650 by First Reading, amending Cudahy 
Municipal Code (CMC) Chapter 3.40.040 pertaining to schedule of fees 
and service charges relating to Leisure and Cultural Services (recreation 
services and programs), and 3.40.050 & 3.40.060 updating references to 
sections of the California Government Code; and 
 
(3) Provide any direction to staff regarding the proposed fees in 
preparation for the public hearing and a scheduled second reading. 

 
 

11. BUSINESS SESSION 
 
A. Consideration to Adopt Ordinance No. 648, by Second Reading Adding Cudahy Municipal Code 

(CMC) Chapter 20.110 Density Bonus  
 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director  
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 3 of 380



Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance No. 648, by second reading amending Cudahy 
Municipal Code Title 20 (Zoning), to add Chapter 20.110 Density Bonus.   

 
B. Consideration to Adopt Ordinance No. 651, by First Reading Repealing Chapter 2.54 of Title 2 of 

the Cudahy Municipal Code Concerning Campaign Ethics Regulations  
 
Presented by City Attorney 
 
Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance No. 651, by first reading repealing Chapter 2.54 of Title 

2 of the Cudahy Municipal Code (“CMC”) concerning campaign ethics 
regulations. 

  
C. Consideration to Adopt Ordinance No. 652, by First Reading Amending Title 3 (Revenue and 

Finance) of the Cudahy Municipal Code by the Addition of Chapter 3.44 (Economic 
Development) Regarding the Formation of the Economic Development Ordinance    
 
Presented by City Attorney 
 
Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance No. 652 by first reading amending Title 3 of the 

Revenue and Finance section of the Cudahy Municipal Code by adding 
Chapter 3.44 regarding the formation of the economic development 
ordinance. 

 
D. Statement Regarding the City’s Investigation of Two Ethics Complaints 

 
Presented by Mayor Markovich 
 
Recommendation: Receive and File.   

 
 
12. COUNCIL DISCUSSION  

 
 

13. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (Closed Session) 
 

(Each person will be allowed to speak only once on closed session items and will be limited to three 
(3) minutes.  When addressing the Council please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state 
your name and address.)   
 
 
 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
 

14. CLOSED SESSION  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 4 of 380



 
A. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6(a) – Conference with Labor 

Negotiator Regarding Represented Employees City’s Designated Representative(s) for 
Negotiations: Jose Pulido, City Manager, Rhonda Strout-Garcia, Human Resources Consultant, 
Oliver Yee, Special Counsel Employee Organization: Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees 
Association (CMEA)  

B. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (2) and 54956.9(e) (1) – Conference with Legal 
Counsel to Discuss Matter Involving Potential Litigation and/or Significant Exposure to 
Litigation – [Two (2) Matters] - This Matter will be heard jointly by the Cudahy City Council and 
the Cudahy City Council in its capacity as Successor Agency to the Cudahy Redevelopment 
Agency.  

C. Closed session pursuant to Government Code section 54957(b)(1) – Public Employee Performance 
Evaluation  

Employee Title: City Manager  

D. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 – Conference with Real Property 
Negotiator Location of Property: 4819 Patata, 8420 S. Atlantic Ave. (APN 622-034-014, 032, 040-
41), Cudahy, CA 90201 City’s Negotiator(s): City Manager Jose E. Pulido Party Negotiating With: 
Cudahy LF, LLC Under Discussion: Discussion of both price and terms of payment as related to 
purchase of subject property 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

 
 
15. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT  

 
 

16. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 

(Mayor:  This is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council / Agency on matters under 
the City Council’s jurisdiction.  Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the form located at the 
Council Chambers entrance and submit it to the City Clerk.  Speakers that submitted comment cards 
within the first 20 minutes of the meeting will be permitted to speak. Pursuant to Government Code 
section 54954.3(b), time limits are placed on the public comment period.  The Mayor will announce 
when public comment cards may no longer be submitted to the City Clerk and no public comment 
cards will be accepted after the Mayor’s announcement.  Each person who submits a public 
comment card will be allowed to speak only once and will be limited to three (3) minutes.  When 
addressing the Council / Agency please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state your name 
and address.)   
 

17. ADJOURNMENT  
 

Cudahy City Council / Agency will adjourn to a Regular and Joint Meeting as Successor Agency to 
the Cudahy Development Commission on Monday, August 10, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 5 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 6 of 380



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  July 27, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director  
         Didier Murillo, Planning Technician 

Subject: Consideration to Approve Professional Service Agreement (PSA) with MIG to 
Prepare the Cudahy General Plan Update and Optional Development Code 
Update Over Two Fiscal Years 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to: 
 
a) Approve a Professional Service Agreement (PSA) with MIG (Attachment A) to prepare the 

Cudahy General Plan Update and optional Development Code; and  
 

b) Authorize the City Manager to execute the multi-year PSA in an amount not to exceed 
$488,088 ($379,368 for the preparation of the Cudahy General Plan Update and $108,720 
for the preparation of the optional Development Code Update).   

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
1. On November 10, 1960, the City of Cudahy was incorporated as an official Los Angeles 

County municipality.   
 

2. On May 27, 1963, the City adopted the General Plan. 
 

3. On June 27, 1977, the City adopted various updates to the Housing Element and Land 
Use Elements.  

 
4. In 1975, the State of California mandated that every municipality in California prepare a 

         

Item Number 

9A 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 7 of 380



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
07/27/2015  Page 2 of 5 

    

General Plan.  

 

5. On May 26, 1992, the City completed and adopted a full comprehensive General Plan 

Update. 

 

6. On September 15, 2010, the City approved a General Plan update. However, the update 

consisted primarily of updating outdated information and minor modifications to the 

General Plan Land Use Map, and this update was not submitted to or certified by the 

State of California.  

 

7. On June 2013, the University of California, Berkeley’s Institute of Transportation Studies, 

completed a Cudahy Pedestrian Safety Assessment.  

 

8. On November 15, 2013, the City was awarded $619,800 from the Highway Safety 

Improvement Program (HSIP) Cycle-6; for the installation of pedestrian countdown signal 

heads, and protected left turn phasing at various locations long Atlantic Avenue. 

 

9. On January 7, 2014, the City adopted the General Plan Housing Element Update (covering 

the period of October 15, 2013 through October 15, 2021).  

 

10. On June 6, 2014, the City was awarded with a  $105,913 Sustainable Communities 

Planning Grant and Incentives (SCPGI) program to fund a team of researchers and 

planners, including a team from the University of California Los Angeles’ Lewis Center, 

who will recommend new regulatory structures for land use development in the City to 

be incorporated into the General Plan update. 

 

11. On September 27, 2014, the City was awarded with a $1.2 million Active Transportation 

Program Grant (ATP) Cycle-1; for Cudahy City-wide Safe Routes to School improvements 

(pedestrian crosswalks).  

 

12. On October 17, 2014, the City Council approved the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-2015 Budget 

which included a total of $150,000 to commence the General Plan Update.   

 

13. On January 20, 2015, the City Council adopted the development and implementation of 

the Cudahy City-Wide Safe Routes to School Plan and Program, as well as, the approved 

the associated environmental document in the form of a Negative Declaration.  

 

14. On March 20, 2015, the City released a Request for Proposals (RFP) (Attachment B) for 

the preparation of The Cudahy General Plan Update and an optional component for a 



Development Code Update.  
 

15. On April 24, 2015, the City received three proposals to prepare the Cudahy General Plan 
Update from:  
 

a. Freedman Tung + Sasaki for $804,527; 
b.  Kimley-Horn for $580,965; and  
c. MIG for $379,368.  

 
16. On May 8, 2015, the staff review committee (i.e., Acting Community Development 

Director, Michael Allen; Assistant City Engineer, Aaron Hernandez-Torres; and Planning 
Technician, Didier Murillo) completed the review of the three proposals. The review 
committee selected MIG to award the contract agreement.  

  
17.  On June 29, 2015, the City Council approved the Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-2016 City Budget 

which included a total of $400,000 to commence the General Plan Update.    
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
The Cudahy General Plan is the umbrella document that allows cities to plan for future 
development. The California State Supreme Court has referred to general plans as “the 
constitution for future development” of a community. The General Plan’s intent is to provide 
the City’s goals for development and the built environment, to establish land use ground 
rules, to provide the basis for development approvals, and to provide the public the 
opportunity to participate in the City’s planning process. Every City document regulating the 
built environment, including the zoning code, general plan elements, goals and policies, has to 
be consistent with the General Plan, as do all development decisions by the City.  Attachment 
D provides an overview of general plans in California.  
 
The City’s existing General Plan is severely outdated. As noted above, the City of Cudahy 
completed its last comprehensive update and received certification of its General Plan in 
1992. The currently envisioned General Plan update is looking to the future of Cudahy and 
will set the direction of the City for the next generation. Updating the General Plan at this 
time will enable the City to build upon the work currently being completed as part of the 
City’s recently adopted Housing Element Update and the Safe Routes to School Plan and 
Program. The General Plan update will provide an incredible opportunity to set the City on a 
path that will provide an improved quality of life and enhance Cudahy’s reputation as a great 
place to live and work.   

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 9 of 380



“Serving The People "Sirviendo A La Comunidad" 

Staff Report 
07/27/2015  Page 4 of 5 

    

 

The General Plan update represents a culmination of several recent City initiatives focused on 

changing the course for the future. In the past two years, Cudahy has been very successful in 

securing grants to fund long-range planning activities – and mobility planning in particular:  

 

1) A Highway Safety Improvement Program grant ($619,800); 

 

2) A Pedestrian Safety Assessment from the University of California, Berkeley’s 

Institute of Transportation Studies;  

 

3) A Caltrans Active Transportation Program grant ($1.2 million); and most significantly, 

 

4) A grant from the Sustainable Communities Planning Grant and Incentives (SCPGI) 

program ($105,913) to fund a team of researchers and planners, including a team 

from the University of California Los Angeles’ Lewis Center, who will create a new 

regulatory structure for land use development in the City.  

 

The three proposals received by the City in response to the RFP were evaluated on the 

following criteria specified in the RFP: 1) experience and performance, 2) ability to complete 

work in a timely manner and references, and 3) cost/value to City. 

 

After reviewing all proposals, the review committee recommended that the contract 

agreement be awarded to MIG because, in staff’s assessment, their proposal was most 

responsive to the City’s selection criteria as specified in the RFP.  

 

MIG has extensive experience in preparing General Plans for cities with similar issues to 

Cudahy. Their proposal demonstrated to the review committee that their approach is forward 

thinking and creative which was requested in the City’s RFP.  Their proposal is also the least 

costly and, in staff’s assessment, provides the greatest value to the City. 

 

 

CONCLUSION 

 

The City Council is requested to approve a Professional Service Agreement with MIG in an 

amount not to exceed $488,088 ($379,368 for the preparation of the Cudahy General Plan 

Update and $108,720 for the preparation of the optional Development Code Update). 

 

 

 



FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
On June 29, 2015, the City Council approved Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-2016 City Budget which 
provided a total of $400,000 to commence the General Plan Update. The General Plan Update 
will total $379,368. Staff intends to request $108,720 in FY 2016-2017 for the optional 
Development Code Update. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Professional Service Agreement with MIG  
B. Request For Proposals (RFP) for The Cudahy General Plan Update  
C. Scoring of Responsive Firms 
D. Overview of General Plans in California.   
E. MIG Proposal 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 11 of 380



 

 

2015 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 (Engagement: General Plan Update and Zoning Code Update) 
(Parties: MIG, Inc. and City of Cudahy) 

     

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into this 27th day of July 2015 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by and between the 
CITY OF CUDAHY, a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and MIG, Inc. (hereinafter, 
“CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and CONSULTANT may 
be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” 
may refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably. 

RECITALS 

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into with respect to the following 
facts: 

WHEREAS, CITY is a general law city, formed and existing pursuant to the 
provisions of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, CITY is authorized to enter into consultant agreements under the 
provisions of California Government Code section 53060; and 

WHEREAS, CITY is desirous of securing professional services for a an update to 
its General Plan and its Zoning Code; and  

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT possesses the specialized training, skill, expertise 
and experience required to perform the services contemplated under this Agreement; 
and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the various services and tasks set 
forth under this Agreement subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
conditions herein contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  

I. 
ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT 
agrees to perform the services and tasks set forth under that certain proposal of 
CONSULTANT dated as of April 24, 2015, which is attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A” (hereinafter referred to as the “Scope of Services”).  CONSULTANT further 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 12 of 380



agrees to furnish to CITY all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, 
services, tasks and incidental and customary work necessary to competently 
perform and timely complete the services and tasks set forth in the Scope of 
Services.  For the purposes of this Agreement the aforementioned services and 
tasks set forth in the Scope of Services shall hereinafter be referred to generally 
by the capitalized term “Work.”    

1.2 PROSECUTION OF WORK:  The Parties agrees as follows:   

A. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each and every provision 
contained herein.  The Work shall be commenced within three (3) 
calendar days of the Effective Date and shall be completed at the earliest 
feasible time practicable, but in no event by a date later than twenty-four 
(24) months from CITY’s issuance of a Notice to Proceed (hereinafter, the 
“Completion Date”). CITY, in its sole and reasonable discretion, may grant 
CONSULTANT additional time to complete the Work, provided (i) no grant 
of additional time shall exceed a period of thirty (30) calendar days from 
the original Completion Date; and (ii) CONSULTANT shall have provided 
CITY with a written request for additional time no less than thirty (30) 
calendar days prior to the original Completion Date, which notice shall 
specify the reason(s) why additional time is needed, how much additional 
time is needed and what measures CONSULTANT has taken to mitigate 
the need for additional time.   The granting of such additional time by the 
CITY shall in no way entitle CONSULTANT to compensation in excess of 
the Contract Price, defined below, in so far as the need of additional time 
is not reasonably attributable to CITY. 

B. Deliverables.  CONSULTANT shall timely furnish the “Deliverables” 
enumerated in pages D.5 through D.26 of the Scope of Work in 
accordance with the schedule attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”  CITY, in 
its sole and reasonable discretion, may grant CONSULTANT additional 
time to furnish the City with such deliverables.  The granting of such 
additional time by the CITY shall in no way entitle CONSULTANT to 
compensation in excess of the Contract Price, defined below, in so far as 
the need of additional time is not reasonably attributable to CITY. 

C. CONSULTANT shall perform the Work continuously and with due 
diligence so as to complete the Work by the Completion Date.  
CONSULTANT shall cooperate with CITY and in no manner interfere with 
the work of CITY, its employees or other consultants, contractors or 
agents; 

D. CONSULTANT shall not claim or be entitled to receive any compensation 
or damage because of the failure of CONSULTANT or its subcontractors 
or subconsultants, to have related services or tasks completed in a timely 
manner; 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 13 of 380



E. CONSULTANT shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order 
among CONSULTANT’s employees; and 

F. CONSULTANT, at its sole expense, shall pay all sales, consumer, use or 
other similar taxes required by law.  

1.3 EXTRA WORK; COMPENSATION FOR EXTRA WORK:   

A. At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may request that 
Consultant perform Extra Work.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the 
term “Extra Work” means any additional work, services or tasks not set 
forth in the Scope of Work but later determined by City to be necessary.  
Consultant shall not undertake nor shall Consultant be entitled to 
compensation for Extra Work without the prior written authorization of the 
City.  Extra Work does not include any labor, materials, tools, supplies, 
equipment, services, tasks or incidental and customary work undertaken 
to competently perform and timely complete the Work and related tasks 
set forth in the Scope of Work.    

B. Payments for any Extra Work shall be made to Consultant on a time-and-
materials basis using Consultant’s standard fee schedule.  Consultant 
shall be entitled to increase the fees in this fee schedule at such time as it 
increases its fees for its clients generally.  

1.4 COMPENSATION:  Consultant’s total compensation for performing the Work 
shall not exceed the aggregate sum of FOUR HUNDRED EIGHTY EIGHT 
THOUSAND EIGHTY EIGHT DOLLARDS ($488,088.00) (hereinafter, the 
“Contract Price”), which is comprised of the sums enumerated in Section “I” of 
the attached Scope of Services of THREE HUNDRED SEVENTY NINE 
THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED SIXTY-EIGHT DOLLARS ($379,368.00) for the 
General Plan update and ONE HUNDRED EIGHT THOUSAND SEVEN 
HUNDRED TWENTY DOLLARS ($108,720.00) for the Zoning Code update.  The 
Parties agree that the Contract Price includes compensation for all labor, 
materials, tools, supplies, equipment, business licenses and such other incidental 
and customary work necessary to competently perform and fully complete the 
Work as well as compensation for all specifically delineated expenses set forth in 
the Scope of Work.  All related costs, travel expenses and fees in the 
development of the Work shall be burdened by the Consultant and not be 
reimbursable to the City.  In no event shall the total compensation and costs 
payable to Consultant under this Agreement exceed the Contract Price unless 
the availability of funds for the added expenditure is first reviewed by the Finance 
Department of the City and unless such added expenditure is specifically 
approved in advance and in writing by the City. 

1.5 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION:  

A. Invoices: Following the conclusion of each calendar month, 
CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 14 of 380



services and tasks performed during the recently concluded calendar 
month, including services and tasks performed and the reimbursable out-
of-pocket expenses incurred.  If the amount of CONSULTANT’s monthly 
compensation is a function of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s 
personnel, the invoice shall indicate the number of hours worked in the 
recently concluded calendar month, the persons responsible for 
performing the Work, the rate of compensation at which such services and 
tasks were performed, the subtotal for each task and service performed 
and a grand total for all services performed.  

B. Payments and Holding of Retention: CITY shall only be obligated to 
pay amounts included on a monthly invoice in any month in which all of 
the Deliverables enumerated in Section 1.2(B) have been timely provided, 
for such month, by CONSULTANT to CITY, in accordance with the 
schedule set forth in Exhibit “B.”       

1.6 ACCOUNTING RECORDS:  CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and 
accurate records with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a 
period of three (3) years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  
CITY shall have the right to access and examine such records, without charge, 
during normal business hours.  CITY shall further have the right to audit such 
records, to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect all program data, 
documents, proceedings, and activities.  

1.7 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to 
perform the Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the 
undertaking contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior 
to completion of any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, 
CONSULTANT shall deliver to CITY immediately and without delay, all materials, 
records and other work product prepared or obtained by CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, CONSULTANT shall only be 
compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks and other work 
performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction for any 
damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of 
CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

II. 

PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates Jose E. Pulido, the 
City Manager and Michael Allen, the Acting Community Development Director 
(hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as its representatives for the 
performance of this Agreement.  The City Manager shall be the chief CITY 
Representative.  The CITY Representatives or their designee shall act on behalf 
of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not 
accept directions or orders from any person other than the CITY Representatives 
or their designee. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 15 of 380



2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE:  CONSULTANT hereby designates Laura 
R. Stetson to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative 
shall have full authority to represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for 
all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT Representative or her 
designee shall supervise and direct the performance of the Work, using his or her 
best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, 
techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all 
portions of the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the CONSULTANT 
Representative shall constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  
CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the 
Work and this Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY 
Representatives at all reasonable times. All work prepared by CONSULTANT 
shall be subject to inspection and approval by CITY Representatives or their 
designees. 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT 
represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the 
highest standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory 
to the CITY; 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
laws and regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of 
Government Code section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government 
Code section 81000 et seq.); 

D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be 
performed under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of 
performance;  

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, 
knowledge, training and experience to perform those services and tasks 
assigned to them by CONSULTANT; and 

F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited 
subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, 
certificates, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are 
legally required to perform the tasks and services contemplated under this 
Agreement and all such licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and 
approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement and 
made available to CITY for copying and inspection. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 16 of 380



The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at 
CONSULTANT’s own cost and expense and without any reimbursement from 
CITY, any services necessary to correct any errors or omissions caused by 
CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the standard of care set forth under this 
Section or by any like failure on the part of CONSULTANT’s employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.   Such effort by CONSULTANT 
to correct any errors or omissions shall be commenced immediately upon their 
discovery by either Party and shall be completed within seven (7) calendars days 
from the date of discovery or such other extended period of time authorized by 
the CITY Representatives in writing and in their sole and absolute discretion. The 
Parties acknowledge and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work performed 
by CONSULTANT or on CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not constitute a release of 
any deficiency or delay in performance. The Parties further acknowledge, 
understand and agree that CITY has relied upon the foregoing representations of 
CONSULTANT, including but not limited to the representation that 
CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge and experience 
necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 
standards of CONSULTANT’s profession. 

2.5 ASSIGNMENT:  The skills, training, knowledge and experience of 
CONSULTANT are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  
Accordingly, CITY has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the 
person(s) who will perform the services and tasks to be undertaken by 
CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement.  In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT agrees that it shall not 
assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this 
Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations 
under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY.  In the 
absence of CITY’s prior written consent, any attempted assignment or transfer 
shall be ineffective, null and void and shall constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement.  

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT 
CONTRACTOR:  The Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under 
CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, 
methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an independent contractor basis 
and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right to perform similar or 
different services for other principals during the term of this Agreement, provided 
such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s competent and timely 
performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and provided the 
performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure of 
CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel 
performing the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not 
employees of CITY and shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive 
direction and control.  CONSULTANT shall pay all wages, salaries and other 
amounts due such personnel and shall assume responsibility for all benefits, 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 17 of 380



payroll taxes, Social Security and Medicare payments and the like.  
CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting 
such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security taxes, 
income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ 
compensation insurance and the like. 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined 
by the CITY Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 
adequate or timely performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat 
to persons or property, or if any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work 
in a manner acceptable to the CITY, such officer, employee, agent, contractor, 
subcontractor or subconsultant shall be promptly removed by CONSULTANT 
and shall not be re-assigned to perform any of the Work. 

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in 
compliance with all applicable federal, state or local laws to the extent such laws 
control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s 
compliance with applicable laws shall include without limitation compliance with 
all applicable Cal/OSHA requirements.   

2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT 
shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or 
applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental 
disability or medical condition. 

2.10 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, 
understand and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed 
by CONSULTANT are, and shall at all times remain, wholly independent 
contractors and are not officials, officers, employees, departments or 
subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for the 
negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors and subconsultants. CONSULTANT and all persons retained or 
employed by CONSULTANT shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind 
CITY in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on 
behalf of, or against, CITY, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such 
authority is expressly conferred to CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is 
otherwise expressly conferred by CITY in writing. 

III. 

INSURANCE 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE:  Prior to the beginning of 
and throughout the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and 
maintain policies of insurance that meet the requirements and specifications set 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 18 of 380



forth under this Article. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain the following 
insurance coverage, at its own expense: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance:  CONSULTANT shall procure 
and maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) 
as broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 
coverage (occurrence Form CG 0001) or its equivalent.  Such CGL 
Coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) 
in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, property 
damage, operations, products and completed operations, and contractual 
liability. 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance:  CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office 
Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  
Such Automobile Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less 
than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage.  

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:  A 
policy of workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully 
comply with the laws of the State of California and which shall indemnify, 
insure and provide legal defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY 
against any loss, claim or damage arising from any injuries or 
occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed by or any 
persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of carrying out the Work 
contemplated in this Agreement. 

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for 
a period of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and 
maintain Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to 
CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such coverage shall have minimum limits of 
no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and shall 
be endorsed to include contractual liability.   

3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS:  The CGL Coverage and the 
Automobile Liability Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY 
and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers as additional insureds.  

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this 
Agreement shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and 
authorized to issue policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise 
provided elsewhere under this Article, all required insurance shall be procured 
from insurers who, according to the latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, 
have an A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII.   CITY may also accept policies 
procured by insurance carriers with a Standard & Poor’s rating of no less than 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 19 of 380



BBB according to the latest published edition the Standard & Poor’s rating guide.  
As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance, the 
CITY Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings than those set 
forth in this Section.   

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE:  All policies of insurance provided 
by CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s 
elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of 
CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.  

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of 
subrogation prior to a loss.  CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of 
subrogation against CITY.  

3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands 
and agrees, that CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the 
insurance required under this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial 
well-being and, indirectly, the collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  
Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, represents and agrees that its shall 
furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing 
the coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory to CITY in its sole 
and absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and endorsements for 
each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by 
the CITY if requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be 
received and approved by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s 
commencement of any work or any of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, 
CONSULTANT shall also provide CITY with certified copies of all required 
insurance policies and endorsements.   

IV. 

INDEMNIFICATION 

4.1  The Parties agree that CITY, the CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and authorized volunteers (hereinafter, the “City 
Indemnitees”) should, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from 
any and all loss, injury, damage, claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, 
litigation costs, or any other cost arising out of or in any way related to the 
performance of this Agreement. Accordingly, the provisions of this indemnity 
provision are intended by the Parties to be interpreted and construed to provide 
the City Indemnitees with the fullest protection possible under the law. 
CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 20 of 380



the absence of CONSULTANT’s commitment to indemnify, defend and protect 
CITY as set forth herein. 

4.2 Except as otherwise provided under Section 4.2 of this Article, above, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless the City Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, damage, 
expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees 
and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every nature to the extent caused by 
CONSULTANT’s negligent performance under this Agreement, including but not 
limited to the negligent acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT or 
CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, servants, contractors, 
subcontractors or subconsultants or the failure of the same to comply with any of 
the duties, obligations or standards of care set forth herein. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, a Party’s total liability to the other Party and anyone claiming 
by, through, or under the other Party for any cost, loss, or damages caused in 
part by the negligence of the Party and in part by the negligence of the other 
Party or any other negligent entity or individual, shall not exceed the percentage 
share that the Party’s negligence bears to the total negligence of CITY, 
CONSULTANT, and all other negligent entities and individuals. 

4.3 [RESERVED] 

4.4 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, 
CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT 
as a result of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification 
arising under this Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay 
taxes on amounts received pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with 
applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

4.5  As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, 
the obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the 
provisions of any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT 
expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY 
and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
authorized volunteers.  

4.6 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, 
CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions 
identical to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor 
or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT 
in the performance of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain 
such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, CONSULTANT 
agrees to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY 
and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
authorized volunteers from and against any and all claims and losses, costs or 
expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury to any 
property resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 21 of 380



wrongful acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any 
other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall include 
reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by counsel of CITY’s choice.  

4.7 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, 
CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against 
CONSULTANT because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of 
any insurance policy or certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall apply regardless of whether or not 
any insurance policies are determined to be applicable to the claim, demand, 
damage, liability, loss, cost or expense.  

4.8 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, 
the duties to indemnify, defend and hold harmless as set forth under this Section, 
shall survive the early termination or normal expiration of this Agreement and 
shall be in addition to any other rights or remedies which the CITY may have at 
law or in equity.   

V. 

TERMINATION 

5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE:  CITY may terminate this Agreement at any 
time for convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of 
five (5) calendar days prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this 
Agreement.   Upon such termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be 
compensated only for those services and tasks which have been performed by 
CONSULTANT up to the effective date of the termination.   CONSULTANT may 
not terminate this Agreement except for cause as provided under Section 5.2, 
below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, CITY may require 
CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data, as 
defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared by 
CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT 
shall be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) 
calendar days of CITY’s written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this 
Agreement on the part of CITY pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement for 
convenience as provided under this Section. 

5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or 
task set forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly 
perform any such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this 
Agreement), an event of default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall 
occur.  For all Events of Default, the Party alleging an Event of Default 
shall give written notice to the defaulting Party (hereinafter referred to as a 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 22 of 380



“Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i)  the nature of the Event of Default; 
(ii) the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a date by which the 
Event of Default shall be cured, which shall not be less than the applicable 
cure period set forth under Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C below or if a cure is 
not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to begin such 
cure and diligently prosecute such cure to completion.   The Event of 
Default shall constitute a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party 
fails to cure the Event of Default within the applicable cure period or any 
extended cure period allowed under this Agreement.   

B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the 
following time periods: 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default 
Notice for any failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or 
CITY’s employees or agents with any information and/or written 
reports, documentation or work product which CONSULTANT is 
obligated to provide to CITY  or CITY’s employees or agents under 
this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, 
CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to 
cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has 
commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event 
of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 3-day cure period.  
The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this 
Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds seven (7) calendar days from the end 
of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default 
Notice for any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior 
to the expiration of the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may 
submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of 
Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has commenced 
efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure period.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this 
Section 5.2B.ii that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days from the end 
of the initial 14-day cure period. 

In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform 
any duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the 
failure to timely perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation, 
service or task), an Event of Default on the part of CONSULTANT shall 
include, but shall not be limited to the following:  (i) CONSULTANT’s 
refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks called for under 
the Scope of Services; (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its 
obligations under this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 23 of 380



specified, within a reasonable time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its 
employees’ disregard  or violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, 
procedure or regulation;  (iv) the initiation of proceedings under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar legislation 
as relates to CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform or observe any covenant, 
condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement;  and/or (vii) CITY’s 
discovery that a statement representation or warranty by CONSULTANT 
relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous in any 
material respect. 

C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within 
forty-five (45) calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default 
Notice, unless the Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 
45-day cure period.   Prior to the expiration of the 45-day cure period, 
CITY may submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of 
Default upon a showing that CITY has commenced its efforts to cure the 
Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured 
within the 45-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, an Event of 
Default dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any undisputed sums to 
CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, above, shall be cured by 
CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s 
Default Notice to CITY. 

D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 
CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending 
CONSULTANT’s cure of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT 
written notice of CITY’s intent to suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 
(hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY may issue the Suspension 
Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of Default. Upon such 
suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those services 
and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No actual 
or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as 
provided herein. 

E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  
No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, 
or otherwise.  

F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights 
and remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a 
limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise 
imposed or available by law. In addition to any other remedies available to 
CITY at law or under this Agreement in the event of any breach of this 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 24 of 380



Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also pursue any 
one or more of the following remedies: 

i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately 
terminate this Agreement in whole or in part; 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the 
time of performance; 

iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the 
terms of the Agreement  to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s 
breach of the Agreement  or to terminate the Agreement; or 

iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or 
remedy.  

CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and 
expenses that CITY incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the 
CITY’s exercise of its remedies under this Agreement.  

G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole 
remedy shall be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or 
the recovery of any unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under 
this Agreement for completed services and tasks.   

5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement 
shall constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or 
other covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement 
contained in this Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily 
given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by 
custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this 
Agreement pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its 
term or any extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section 
or provision contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination 
or normal expiration of this Agreement. 

VI. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All 
Documents and Data shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction 
or limitation upon their use or dissemination by CITY, upon Consultant's receipt 
of payment for such Documents and Data.  For purposes of this Agreement, the 
term “Documents and Data” means and includes all reports, analyses, 
correspondence, plans, drawings, designs, renderings, specifications, notes, 
summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, lists, data 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 25 of 380



compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or assembled by or 
on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement and fixed in 
any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to Documents and 
Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or electronically.  This Agreement creates, 
at no cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to copy, use, reuse, disseminate 
and/or retain any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property 
embodied in all Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall require all 
subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that CITY shall be granted the 
same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain Documents and Data 
prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or subconsultant as applies to 
Documents and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement.  

6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information 
developed or received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this 
Agreement are deemed confidential and shall not be disclosed by 
CONSULTANT without prior written consent by CITY. CITY shall grant such 
consent if disclosure is legally required. Upon request, all CITY data shall be 
returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any 
publicity pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, 
television or radio production or other similar medium without the prior written 
consent of CITY. 

6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither 
CONSULTANT nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, 
or has an ownership interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court 
or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 
U.S.C., section 3789 et seq. and the California False Claims Act, Government 
Code section 12650 et seq.  

6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given 
to the respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as 
the respective Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

CONSULTANT:  CITY:  
MIG, Inc. 
Attn: Laura R. Stetson 
537 South Raymond Ave. 
Pasadena, California 91105 
Phone: (626) 744-9872 
Fax:  (626) 744-9873 
Email: lstetson@migcom.com 
 

 City of Cudahy 
City Manager’s Office 
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, California 90201 
Attn: Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 
Phone: (323) 773-5143 
 

Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or 
successfully transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or 
when mailed, forty-eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 26 of 380



Service, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable 
address.   

6.5 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS:  CONSULTANT agrees to comply 
with all federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are 
now or may in the future become applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s 
business, equipment and personnel engaged in activities covered by this 
Agreement or arising out of the performance of such activities.  

6.6 NONDISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT:  CONSULTANT agrees that it will 
not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment and shall comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations of CITY and/or all other relevant government 
agencies, including, but not limited to, the California Department of Fair 
Employment and Housing and the Federal Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission.  Also, CONSULTANT certifies and agrees that all persons 
employed by CONSULTANT, its affiliates subsidiaries and related entities, if any, 
will be treated equally by CONSULTANT, without unlawful discrimination based 
upon creed, sex, race, national origin, or any other classification prohibited by 
state or federal law.  If CITY finds that any of the provisions of this Section have 
been violated, such violation shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  
While CITY reserves the right to determine independently that the anti-
discrimination provisions of the Agreement have been violated, in addition, a 
determination by the California Fair Employment Practices Commission or 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, or successor agency, or 
the Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, that CONSULTANT 
has violated state or federal anti-discrimination laws relative to this Agreement 
shall constitute a finding by CITY that CONSULTANT has violated the anti-
discrimination provisions of this Agreement.  

6.7 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is 
reasonably necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

6.8 SUBCONTRACTING:  CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the 
Work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the 
prior written approval of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation 
subcontracts with subconsultants), if any, shall contain a provision making them 
subject to all provisions stipulated in this Agreement, including provisions relating 
to insurance requirements and indemnification. 

6.9 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right 
to employ other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon 
by CONSULTANT. 

6.10 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains 
that it has not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 27 of 380



Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid 
nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, 
brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the 
award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, 
CITY shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term 
of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of 
his or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or 
obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

6.11 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every 
provision of this Agreement. 

6.12 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and 
governed according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation 
between the Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles 
County Superior Court of the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law 
requires that all or part of any such litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, 
venue, without exception, shall be in the Central District of California located in 
the City of Los Angeles, California. 

6.13 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other 
Party, whether legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection 
with this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to 
have and recover from the losing Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other 
costs of such action. 

6.14 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 

6.15 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT:  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of 
any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this 
Agreement inure exclusively to the Parties. 

6.16 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT:  This Agreement shall not be construed in 
favor of, or against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared 
this Agreement together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of 
their respective attorneys. 

6.17 SEVERABILITY:  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or 
otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect.  

6.18 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of 
this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by 
both Parties, subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written 
amendments, modifications or supplements cannot be waived and any attempted 
waiver shall be void and invalid. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 28 of 380



6.19 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are 
for convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, 
or describe the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

6.20 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits 
attached hereto, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.   

6.21 ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the 
entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the 
matters addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or 
understandings, whether oral or written, or entered into between CITY and 
CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this Agreement.  No statements, 
representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, made by any Party 
which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, 
modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid and binding unless in 
writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.18, above. 

6.22 COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original 
counterparts each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or 
typewritten amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts 
shall be valid or binding unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with 
Section 6.18, above.  One fully executed original counterpart shall be delivered to 
CONSULTANT and the remaining two original counterparts shall be retained by 
CITY.  

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed the day and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 

 

CITY OF CUDAHY: 
 
 
 
By:       
 Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 
 
Date:       
 

 MIG, INC. 
 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:      
  
 
Title:       
 
Date:       
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 29 of 380



 
 
 
By:              
 
Date:       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

(SCOPE OF WORK) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 30 of 380



 

EXHIBIT A 

Scope of Work 

The Consultant (MIG, the MIG Team, or we) will provide the services described in this Exhibit A.  

For the General Plan and Development Code, Consultant will use a hybrid form-based approach to the 
land use plan centered on “PlaceTypes”. PlaceTypes will define the “types of places” in Cudahy in terms 
of the physical structures, public spaces and infrastructure the City looks to achieve. For the General 
Plan, PlaceTypes will be the new regulating standards that define land use and form as well as the 
character of Cudahy’s neighborhoods, corridors and districts. Complementary to PlaceTypes, a hybrid 
Development Code will provide the benefits of use standards while incorporating clear form and design 
standards. The hybrid Code will provide graphic representations of development standards, including 
visual representation of setbacks, height, massing of buildings and interactions between building 
frontages and streets.  

The Consultant will implement an extensive, inclusive, bilingual public outreach program with innovative 
and proven high-tech and high-touch tools that will result in meaningful community participation. This 
will include coordination with activities associated with the parallel Enabling Just and Sustainable 
Growth in Cudahy project being led by UCLA researchers. The activities will be designed to be fun and 
transparent, thus resulting in new, practical planning documents with a high level of acceptance.  

TASK 1: PROJECT KICK-OFF AND EXISTING CONDITIONS ANALYSIS  

Task 1.1: Background Document Review, Project Kick-Off Meeting and City Tour 

The MIG Team will meet with City staff to kick off the project, gather data and information, finalize 
protocols and communications, discuss the stakeholder process, determine coordination and overlap with 
the UCLA work scope, and outline overall expectations and desired project outcomes. This will include 
refining the scope of work, preparing a detailed project schedule, developing an initial list of stakeholders 
to be interviewed and reviewing the management structure that will ensure the program is completed on 
time and on budget. 

Following the formal part of the meeting, City staff will lead the MIG Team on a walking/driving tour of 
Cudahy to highlight individual neighborhoods and community areas, key issue and opportunity sites as 
well as areas where land use change may be considered. (City staff will be responsible for arranging for a 
van for the tour and for developing the tour route.) The focus of the tour will be to view and understand 
the neighborhoods, districts and opportunity areas.  MIG will photo-document the tour for use in 
subsequent presentations and work products. 

Deliverables:  

• Data Needs List (PDF)  

• Kick-off Meeting Agenda (PDF)  

• Base Map for City Tour  

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 31 of 380



Task 1.2: Base Mapping  

Building on the most recently available Los Angeles County Assessor parcel data and infrastructure GIS 
data provided by the City and local utility providers, MIG will create a base map containing basic 
information that will be used throughout the project. Depending upon availability of data, layers in this 
base mapping will include street rights-of-way and infrastructure, parcel information and ownership, 
vacant and underutilized parcels, approved and proposed projects, existing land uses, existing General 
Plan land use designations, and zoning. If available, the following data are also desirable: pedestrian and 
bicycle connections and facilities, transit, building footprints, building height attributes, and business 
license data with information regarding number of employees. City staff will be responsible for providing 
data, coordinating on formatting and metadata protocols, and reviewing and providing feedback on the 
base maps. At the culmination of the project, MIG will provide the City with the GIS maps and associated 
files developed during the process.  

Deliverable:  

•  Base Maps (PDF)  

Task 1.3: Existing Conditions Report  

The MIG Team will conduct an analysis of Cudahy’s existing conditions and regulatory context. MIG will 
prepare comprehensive and concise existing conditions technical studies to support the General Plan 
policy preparation and EIR tasks. The structure of the report will mirror the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) checklist and set forth existing conditions and policy implications, drawing from the 
MIG Team’s professional experience and what we learn from the initial public engagement activities. The 
report will identify environmental and infrastructure issues to be considered in the General Plan.  

Aesthetics, Land Use and Population and Housing 

MIG will conduct a land use survey to document existing land use conditions, analyze existing land use 
and development patterns, and analyze adopted and pending plans that affect development in the City. In 
addition, we will describe, analyze, and map constraints and opportunities for future growth and 
development, drawing particularly from the work completed by the UCLA team working on the Strategic 
Growth Council nexus fee study and outreach. Special attention will be paid to defining variation within 
existing residential areas to identify areas for redesignation to lower density based on predominant land 
use patterns, and to identifying infill opportunity areas and areas with the potential to generate new 
economic and employment activities. MIG will also summarize adopted and “in progress” City plans, as 
well as plans for areas surrounding Cudahy. This will include a discussion on regional plans affecting the 
City.  

MIG will prepare an aesthetics/urban design summary that describes the look, feel, and character of 
existing development and public spaces. This will include identifying architectural patterns and themes to 
be preserved, character elements to emphasize, and barriers to be addressed. MIG will produce 
associated maps and graphics that illustrate existing conditions, including gateways, historic resources, 
major urban features, open space, character areas, landmarks, and gateways.  

With regard to Population and Housing, input from stakeholders who work on gentrification, displacement, 
and environmental justice will inform the baseline analysis.  

Team member Kelly Associates Management Group will undertake an analysis of local economic 
conditions to establish an understanding of economic development needs. This will include a review of 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 32 of 380



City goals and objectives; a review of the existing general plan, zoning map and code documents; 
understanding Cudahy’s fiscal position (present and projected); a review of existing marketing material; 
and review of City development procedures to ascertain issues, opportunities and constraints.  

Transportation and Traffic  

Team member Fehr & Peers will document and analyze existing transportation conditions through a 
review of circulation patterns and available data from previous and ongoing projects, and will summarize 
these findings in a way that is easily accessible to the community and decision makers.  Our work in this 
task will be focused on analysis of opportunities and constraints associated with potential multimodal 
transportation improvements and will include an assessment of existing active transportation (walking and 
bicycling) patterns and vehicular circulation. Fehr & Peers will also support MIG in the mobility 
components of the CEQA checklist.  Additionally, Fehr & Peers will collect vehicle counts at eight 
roadway segments and four intersections to analyze existing levels of service.  We will also work with the 
City to incorporate any work completed by the UCLA team into our conclusions, and draw from their 
analysis as timing allows.  

Utilities and Service Systems  

In coordination with MIG and City staff, team member Fuscoe Engineering will obtain and review relevant 
planning and “wet” infrastructure documents (drainage, water and sewer master plans, regional studies 
and projects completed within study area) related to infrastructure including obtainment of GIS files.  This 
task includes outreach by Fuscoe to the Los Angeles County Sanitation District, Los Angeles County 
Public Works and Tract 180/Tract 349 Water Company for additional data on sewer, storm drain and 
water, and information produced in conjunction with the parallel UCLA effort. Fuscoe will also interview 
Public Works staff to assist with the deficiency assessment.  Subsequent to this analysis, Fuscoe will 
prepare this chapter of the background report compiling City data into a base map of existing or planned 
infrastructure based on infrastructure master plans (sewer, water, drainage) or regional studies previously 
prepared on behalf of the City.  In the analysis the team will identify deficiency areas and outline 
measures to correct and/or improve upon deficiencies within City limits. The team will collaborate with 
external agencies as needed to ensure the proposed improvements are consistent with regional master 
plans.  

Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities 

MIG will inventory the parks and recreation system to identify existing community facilities. This task 
builds upon information obtained during the existing land use survey, aerial data and field visits to parks. 
We will talk to Parks staff about current usage and demand and recent improvements, including the Clara 
Park Expansion project, improvements to the Los Angeles River bike trail and rest areas, and potential 
improvements at Lugo Park. The MIG Team will review all current policies and standards for parks, open 
space, and facilities. MIG will also summarize Cudahy’s recreational and open space context and identify 
existing park to population ratio, as well as identify pedestrian, bicycle and transit accessibility to 
determine geographical service areas of each park facility and connections to nearby regional recreation 
resources. As part of this analysis, MIG will determine where deficiencies exist. We will review any reports 
and summaries prepared by the UCLA team to incorporate outreach findings related to parks, recreation, 
and public facilities needs.  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 33 of 380



 

Public Services 

This section will report information from the Sheriff and Fire Departments regarding the most relevant 
crime and emergency response statistics within the past five years.  We will also identify community 
policing plans.  

Noise 

With regard to noise, we will report existing conditions based on five to eight noise measurements MIG 
staff will document in the community.  Traffic-related noise will be reported based on traffic count data 
and as may be documented in environmental reports related to the I-710 expansion project.  

Hazards 

We will map flood, geologic and other natural hazards information based on recent published sources 
(e.g., California Geological Survey, FEMA).  

Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas  

Air quality data will be reported based on information from the South Coast Air Quality Management 
District and studies underway for the I-710 expansion project, along with a baseline evaluation of air 
quality emissions associated with existing land uses. MIG has full in-house capabilities to estimate current 
local pollutant and GHG emissions. Additionally, information from Cal EnviroScreen2 will be used to 
report population exposure information.  

Health and Human Services  

While not covered in the CEQA checklist, public health and human services are critical components to 
address in the General Plan update.  As such, the background report will provide an overview of health 
conditions in Cudahy based on published sources from Kaiser and the State Department of Health.  We 
will report on healthy community programs currently in effect in Cudahy.  We will also provide information 
regarding state-of-the-art practices for integrating public health and environmental sustainability into the 
planning process; this will allow residents and policy makers to identify the degree to which Cudahy 
wishes to address these issues in the General Plan. MIG will map healthy resources in the City, including 
schools, parks, open space, food gardens, community centers, trails, public transit, libraries and other 
uses and facilities related to improving the quality of life for residents.  Based on the existing land use 
survey and GIS data, we will identify ¼- and ½-mile radius walking sheds maps for parks, schools and 
grocery stores (healthy food choices).  We will also identify “unhealthy” land uses (e.g., liquor stores, fast-
food establishments and convenience stores).  

City staff will be responsible for reviewing and providing one consolidated set of City comments to the 
MIG Team for the Existing Conditions Report. The scope and budget assume one round of review.  

Deliverables:  

•  Administrative Draft Existing Conditions Background Report (PDF) 

 •  Final Existing Conditions Background Report (PDF; 15 printed copies)  

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 34 of 380



 

TASK 2: PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT  

Task 2.1: Public Outreach Plan  

To ensure that the updated Cudahy General Plan truly reflects the community’s vision and priorities, the 
public outreach and community engagement approach needs to be inclusive and transparent, with 
multiple opportunities for input. Below we present an approach we believe will meet the City’s objectives, 
as outlined in the RFP.  This can be refined and will be detailed based on discussions with staff during the 
project kick-off meeting. The detailed outreach plan will include a description of all outreach activities, 
schedule of events, process, and timing for releasing collaterals and project in. 

 Deliverables:  

•  Public Outreach Plan (PDF)  

Task 2.2: Stakeholder Interviews  

MIG will conduct one-on-one and small group interviews with key community stakeholders.  These 
interviews are expected to be informal meetings that last approximately one-half hour to one hour.  
Potential participants include representatives from the City Council and Planning Commission, community 
and opinion leaders, local community organizations, social service providers, and business 
representatives, as well as local environmental and neighborhood organizations. The final list of 
interviewees will be developed by MIG in close coordination with City staff.  City staff will be responsible 
for contacting the interviewees, coordinating interview times and securing a meeting room to hold the 
interviews.  As requested by the stakeholders, we can conduct group interviews entirely in Spanish.  

Following the conclusion of all interviews, we will prepare a summary memorandum of key findings.  

Deliverables:  

• Ten (10) Stakeholder Interviews  

• Stakeholder Questions (PDF)  

• Stakeholder Interviews Key Findings Summary (PDF)  

Task 2.3: Project Website (OPTIONAL)  

This task is not included in the work program. 

Task 2.4: Fact Sheet  

To ensure that information about the project is widely accessible to community members, MIG proposes 
developing a frequently asked questions “FAQ” sheet. The project FAQ sheet will introduce the General 
Plan process, including schedule and opportunities for community involvement. The fact sheet will also 
include frequently asked questions to communicate the importance of long-range planning documents, 
like the General Plan, and the relevancy to individual community members. MIG will design a one-page 
bilingual (English and Spanish) fact sheet for distribution through the regular City channels, community 
representatives and the General Plan Advisory Committee (Task 2.6).  

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 35 of 380



 

Deliverable:  

•  Project Fact Sheet (PDF)  

Task 2.5: Resident Survey  

To ensure the General Plan Update reflects the values, priorities and concerns of all residents in Cudahy 
— not just residents who actively participate in the workshops or advisory committees — we recommend 
conducting a scientific survey of adult residents as part of the public outreach efforts. The survey will 
provide objective, statistically reliable measures of residents’ opinions and behaviors on a number of key 
issues such as neighborhood stabilization, commercial land uses, City services and programs, bicycle 
and pedestrian mobility, and healthy community strategies, and is especially useful for identifying how 
residents prioritize or make tradeoffs among a list of options.  

With this information, the City and the consultant team can update the General Plan with confidence it 
reflects the opinions of all residents. The methodological rigor associated with a survey will also promote 
the acceptance of the outreach findings and final Plan, as the City will be able to demonstrate in a 
statistically reliable way that the Plan is consistent with the opinions and priorities of residents.  

Our team proposes to design and conduct a 15-minute telephone survey (including bilingual 
interviewers) of 300 adult residents selected at random from those who live in Cudahy. Using a 
probability-based random sampling methodology, a sample of this size will produce highly reliable 
survey results with a statistical margin of error of +/- 5.6% at the 95% level of confidence.  

True North will handle all aspects of the research process in consultation with staff and Council, as 
appropriate. The work scope will include all tasks necessary to complete the survey, including designing 
and refining the questionnaire, professionally translating the survey into Spanish, developing an 
appropriate sampling methodology, programming the survey instrument to assist the interviewers in 
navigating the survey and recording data, conducting interviews according to a strict protocol in English 
and Spanish, performing quality control checks throughout the data collection period, processing and 
analyzing the data, preparing thorough (200+ pages) full-color reports of the findings, and presenting the 
results to staff and Council aided by a PowerPoint presentation. The final report and presentation will be 
designed so that they are accessible to those with little or no understanding of statistics and survey 
research methodology.  

Deliverables:  

• Draft and Final Survey questionnaires (PDF)  

• Initial Topline Report of survey findings (PDF)  

• Full Report that details overall survey findings and how they vary by subgroups of residents (PDF)  

• Cross tabulations of survey data for reference (PDF)  

• One PowerPoint presentation of survey findings 

Task 2.6: General Plan Advisory Committee (GPAC)  

Central to the engagement program will be the General Plan Advisory Committee (GPAC). We 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 36 of 380



recommend that the GPAC be comprised of 7 to 11 community members, including residents, business 
owners and representatives from community organizations. A student representative from Bell High 
School (who is a Cudahy resident) would be a great addition to provide a youth perspective.  Our 
experience in nearby communities has revealed that resident involvement may be difficult to solicit due to 
busy family life.  Thus, by involving representatives from current stakeholder community groups, a larger 
GPAC group may be formed.  To foster transparency and inclusivity, we recommend advertising the 
opportunity to participate on the GPAC and asking candidates to complete an application. MIG will 
prepare a bilingual application for use by City staff for soliciting participation.  

MIG will prepare materials for and facilitate up to six GPAC meetings at strategic points in the work 
program. These meetings will provide an opportunity for MIG/City staff to present the project and receive 
input from the group on the technical studies, Vision and Framework, draft solutions, and pre-public draft 
General Plan. City staff will be responsible for scheduling these meetings, coordinating the GPAC and 
securing meeting locations. MIG is available to attend additional GPAC meetings as requested on a time-
and-materials basis, with prior authorization from the City.  

Introduction and Kick-Off.  At the first GPAC meeting, we will orient and educate the GPAC members 
regarding their responsibilities and the purpose of the General Plan and encourage their participation as 
ambassadors for the General Plan project.  We will also begin work on issues identification. MIG will 
prepare a summary Charge Statement for the GPAC to establish meeting ground rules and expectations.  

Issues and Opportunities. The second GPAC meeting will focus on soliciting issues, challenges and 
opportunities that will provide direction for the Existing Conditions Report.  We will also ask the GPAC to 
begin to craft a preliminary vision.  The GPAC will receive a summary of input received from the Issues 
and Ideas Community Workshop (Task 2.5), and help formulate specific questions to ask for the resident 
survey (Task 2.5).  

Existing Conditions Report and Survey Findings.  In this meeting the GPAC will review the Existing 
Conditions Reports (Task 1.4) and summary of the resident survey (Task 2.5).  

Vision and Framework. From the outreach and existing conditions report efforts, we will summarize the 
primary issues that the General Plan will address; these ideas will be expressed in a Vision Framework. 
The GPAC will review and refine the draft Vision Framework at this meeting.  

Solutions and Priorities.  MIG will prepare for and facilitate a meeting with the GPAC to discuss the 
options for implementing the Vision and the Framework. The GPAC will assist in priority identification, 
particularly with regard to land use/Place Types alternatives, healthy communities and sustainability as 
well as preliminary economic impacts and context.  

Administrative Draft General Plan.  MIG will prepare for and facilitate one final meeting with the GPAC 
to review key components of the Administrative Draft General Plan.  

Deliverables:  

• Bilingual GPAC Application (PDF)  

• GPAC Scope and Charge (PDF; 11 printed copies)  

• Up to six (6) GPAC meetings  

• GPAC PowerPoint and Meeting Materials  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 37 of 380



 

Task 2.7: Community-Wide Workshop - Values  

At the first workshop, the team will provide participants with an overview of the planning process and 
introduce the purpose of a General Plan. This workshop will focus on identifying community values, 
issues, opportunities, neighborhood assets and connectivity. To encourage robust participation, we 
recommend that this workshop be held in conjunction with another event in the City (such as, for 
instance, a town hall meeting or the Cudahy Swap Meet).  

MIG, in coordination with City staff and the project team, will develop the workshop content, print 
materials and facilitate the workshop.  MIG will design the workshop to include activities to capture 
feedback and comments. Two MIG project team members—including a Spanish-language speaker—will 
staff the workshops, anticipated to be no more than three hours in length.  MIG will produce agenda and 
handout materials in English and Spanish.  All workshop materials will include Spanish language.  City 
staff will be responsible for securing workshop locations, printing and mailing announcements and 
providing food.  

Following the workshop, we will provide a graphic summary.  

Deliverables:  

• One Workshop  

• Exhibits and visual aids for the Workshop  

• Workshop summary (PDF)  

• Marketing Materials 

Task 2.8: Community Workshops and Joint Planning Commission/City Council Meetings  

To broaden community involvement and achieve transparency with decision-makers, we propose to 
conduct four community workshops that double as joint Planning Commission/City Council study 
sessions.  This workshop format allows decision-makers to observe and hear community interaction first-
hand, and for the public to talk directly to City leaders.  Each such event will be held at a point in the 
General Plan program where directed feedback is needed to move on to the next task.  

• The first joint workshop will provide the opportunity to review results from the resident survey and 
present the ideas from the first community workshop on issues and opportunities.  

• During the second joint workshop, the MIG team will present the General Plan Framework and Vision 
(Task 3.1). The objective will be to gain direct feedback from the community and decision-makers 
regarding the draft Vision and Policy Framework, and to identify focus areas where land use changes 
may occur.  

• The third joint workshop will be held to test approaches to addressing the issues identified, using the 
Vision and Framework as the primary lens. Input will help inform the selection of a preferred Place 
Type concept that will be the basis for the updated General Plan, along with critical goals and policies 
pertaining to mobility, health, safety and other issues identified by the community.  

•  As an unveiling of the Draft General Plan, MIG will plan and facilitate a citywide open house on the 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 38 of 380



draft document. The MIG Team will be available to answer questions about the project and the draft 
General Plan elements. This will provide an opportunity for members of the public to provide 
feedback on the draft elements, and all components therein. MIG will prepare large boards or posters 
that describe each of the draft elements, highlighting new policy concepts and major changes from 
the existing General Plan.  

Following each event, we will prepare a graphic summary.  

Deliverables:  

• Four communitywide Workshops/Joint Study Sessions  

• Agenda, handout materials, exhibits, and visual aids for the Workshops/Study Sessions  

• Workshop summaries (PDF)  

Task 2.9: Cudahy Commission Meetings  

Getting feedback regarding parks and open space, fire safety issues and human services issues from the 
three City Commissions charged with providing recommendations on these issues will be important and 
informative.  We will meet once each with the Parks and Recreation Commission, Public Safety 
Commission and Aging and Senior Citizens Commission to review the draft Vision and Framework, and to 
work with the Commissions to identify potential solutions to issues within their charge areas.  This scope 
and budget provide for three Commission meetings, all with the same format (although the issues will 
differ).  

Deliverables:  

• Three Commission Meetings  

• PowerPoint for the Meetings  

TASK 3: VISION AND POLICY FRAMEWORK  

Task 3.1: Framework Document  

To establish the framework for the General Plan, we will produce a Vision and Policy Framework 
document for review and approval by the GPAC, community, the Planning Commission, and the City 
Council. The Vision and Policy Framework will state a clear vision, supported by the underlying values 
identified through the public outreach process and lay out policy direction. The Vision and Policy 
Framework will also identify focus areas where change may occur, followed by a series of transformative 
strategies designed to create positive change in the city.  The Vision and Policy Framework will draw from 
the Existing Conditions Report, the input received from community engagement activities and discussions 
with City staff.  MIG will submit a draft for City staff review, and City staff will be responsible for reviewing 
the draft report and providing MIG with one set of consolidated and confirmed edits. This scope and 
budget assumes one round of review and revisions.  

Deliverables:  

• Administrative Draft Vision and Policy Framework (PDF)  

• Vision and Policy Framework (PDF)  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 39 of 380



 

 

TASK 4: DRAFT GENERAL PLAN  

Task 4.1: General Plan Format and Structure  

Prior to crafting the new General Plan, we will have City staff confirm its structure, including layout and 
organization of chapters. The overall goal is to create a streamlined General Plan. The introduction will 
describe vision and framework. Each subsequent chapter will have a brief overview of the issues, 
followed by succinct statements and ample illustrations of desired future conditions, and concluding with 
clear implementing programs and actions to achieve these conditions.  

Deliverable:  

• Administrative Draft General Plan Format and Structure (PDF)  

Task 4.2: Administrative Draft General Plan  

The MIG Team will prepare a new, comprehensive General Plan based on the technical analysis, input 
received during earlier phases and State legal requirements. The draft General Plan will reflect expressed 
community values, such as economic vitality, safe and healthy communities, connectivity and education 
throughout each element. We will incorporate the Place Type structure and sustainability and healthy 
community concepts into each of the individual elements, consistent with best practices. The updated 
Plan will also include a comprehensive implementation program that will focus on the Plan as a living 
document that results in the desired change in the community.  

The updated General Plan will include the following elements/sections; the exact order and arrangement 
of elements and topics will be discussed and confirmed with City staff.  

Introduction. MIG will prepare an Introduction that summarizes the new General Plan. This will include a 
summary of the update process, extensive public outreach and engagement process, and summary of 
the General Plan Vision and Framework. 

Land Use Element. MIG will prepare a Land Use Element that includes a new Land Use Diagram and 
updated land use designations that address allowable use, density ranges, floor-area ratios and other 
appropriate standards.  The new Land Use Element will include a form-based approach incorporating 
Place Types, and will include allowable use, density ranges, floor area ratios and form-based community 
character features. Each Place Type will include illustrations and descriptions. Building from the Vision 
and Policy Framework, MIG will identify new goals, policies and implementation measures that will form 
the basis of land use and community design components to the General Plan. MIG will use photo 
examples and/or illustrations as appropriate to illustrate development standards, prototypes and character 
in focus areas. The Land Use Element will incorporate healthy communities’ strategies pertaining to land 
use and community health resources. We will ensure consistency with adopted the Housing Element 
goals and implementation programs to provide adequate sites to meet the Regional Housing Needs 
Allocation and related increases in density in the High Density Residential and Community Commercial 
Land Use designations. 

Circulation Element. MIG, with support from Fehr & Peers and Fuscoe Engineering, will prepare a 
Circulation Element that describes the planned transportation and infrastructure network. We will produce 
full-color maps showing planned pedestrian and bicycle facilities as well as streets and roadways for 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 40 of 380



automobiles, including freight and high-occupancy-vehicles. We will update General Plan goals, policies 
and implementation actions to be consistent with the community’s values and desired future 
transportation conditions. These may include policies related to Complete Streets and multimodal 
transportation, Transportation Demand Management, access for the mobility impaired, guidelines for the 
coordination of land use and development with the provision of adequate transportation facilities and 
services and neighborhood traffic management. 

The Circulation Plan Element will also incorporate recently adopted studies and findings from the 
Citywide Safe Routes to School Plan, the Pedestrian Safety Assessment and the Strategic Planning 
Grant. Fehr & Peers will work closely with MIG to develop a circulation element and associated analysis 
that is legally defensible and reflective of current changes in statewide legislation such as the Complete 
Streets Act (AB 1358) and the draft guidance for SB 743, which has substantially changed significance 
criteria approach to transportation analysis. The effort will include a forecast of future transportation 
conditions using either a regional or sketch level transportation analysis model, a background technical 
report and an evaluation of future conditions with and without the proposed project circulation network 
suitable for use as an appendix to the environmental document.  This element will also include goals, 
policies and programs related to public facilities, infrastructure and water planning. Fuscoe will define the 
infrastructure needs required to support the Land Use Element, and will address long-term water capacity 
issues and conservation efforts to support expanded development growth efforts proposed as part this 
General Plan update. 

Conservation and Open Space Element. MIG will prepare an updated Conservation and Open Space 
Element that shows the distribution and potential locations of recreation facilities, schools and public 
buildings. We will produce maps and define requirements for trails, parks and recreation access as well 
as cultural and historical resources, as appropriate. 

Noise Element. MIG will prepare a Noise Element that includes appropriate noise standards and policies 
to address development under the new General Plan. We will produce future noise exposure contours 
calculated based upon future traffic data, railroad usage assumptions and other information provided by 
the City. MIG will prepare the map in terms of CNEL in increments of 5 decibels down to 60 dB CNEL. 

Safety Element. MIG, with support from Fuscoe Engineering, will prepare an updated Safety Element 
that addresses areas constrained by hazards such as flooding, seismic and geologic hazards, fire danger, 
hazardous materials and other topics as appropriate. This element will also include goals, policies and 
programs related to fire, police, emergency medical services and disaster preparedness. 

Air Quality Element. MIG will prepare an Air Quality and Atmosphere Element that addresses air quality 
and atmosphere (greenhouse gases).This Element focuses on minimizing the impacts of land uses that 
have the potential to pollute, maintaining good local air quality, promoting efficient management and use 
of energy resources. This will include policies and programs specifically related to greenhouse gas 
reduction, climate change adaptation and sustainability. As appropriate, environmental justice concerns 
will be addressed with regard to air quality. 

Implementation Plan. This is a key component of the updated General Plan. The Implementation Plan 
should provide concrete policy guidance to the City Council in its annual budgeting process. We propose 
to put extensive effort into this component to make the Implementation relevant, effective and reflective of 
objectives and resources. In addition to actions, the updated Implementation Plan will identify time frames 
and funding sources. The Plan will be drafted to be easily amended to respond to shifting City priorities 
and changing physical, financial or political circumstances in the future. We will use the knowledge, 
experience and practical creativity of all team members to identify opportunities for new strategies, 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 41 of 380



especially as they relate to economic development and other important issues that are identified by City 
staff and the community. In addition, through the Implementation Plan, MIG will work with staff to identify 
inconsistencies between the updated General Plan and the Municipal Code, and we will recommend a list 
of programs to ensure consistency with General Plan goals and programs to be implemented. 

The Administrative Draft General Plan will be submitted to the City as a series of separate Word files with 
embedded or attached images and figures. City staff will be responsible for reviewing each element, 
adding track-change comments and edits to the Word files as well as providing one set of consolidated 
and confirmed edits.  This scope and budget assumes two rounds of review, edit, and revisions. 

Deliverables: 

•  Administrative Draft General Plan (Microsoft Word file and PDF; 3 printed copies) 

•  Draft General Plan (PDF; 15 printed copies) 

TASK 5: ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

MIG will prepare the appropriate CEQA compliance documents; we anticipate that an EIR will be 
required. Our work scope assumes that City staff will be responsible for all public noticing, distribution and 
filing of environmental documents per the law. However, we can provide these tasks as additional 
services upon request.  We propose to prepare a single CEQA document to address the General Plan 
and Development Code update. 

Task 5.1: Initial Study, Notice of Preparation and Scoping Meeting 

MIG will complete an Initial Study checklist and narrative to appropriately focus the topical contents of the 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR). Those focus topics determined to have a potentially significant 
impact on the environment will then be further analyzed during the development of the Draft EIR and 
associated mitigation strategies closely linked to General Plan policies.  MIG will also prepare the Notice 
of Preparation (NOP) for the Draft EIR. The Initial Study will be attached to the NOP for City staff approval 
and distribution to responsible and interested agencies, initiating the 30-day NOP response period. MIG 
will aid City staff in compiling the NOP mailing list. Our scope also includes preparation and attendance at 
one scoping meeting. Our experience has been that stand-alone scoping meetings for General Plan EIRs 
are poorly attended. As an optional modification, this Scoping Meeting may be combined with a final joint 
PC/CC study session and community workshop. 

Deliverables: 

•  Scoping Meeting 

•  NOP and Initial Study (PDF; 3 printed copies) 

Task 5.2 Draft EIR 

The MIG Team will develop a Draft EIR that considers all aspects of General Plan and Development 
Code implementation to streamline future entitlements.  Mitigation will be developed through close 
coordination with General Plan policies and implementation strategies.  In turn, the evaluation of the focus 
topics in the Draft EIR will not necessarily result in significant environmental impacts.  Our scope provides 
for two rounds of review of the Draft EIR: an administrative draft followed by a pre-press draft for City staff 
to ensure that all comments have been appropriately addressed prior to release of the official Draft EIR 
for public review and comment. MIG will also prepare the Notice of Availability for the Draft EIR.  The 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 42 of 380



General Plan existing conditions studies will provide much of the environmental baseline for the Draft EIR 
analysis. We anticipate that the following topics will be of importance to City decision-makers, interested 
agencies and the public during their consideration of the General Plan. These topics will receive 
emphasis in the Draft EIR (listed below in order of CEQA Guidelines Appendix G, Environmental 
Checklist Form). For the remaining environmental topics in Appendix G, such as agriculture and forestry 
resources and mineral resources, the EIR Initial Study will include brief written statements explaining why 
no significant impacts are anticipated. 

Aesthetics. Consistent with CEQA, the EIR will independently evaluate the potential impacts of the 
General Plan land use and urban design policies and the anticipated citywide build-out scenario under 
these policies on the visual character and image of the City.  Beneficial aesthetic effects of the plans will 
be discussed as well. The EIR will then recommend any General Plan and Development Code refinement 
warranted to minimize identified visual impacts, if any. 

Air Quality. With criteria and toxic air contaminant modeling by MIG, the EIR will assess the local and 
regional air emissions impacts of General Plan build-out based on the most recent adopted modeling 
criteria of the Southern California Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD). For any significant 
impacts, the EIR will identify mitigation consistent with SCAQMD CEQA requirements that can be 
formulated into General Plan policies. 

Biological Resources. As a built-out suburban community, Cudahy has no remaining native habitats and 
presumptively no threatened or protected species. We anticipate that this issue may be able to be 
dismissed from further analysis through the Initial Study process. 

Cultural and Historic Resources. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15064.5, the EIR will evaluate 
the potential effects of the General Plan on any identified or potential cultural or historic resources in the 
planning area. We will utilize the information contained in existing data sources. CEQA-based mitigation 
protocols will be identified and can be incorporated directly into General Plan policy. 

Geology and Soils. Earthquakes can cause strong ground shaking, liquefaction, differential settlement, 
and lateral spreading. The EIR will identify potential geotechnical impacts of General Plan build-out, and 
describe mitigation protocols, including Building Department requirements, to reduce the impacts to less-
than significant levels. 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions. The EIR will address the GHG implications, both beneficial and adverse, 
of General Plan build-out. The EIR will quantify project climate change impacts based on the most recent 
adopted modeling criteria of the SCAQMD. For any significant impacts, the EIR will identify mitigations 
consistent with SCAQMD CEQA requirements which can be formulated into General Plan policies. 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials. Existing properties and structures in the City may contain 
contaminated soils, groundwater or hazardous building materials that might be disturbed during 
development activities. Based on review of available data, including the Department of Toxic Substances 
Control EnviroStor website, the EIR will discuss the potential for future hazardous material exposure 
impacts and describe associated jurisdictional mitigation protocols. 

Hydrology and Water Quality. Based on the existing conditions analysis and planning studies, the EIR 
will assess drainage, flooding, and water quality issues. 

Land Use and Planning. The EIR will evaluate the land use implications, both beneficial and adverse, of 
the General Plan and the Development Code and will identify any significant impacts under CEQA (e.g., 
“division of an established neighborhood”). The EIR will then identify associated mitigation, including 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 43 of 380



recommended General Plan or Development Code refinements. In addition, the consistency of the 
General Plan proposed policies and Development Code regulations with relevant regional planning 
policies (e.g., SCAG and SCAQMD) will be evaluated. 

Noise and Vibration. Based on the noise contour exercise prepared for the General Plan and 
Development Code, impacts of General Plan development policies and associated future build-out on the 
local noise/vibration environment will be described. Short- and long-term noise measurements and 
existing noise contours will be provided. The EIR will analyze construction and traffic noise, and will 
assess land use compatibility within the projected noise environment. The EIR will then identify effective 
and feasible mitigations that can be incorporated directly into General Plan policy. 

Population and Housing. The EIR will describe the potential effects on housing and population in order 
to provide the statistical basis for related quantitative environmental impact evaluations (e.g., public 
services and utilities). General Plan implementation is not expected to cause CEQA-defined population or 
housing impacts. 

Public Services/Recreation. The EIR will evaluate the effects of General Plan and Development Code 
implementation on the following public services: fire protection, law enforcement, schools, and 
parks/recreation.  Appropriate service providers will be identified in coordination with City staff, and will be 
contacted to help determine potential impacts and formulate mitigation consistent with General Plan 
policy. 

Transportation and Traffic. Fehr & Peers will prepare a traffic impact analysis at four intersections and 
eight street segments with the City. This task includes assisting the City in identifying approaches and 
steps necessary to conform to SB 743. However, since that guidance has not been released by OPR, and 
the level of effort and type of analysis required is not defined, this task will be revisited with City staff to 
address any additional analysis needs beyond the analysis described above.  Once the impacts are 
identified, we will identify potential mitigation. As with most General Plans, it is assumed that the roadway 
system will be designed so that the General Plan is self-mitigating in that there is sufficient capacity in the 
roadway network to accommodate any projected growth (or that policies reflect the anticipated service 
levels that will occur). If this self-mitigation is not the case, additional mitigation measures will be identified 
for any deficient analysis locations. If necessary, the Circulation Element will be revised to reflect these 
additional mitigation measures, should any be noted.  Fehr & Peers will summarize the results of the 
analysis above in a technical Transportation Report, which will be included as an appendix to the EIR. 

Utilities and Service Systems. Based on the existing conditions analysis and planning studies prepared 
for the General Plan, team member Fuscoe will evaluate the proposed land use changes and quantify the 
potential increase in water and sewer demands based on commonly accepted generation demands to 
determine if the existing infrastructure has the capacity to accommodate the long-term land use 
projections and increased demands.  We will identify regional improvements necessary to accommodate 
the proposed land use plan. For drainage assessment, we will identify if the proposed land uses will 
increase or decrease impervious surface areas.  We will determine the applicability of the “allowable 
discharge rate” standards issued by Los Angeles County Public Works to control redevelopment projects 
within watershed areas of deficient storm drain systems and how this standard applies within the City 
limits. We will identify appropriate water quality measures and standards, green infrastructure techniques 
and water conservation features for incorporation into the sustainability component of the General Plan 
and EIR, summarized into a technical memorandum for EIR purposes. 

Deliverables: 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 44 of 380



•  Administrative Draft EIR (PDF; 3 printed copies) 

•  Draft EIR for public hearings (PDF; 20 printed copies) 

•  Notice of Availability (PDF) 

Task 5.3: Final EIR and CEQA Support Documents 

Following close of the 45-day public review period of the Draft EIR, MIG will prepare a Final EIR that 
includes responses to public and agency comments received on the Draft EIR during the public review 
period. Our budget includes an allowance for this task since the level of effort cannot be fully anticipated 
at this time. MIG will also prepare: 

•  A Final EIR that includes responses to public and agency comments received on the Draft EIR during 
the public review period, and an Errata identifying any required changes to the EIR to address the 
comments 

•  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for adoption with the General Plan and 
Development Code 

•  Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations, to be prepared in consultation with the 
City Attorney 

We will provide an Administrative Draft Final EIR, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, and 

Findings of Fact/Statement of Overriding Considerations to the City for comment. City staff will 
provide comments in track-changes format. Based on that direction, we will prepare the Final EIR and 
associated CEQA hearing documents (assuming two rounds of review and revision).  Following final City 
Council action on the final EIR and General Plan, we will prepare the Notice of Determination for the City 
to file with the County Clerk. City Staff will be responsible for all public noticing, filing, and distribution of 
the CEQA documents. 

Deliverables: 

•  Administrative Final EIR (2 Rounds of Review) (PDF; 3 printed copies) 

• Public Hearing Final EIR (PDF; 20 printed copies) 

•  MMRP (PDF; 20 printed copies) 

•  Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Consideration (PDF; 20 printed copies) 

•  Notice of Determination (PDF; 3 printed copies) 

TASK 6: GENERAL PLAN HEARINGS AND ADOPTION 

Task 6.1: Planning Commission Public Hearings (2) 

MIG will meet with the Planning Commission two times to present, discuss and receive input/direction on 
the Draft General Plan and Draft EIR. These hearings will provide an opportunity for the Planning 
Commission to formally receive public comments on the draft documents. The conclusion of these 
hearings will be a formal recommendation on the project to the City Council. City staff will be responsible 
for preparing the formal staff reports for these hearings. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 45 of 380



 

Deliverables: 

•  Two (2) Planning Commission Hearings 

•  PowerPoint presentation for the Hearings 

Task 6.2: City Council Public Hearings (2) 

MIG will meet with the City Council once to present, discuss and receive input/direction on the Draft 
General Plan and EIR. This public hearing will provide an opportunity for the City Council to review 
Planning Commission recommendations and formally receive public comments on the draft documents.  
Following this hearing, MIG will attend a second Adoption Hearing with the City Council to review and 
discuss the final documents. The conclusion of this hearing will be the City Council’s formal adoption of 
the updated General Plan, Development Code and certification of the EIR. City staff will be responsible 
for preparing the formal staff reports for these hearings. 

Deliverables: 

•  Two City Council Hearings 

•  PowerPoint presentation for the Hearings 

Task 6.3: Final General Plan 

MIG will prepare a Final General Plan based on the outcome of the City Council adoption hearing. 
Following Plan adoption, MIG will submit all project files to the City, including all GIS shapefiles 
developed during the process. 

Deliverables: 

•  Final General Plan (Microsoft Word and PDF; 20 printed copies) 

•  GIS and other data files 

TASK 7: PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

Task 7.1: Project Coordination and Management 

Efficient and experienced project management will be a critical to take this project from its initial vision 
through policy framework development and eventually to a strategic, implementable, broadly supported 
General Plan and Development Code. MIG will manage the overall project to keep it on schedule and 
budget. MIG Principal Laura Stetson will serve as Principal-in-Charge. She has a combination of sound 
technical planning skills and innovative thinking, combined with great facilitation and organizational 
talents. Ms. Stetson will work closely with Project Manager Lisa Brownfield, who will provide strong day-
to-day project management of the entire program.  MIG will meet with City staff at key junctures during 
the project to discuss document progress, confirm upcoming milestones and review materials for 
workshops and deliverables. Lisa Brownfield will have regularly scheduled phone calls with the City’s 
project manager to review pressing weekly priorities and issues. This task also covers day-to-day project 
management tasks, including invoice review and preparation and contract administration. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 46 of 380



The MIG Team has also included an allowance to coordinate with participants in other ongoing City 
projects and processes that will influence policy in the General Plan program, including the Strategic 
Growth Council Grant and work with the UCLA Lewis Center, the Prop 1B Street Improvement Project 
with APA Engineering, and the City Branding Options and Newsletter effort with Fuel Creative Group. 

Deliverables: 

•  Weekly project management calls 

•  As-needed phone and email communication and in-person staff meetings 

•  Monthly invoices, budget and progress reports (PDF) 

Task 7.2: SB 18 Consultation Assistance 

The General Plan update will require formal government to-government consultation between the City of 
Cudahy and Native American Heritage Commission-listed tribes pursuant to Senate Bill 18 (SB 18). MIG 
will provide the City with a draft letter to be transmitted to NAHC. The NAHC will determine if any NAHC-
listed Native American sacred lands are located within or adjacent to the City. In addition, the NAHC will 
provide a list of SB 18-specific Native American contacts for the City that they believe should be 
contacted for additional information. MIG will provide the City a letter template and detailed instructions to 
ensure the City complies with SB 18. No telephone calls or meetings with Native Americans are included 
in this proposal, as State law directs that the City take the lead in this regard. Should the City desire that 
MIG provide additional Native American coordination, we can perform this work as additional services. 

Deliverable: 

•  Letter template and instructions for SB 18 Consultation (Microsoft Word file) 

TASK 8: DEVELOPMENT CODE  

The City is interested in tying the General Plan policy closely to Development Code regulations, 
particularly with regard to incorporating design policies into a code that is design-based, not use-based. 
For this approach to be most effective, we recommend initiating work on the Development Code update 
once the General Plan Framework has been approved by the City Council, and completing these two 
policy documents in tandem. However, for budgeting reasons, work on the Development Code is 
scheduled to begin in fiscal year 2016-17. Updates to the Development Code will be focused and 
targeted to address newly adopted General Plan policy direction and a general “fix-it” list provided by City 
staff.   

Task 8.1: Initial Development Code Strategy Meeting 

We will meet with City staff to confirm objectives for the Development Code work program, finalize the 
public engagement tasks, and define how new urban form policies and PlaceTypes designations will be 
reflected in the updated regulations. We anticipate that Planning staff keeps a “fix-it” list of inconsistencies 
and confusing provisions in the current Code that they wish to address.  As part of this meeting, we will 
review the Municipal Code as a whole to identify other provisions that should be included in the 
Development Code or which, at least, need to be understood to avoid conflicts with the updated Code 
provisions. 

Deliverable: 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 47 of 380



• Meeting with City Staff 

 

Task 8.2: Stakeholder Interviews and Developers Roundtable 

Separate from the stakeholder meetings described for the General Plan, we will undertake meetings with 
individuals and groups (like developers and City Code Enforcement staff) most directly knowledgeable of 
and interested in development regulations. We will conduct an intensive series of interviews with 
community stakeholders and development community interest groups (Developers Roundtable) to 
understand their concerns with the current Code and to discuss revisions they would like considered. 
These will consist of a series of scheduled one-on-one and group meetings with individuals and groups 
identified by the City staff able to help identify issues of public interest and concern relative to the City’s 
development regulations and review processes. Persons or groups who may be included are local builder 
groups, historic preservation organizations, commercial and industrial property and business owners, 
neighborhood groups and homeowners associations, the Chamber of Commerce, representatives from 
the sign industry, etc. During the interviews, the objectives of the Code update program, initial issues 
based on the detailed work plan, and schedule will be explained. Participants will be asked to share their 
specific concerns and provide suggestions on how to address them. 

Following completion of the interviews, a summary report will be prepared for City staff’s review. A final 
version of the summary will be made available to policy makers and the public. 

Deliverables: 

•  Stakeholder Interviews and Developers Roundtable (one full day) 

•  Summary Report (PDF) 

Task 8.3: Development Code Style Sheet and Format; Outline 

We will prepare a recommended style sheet, a standard chapter format that will be used, and an 
annotated outline for the updated Development Code. The annotated outline will identify existing 
deficiencies in the existing Code, the revisions deemed necessary to correct those deficiencies, and 
where the revisions will be addressed in the comprehensive updated Code. The outline will form the basis 
for the comprehensive update. Based on the input received from staff, the team will revise the annotated 
outline, format and style sheet, and sample chapter format to illustrate the intended format and style of 
the updated Development Code. City staff will provide the consultant team one version of each 
deliverable (style sheet, standard chapter format, and Development Code outline) that contains all of 
staff’s mark-ups and comments, preferably using MS Word’s track changes tool. This scope and budget 
assumes one round of review and revision for each. 

Deliverables: 

•  Style Sheet (PDF) 

•  Standard Chapter Format (PDF) 

•  Development Code Outline (PDF) 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 48 of 380



 

Task 8.4: Administrative Draft Development Code 

This task involves preparing the administrative draft of all articles of the new Code. The Administrative 
Draft Development Code will be prepared in individual articles, chapters, and sections and provided to 
staff in individual articles to allow for timely, focused feedback. The efforts will focus on: 

•  Move toward a hybrid approach that balances the form-based standards with allowable use 

•  Extensive use illustrative graphics and diagrams describing form-base characteristics 

•  Implementing General Plan PlaceTypes and urban design policies 

•  Incorporating State law provisions that are not currently reflected in the Code 

•  Addressing smart growth and environmentally sustainable development practices, i.e. site design use 
of materials 

The General Plan will establish several PlaceType designations throughout Cudahy.  The Code will need 
to set forth regulations as to how development may occur within the density/intensity limits set forth in the 
General Plan, and possibly via form-based standards. For each zone, we will create use regulations, 
standards, and illustrations that reflect General Plan policies and PlaceType designations.  Based on 
policies in the General Plan and direction we receive during the initial outreach, we will incorporate 
principles and standards to reflect the community vision.  As part of the scope refinement task, we will 
discuss with you the specific topics the Code would address and potential structure. Team member 
Fuscoe is available to assist MIG with preparation of standards that facilitate low-impact design, plus 
urban/mixed-use design standards related to infrastructure.  Once we have delivered all Administrative 
Draft Code articles, City staff will provide the consultant team one version of the administrative draft Code 
that contains all of staff’s mark-ups and comments, preferably using MS Word’s track changes tool. This 
scope and budget assumes one round of review and revision. 

Deliverable: 

•  Administrative Draft Development Code (PDF; 3 printed copies)  

Task 8.5: Public Review Draft Development Code 

This task will include revisions to the Administrative Draft Development Code based on staff input and the 
addition of graphics and illustrations where needed. Graphics will be used throughout the updated Code 
to assist users in visualizing the meaning and applicability of standards, or otherwise improve 
understanding or ease of use and to focus on design aspects of development.  Following staff’s review of 
the Preliminary Draft, the team will meet with staff to review comments. City staff will provide one version 
of the preliminary draft Code that contains all of staff’s mark-ups and comments using Word’s track-
changes function. MIG will incorporate those revisions to produce a Public Review Draft Development 
Code. This scope assumes one additional review and round of revisions before the Development Code 
becomes public. 

Deliverable: 

•  Public Review Draft Development Code (PDF; 10 printed copies) 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 49 of 380



 

Task 8.6: Updated Zoning Map 

MIG will prepare a new Zoning Map to reflect the updated General Plan. This will begin with a General 
Plan/zoning consistency analysis and result in a new GIS-based Zoning Map. Because properties will be 
re-zoned citywide either to achieve consistency or reflect new zones, property owners should be engaged 
and notified. We recommend conducting a workshop focused solely on the proposed zone changes (See 
Task 8.7), as our experience has shown that such a meeting addresses specific issues and concerns of 
affected property owners. 

Deliverables: 

•  General Plan/Zoning Consistency Matrix and Map (PDF) 

•  Draft Zoning Map (PDF)  

Task 8.7: Focused Outreach for Rezoning 

This task provides for focused outreach for the updated Zoning Map. Our experience has shown that the 
public hearing process can be eased when we directly address the concerns of property owners whose 
properties will be rezoned to achieve General Plan consistency and/or reflect changes in the new 
Development Code (for example, renaming or elimination of zones).  Many properties may be rezoned as 
a result of the update to the Zoning Map, and affected property owners may need to be individually 
noticed in this regard. State law requires individual notice if fewer than 1,000 properties are affected; if 
1,000 or more will be changed, then public notice can consist of an eighth-page newspaper notice.  
However, many cities elect to provide individual notices in any case. In any event, we will help affected 
property owners understand the reasons for the rezoning and its effects by preparing an informational 
newsletter that can be produced in a relatively inexpensive format (black-and white or color) and mailed 
to affected owners, as well as posted on the City’s website. The City will be responsible for reproduction 
costs and mailing/distribution.  We have found that many property owners, after having read the 
newsletter and/or contacted City staff with questions, are satisfied with the proposals. The Planning 
Commission Study Session provides a good forum to allow property owners to review maps and ask 
questions in a public forum. This outreach meeting may be combined with a General Plan public outreach 
meeting for cost savings. 

Deliverables: 

•  One Zoning Community Meeting 

•  Agenda, handout materials, exhibits, and visual aids for the Workshop 

Task 8.8: Planning Commission Study Sessions (Draft Development Code Review) 

Prior to formal public hearings on the Draft Code (which would be adopted concurrent with the General 
Plan under this Optional Task), we propose to conduct two workshops with the Planning Commission, 
with the public invited to attend and participate. These will be informal sessions that will allow the 
consultant team and City staff to present the draft Code and map to policy makers and the public, to 
highlight key revisions and new provisions, to discuss mixed-use and form-based provisions in a focused 
manner, to describe development review processes, and otherwise review important sections of the 
updated Code. We find this approach to be very helpful for the subsequent public hearing process. The 
Commission and public will have the opportunity to identify any issues they may have with draft Code 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 50 of 380



provisions during workshops and the staff/consultant team can prepare responses/ options to bring back 
to the Planning Commission as part of the formal public hearing process. These meetings may be 
combined with another General Plan public outreach meeting for cost savings.  MIG will be responsible 
for preparing all workshop materials. We will meet with staff prior to each workshop or series of 
workshops to coordinate presentation of the materials. City staff will be responsible for securing the 
venue and providing public outreach and required noticing. 

Deliverables: 

•  Two Planning Commission Study Session Meetings 

•  PowerPoint Presentation and visual aids for the study sessions 

Task 8.9: Final Development Code 

After the final City Council hearing on the updated Code and before its effective date, we will prepare a 
final version to incorporate all changes made by the City Council. We will provide a Screencheck version 
so that City staff can verify that the document accurately incorporates all changes approved by the City 
Council (including changes recommended by the Planning Commission and accepted by the Council) 
during the adoption process.  Because we cannot anticipate the scope of changes to be directed by the 
City Council, our budget includes a specific allowance for this task. Any work required beyond this 
allowance will be billed on a time-and-materials basis with prior authorization from the City. We will 
prepare the final Code and Zoning Map for delivery to the City for codification and publication. The team 
will provide a reproducible camera-ready copy of the adopted document and an electronic copy in 
Microsoft Word (for PC) and as a PDF. 

Deliverables: 

•  Screencheck Final Code and Map (PDF) 

•  Final Development Code and Map (Microsoft Word file, PDF and GIS data files; 20 printed copies

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 51 of 380



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

(SCHEDULE FOR DELIVERABLES) 

 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 52 of 380



Schedule  July 2015

 MIG Deliverable                                                      
© City Review 2105 2017
n Meeting/Workshop/Phone Calls Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Task 1: Project Kick-Off and Existing Conditions AnalysisProject Kickoff and Existing Conditions Analysis

1.1 Review of Background Documents/Project Kick-off and City Tour n

1.2 Base Mapping 

1.3 Existing Conditions Report  © 

Task 2: Community Outreach and Plan Framework DevelopmentCommunity Outreach and Plan Framework Development

2.1 Public Outreach and Engagement Plan 

2.2 Stakeholder Interviews 

2.4 Fact Sheet 

2.5 Community Survey  

2.6 General Plan Advisory Group  - GPAC (6) n n n n n n

2.7 Community Workshop - Values 

2.8 Community Workshops/Joint PC/CC Study Sessions (4) n n n n

2.9 City Commission Meetings (3) n n

Task 3: Policy FrameworkPolicyy Framework

3.1 General Plan Vision and Framework Document 

Task 4:  Draft General PlanDraft General Plan

4.1 General Plan Format and Structure 

4.2  Administrative Draft General Plan  ©

4.3
Public Review Draft General Plan



Task 5: Implementation and EvaluationCEQA Documentation

5.1 Initial Study, NOP and Scoping Meeting 

5.2 Draft EIR 

5.3 Final EIR and CEQA Support Documents (allowance) 

Task 6: CEQA Documentation Public Hearings, Adoption, and Final General Plan

6.1 Planning Commission Public Hearings (2) n

6.2 City Council Public Hearings (2) n

6.3 Final General Plan 

Task 7:  Public Hearings, Adoption, and Final General PlanProject Management

7.1 Project Coordination and Management

7.2
SB 18 and AB  52 Consultation Assistance n n

Task 8: CEQA Documentation Draft Development Code

8.1 Initial Development Code Strategy Meeting n

8.2 Stakeholder Interviews and Developers Roundtable n

8.3 Development Code Outline and Format 

8.4 Administrative Draft Development Code (in sections)  ©  ©  ©

8.5 Public Review Draft Development Code  \

8.6 Updated Zoning Map 

8.7 Focused Outreach for Rezoning n

8.8 Planning Commission Study Sessions (2) n

Public Hearings and EIR Addendum (not in scope)

8.9 Final Development Code n

2016

MIG, Inc. Walnut General Plan   Fee Proposal

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 53 of 380

mallen
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



 
 

 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

TO PROVIDE 
 

Professional Services 
For The Cudahy General Plan Update 

 
TO THE 

 
CITY OF CUDAHY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 54 of 380



IMPORTANT DATES 
 

 

 

 
 

 

RFP ISSUED March 20, 2015 

DEADLINE TO SUBMIT QUESTIONS 
 
PROPOSAL DUE DATE 

April 3, 2015 
 

April 24, 2015   
at 4:00 PM 

 
PROPOSALS ARE EVALUATED 

 
April 27, 2015 

 
NOTIFICATION OF TOP RANKED 
CONSULTANTS FOR ORAL INTERVIEW  
(If applicable) 
 

 
May 1, 2015 

EVALUATION COMMITTEE INTERVIEWS OF 
TOP RANKED CONSULTANTS  
(If applicable) 
  

May 4 – 8, 2015 

NOTIFICATION TO PREFERRED 
CONSULTANT 

May 19, 2015 

  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 55 of 380



Table of Contents 
 

I. INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................. 1 

II. BACKGROUND .................................................................................................... 1 

III. SCOPE OF WORK ............................................................................................... 2 

IV. GENERAL INFORMATION .................................................................................. 6 

V. TERMS AND CONDITIONS ............................................................................... 10 

VI. PROPOSAL CONTENT ..................................................................................... 12 

VII. SCOPE OF SERVICES ...................................................................................... 13 

VIII. EVALUATION PROCEDURES ........................................................................... 14 

IX. PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL ................................................................................... 15 

X. STAFF CONTACT .............................................................................................. 16 

APPENDIX A – Scope of Work ..................................................................................... 17 

APPENDIX B – Sample Contract .................................................................................. 21 

APPENDIX C – Summary Sheet ................................................................................... 39 

APPENDIX D – Certification of Acceptance and Proposal for Modification  .................. 40 

APPENDIX E – False Claims Form ............................................................................... 41 

APPENDIX F – Civil Litigation History ........................................................................... 44 

 

 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 56 of 380



City of Cudahy 

5220 Santa Ana, Cudahy, California 90201  
(323) 773-5143   Fax (323) 771-2072 

 

March 20, 2015 
General Plan Update 

Request for Proposals 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

The City of Cudahy (“City”) is requesting proposals from experienced land use 
consulting firms that are interested in preparing a comprehensive update to the City’s 
General Plan. The purpose of the project is to plan the City’s development for the next 
20 years. This update will include all associated environmental documents, including, 
but not limited to, an Initial Study, an Environmental Impact Report (EIR), and, if 
necessary, a Mitigation Monitoring or Reporting Program (MMRP) and the Findings of 
Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations (SOC). (An optional part of this update 
is also the preparation of a comprehensive update to the City’s Zoning Code) 
 
II. BACKGROUND 
 

Cudahy is located in Southeast Los Angeles County, next to the L.A. River. The City 
was incorporated on November 10, 1960 and named after its founder, meat-packing 
baron Michael Cudahy, who purchased the land known as Rancho San Antonio in 1908 
for development.  Cudahy is 1.1 square miles with a current population of 23,805.  The 
City is a general law city and operates under the council-manager form of government.  
 
The purpose of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to select a planning consultant 
capable of providing the necessary services to update and revise the Cudahy General 
Plan, to facilitate the coordination and planning of municipal services and development 
within the context of the General Plan and to use the plan to provide direction for growth 
of the City. The City completed an update to the General Plan in 2010, however the 
update primarily consisted of updating outdated information and minor modifications to 
the General Plan Land Use map. The last full comprehensive General Plan update took 
place in 1992. Because of this, the City Council and city staff have set out an ambitious 
work plan for the City’s next 20 years. The City is looking to the future and embracing 
innovative concepts such as sustainability, pedestrian friendly practices, complete 
streets, and strategies focused on increasing the capacity of its primary commercial 
corridor and related infrastructure to support residential and commercial growth city 
wide. The City is looking for a forward thinking consultant who can bring these concepts 
to reality. “Community” is important to the City and the ideal consultant or consulting 
team should be able to actively engage the public in a variety of ways to get input on 
critical issues, keep them updated on the process, and to educate them on issues and 
concepts. The City expects documents to be prepared in a format that is clear, concise, 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 57 of 380



and easy to read. We also expect that all documents are graphically driven, user-
friendly documents that will take advantage of current technology to the extent 
reasonably and practically possible.  
 
An optional component of this project is the preparation of a comprehensive update to 
the City’s zoning ordinance. The City is looking to create a deeper connection between 
the general plan and zoning code. We are looking for a consulting team that has a 
strong design background and can incorporate design and form based principles into 
the general plan and potentially into a new development code. 
 
Although an optional portion of this RFP, the City believes there is an advantage to one 
consultant preparing both the general plan and zoning code updates. 
 
III. SCOPE OF WORK  
 
The City is requesting that the consulting team prepare an update to the Cudahy 
General Plan except for the housing element. It is expected that the existing updated 
housing element will be folded into the new general plan document. While the general 
plan update will include the six of seven required elements (noise, safety, circulation, 
land use, open space, and conservation).  
 
The following describes specific components that should be included in the scope of 
work. However, the City is open to suggestions other than those listed here, which 
would be of value to producing a General Plan that reflects Cudahy’s unique nature. 
 

A. Work Program: 
Prepare a detailed work program for the General Plan update, including detailed 
schedules of dates and activities. In consideration to the City’s budget, it is the 
desire of the City to complete the entire process within two years. The work 
program shall include but not be limited to the following: 

a. Review existing data sources related to the City of Cudahy including the 
existing available economic data, planning studies, population and 
development trends, and related reports. Compile the necessary 
additional information to prepare the updated General Plan document. 
Conduct field surveys to determine existing land uses, existing building 
conditions, public infrastructure conditions, and other field surveys as 
required. 

b. Based upon the consultant’s research, analysis, and community input, a 
draft updated and revised General Plan shall be prepared which proposes 
policies, programs, realistic objectives standards and schedules to: 

i. Correct existing deficiencies 
ii. Guide the future development of the City of Cudahy 

c. The following mandatory/voluntary elements of the Cudahy General Plan 
shall be updated: 

i. Land Use, Circulation, Conservation, Open Space, Noise, and 
Safety. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 58 of 380



ii. Air Quality 
d. Develop a community participation program which should include 

facilitating meetings of a citizen’s General Plan committee and public 
workshops. The City considers this a key task in the update process. 

e. Public survey of at least 400 residents to identify issues of concern. 
Reports should be full-color and include the methodology, questions 
asked and findings. 

f. Prepare a general plan background report that identifies the current status 
of infrastructure capacity and other critical items. The background will 
inform the decisions of the General Plan Advisory Committee and the 
community as the general plan is prepared. 

g. Prepare a comprehensive update of the General Plan and required 
Environmental Impact Report. All existing elements are proposed to be 
updated except for the Housing Element.  

h. Prepare a fiscal analysis. The fiscal analysis should review the impacts of 
proposed policies to determine if there are sufficient funding sources to 
accommodate anticipated infrastructure and services associated with build 
out of the preferred alternative in the new General Plan and programs 
proposed in the General Plan.  

i. Staff anticipates the City Council will appoint a General Plan Advisory 
Committee of between approximately 5-10 people.  

j. The scope of work should also include a public survey to solicit public 
input from the community, the Planning Commission and City Council. 

k. Participate in public hearings before the Planning Commission and City 
Council. 

l. Consultation with interested Native American tribes as part of the General 
Plan Update process as required by SP 18.  

m. Provide electronic/digital copies of all work generated as it becomes 
available. 

n. Provide a General Plan “administrative proof document” to be used for 
reproduction and tracking updates. 

o. Provide an electronic/digital copy General Plan document (including 
maps). 

p. Integrate all elements into one General Plan document with uniform text 
layout and format. 

q. Work with staff to identify inconsistencies between the updated General 
Plan and the Municipal Code and recommend a list of programs to ensure 
consistency with General Plan goals and programs or to be implemented.  

r. Prepare a comprehensive update to the City’s Zoning Code (optional). 
 

B. General Plan Issues: 
In addition to the issues contained in the required seven elements of a general 
plan, the following are important issues (in no particular order) that need to be 
addressed in any new general plan: 

a. Overcrowding 
b. Excessive amounts of land area zoned for multiple-family developments 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 59 of 380



c. Aging commercial and industrial areas of the City 
d. Condition of the City’s infrastructure 

 
Additional attention shall be devoted to developing specific and achievable goals, 
objectives, and policies, programs, schedules, and standards for solving these 
problems. 

 
C. Current and Recently Completed Planning Initiatives: 

There are several planning studies that recently started, ongoing, or recently 
completed that need to be incorporated into any general plan document. 

a. City-wide Safe Routes to School Plan and Program 
b. Pedestrian Safety Assessment 
c. 2013 - 2021 Housing Element 
d. Strategic Planning Grant 

 
D. Tasks and Deliverables:  

Listen below is a list of expected tasks to be completed by the chosen consulting 
team along with the meetings and deliverables expected for each task. All 
deliverables shall also include an editable, digital copy. 
 
Task 1.0 – Project Coordination 
 Meetings 

1. Kickoff Meeting with Staff 
2. Monthly Coordination Meetings with Staff 
3. Monthly General Plan Advisory Committee Meetings 
4. Six Community-wide Workshops 
5. One meeting with each City Commission other than Planning Commission 

(3 meetings total) 
6. Three study sessions consisting of joint City Council/Planning Commission 

meetings 
 
Task 2.0 – General Plan Background 
Using the basic outline of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Checklist, the background report will identify environmental and infrastructure 
issues that need to be considered the new general plan. 
 
 Deliverables: 

1. Five copies of Resident Survey Report 
2. Fifteen copies of General Plan Background Report. 

 
Task 3.0 – Preparation of the General Plan 
 Meetings: 

1. Two Planning Commission hearings 
2. Two City Council hearings 

Deliverables: 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 60 of 380



1. Three copies of Administrative Draft General Plan and Technical Reports 
(2 rounds of reviews) 

2. Twenty copies of Draft General Plan for Planning Commission and City 
Council Hearings 

 
Task 4.0 – Preparation of Environmental Documentation 
Meetings: 

1. Kickoff Meeting for Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
2. Scoping Meeting 

 
Deliverables: 

3. Three copies of the Notice of Preparation (NOP) and Initial Study 
4. Three copies of Administrative Draft EIR (2 rounds of reviews) 
5. Twenty copies of Draft EIR for Public Hearings 
6. Notice of Availability for Draft EIR 
7. Distribution list for Initial Study, NOP, and EIR 
8. Three copies of Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) (2 

rounds of reviews) 
9. Three copies of Draft Response to Comments and Final EIR (2 rounds of 

reviews) 
10. Three copies of Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding 

Considerations (2 rounds of reviews) 
11. Twenty copies of Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding 

Considerations for City Council Hearings 
12. Twenty copies of Response to Comments for City Council Hearings 
13. Twenty copies of MMRP for City Council Hearings 
14. Twenty copies of Final EIR 
15. Three copies of Notice of Determination 

 
 
Task 5.0 – Preparation of Final General Plan 
 Deliverables: 

1. Twenty copies Final General Plan 
 
Task 6.0 – Preparation of Development Code (Optional) 
The City is interested in creating a deeper connection between the general plan 
and development code and desires to incorporate design policies into a code that 
is design based, not use based.  
 Meetings:  

1. Kickoff Meeting with Staff for Development Code 
2. Monthly Coordination Meetings with Staff 
3. Two Community-wide workshops 
4. Three study sessions consisting of joint City Council/Planning Commission 

meetings 
5. Two Planning Commission meetings 
6. Two City Council meetings 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 61 of 380



 
Deliverables: 

1. Five copies Administrative Draft Development Code (2 rounds of reviews) 
2. Twenty copies of Draft Development Code for public hearings 
3. Twenty copies Final Development Code 

 
 
IV. PROPOSAL SCHEDULE  
 

RFP ISSUED March 20, 2015 
DEADLINE TO SUBMIT QUESTIONS 
 
PROPOSAL DUE DATE 

April 3, 2015 
 

April 24, 2015   
at 4:00 PM 

 
PROPOSALS ARE EVALUATED 

 
April 27, 2015 

 
NOTIFICATION OF TOP RANKED CONSULTANTS FOR 
ORAL INTERVIEW (If applicable) 
 

 
May 1, 2015 

EVALUATION COMMITTEE INTERVIEWS OF TOP 
RANKED CONSULTANTS (If applicable) 
  

May 4 – 8, 2015 

NOTIFICATION TO PREFERRED CONSULTANT May 19, 2015 
 
IV. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

The City seeks proposals from experienced land use consulting firms that are interested 
in preparing a comprehensive update to the City’s General Plan (“Project”). The City will 
select one qualifying firm to provide the services as defined in the Scope of Services 
section of this RFP.  
 

A. Period of Performance – The City desires to award a contract with a term of 
two (2) years and with the ability to extend the term of the agreement for a 
maximum of one (1) one-year extension term in the sole and absolute 
discretion of the City based on a multiplicity of factors, including but not 
limited to performance. City also requires that any agreement be structured in 
a manner so as to permit City to terminate the agreement prior to the 
expiration of the two-year initial term or any extension term to respond to 
changing economic conditions, changes in the law and/or judicial 
interpretations of the law which may impact the City’s ability to contract-out 
such services.   
 

B. Proposal Validity – The Proposer’s pricing shall be valid for a minimum of 90 
days. 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 62 of 380



C. Request for Information – Questions regarding this RFP are for clarification 
purposes only and are to be directed by e-mail to: Michael Allen, Acting 
Community Development Director, at mallen@cityofcudahyca.gov. The 
deadline to submit questions will be April 3, 2015.  
 

D. Submission Deadline – Proposals must be received, in a sealed envelope 
with the words “Request for Proposal – General Plan Update” clearly 
labeled along with the name and address of the firm, by the Office of the City 
Clerk by 4:00 pm on April 24, 2015.  The submitted packet shall include three 
(3) copies of the proposal. 

 
E. Late Submittals – It is strongly recommended that proposals be delivered in-

person or via personal courier by or before the submission deadline. 
Proposals received after the specified submission deadline will be disqualified 
and not considered. Proposals postmarked prior to the applicable deadline 
date but received after the deadline will also be disqualified and not 
considered. Proposers are responsible to ensure the timely submission of 
their proposal.  Proposals may not be submitted by via facsimile or electronic 
mail.  

 
F. Withdrawal or Modifications – A proposal may be withdrawn or changed by 

a written and signed request by the firm prior to the final deadline. If firms do 
not make this request before the final deadline, the firm shall be obligated to 
fulfill the terms of their proposal as submitted.  In the event a proposer seeks 
to withdraw and modify a proposal, the modified proposal must be submitted 
before the applicable submission deadline. 
 

G. Addenda – In the event that any portion of this RFP is changed, the City will 
provide addenda via fax or e-mail to all firms who have received an RFP. The 
signed addenda must be included with the RFP submittal. Submittals 
received without the applicable addenda may be rejected as incomplete. 

 
H. Responsiveness – All submittals will be reviewed by the City to determine 

compliance with all requirements and instructions as specified in the RFP. 
Firms are notified that failure to comply with any part of the RFP may result in 
the rejection of the submittal as non-responsive. 

 
The City also reserves the right, at its sole and absolute discretion to waive 
minor administrative irregularities or errors. 
 

I. Costs – The City will not be liable for any costs incurred by the Proposer in 
preparing and responding to this RFP. The Proposer shall not include any 
pre-contractual expenses as part of the proposed cost. 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 63 of 380



J. Legal Authorization – All forms and documentation included in this RFP 
must be signed and dated by a person authorized to legally bind the Proposer 
to a contractual relationship with the City.  
 

K. Conflict of Interest – Proposer is required to issue a brief statement 
disclosing potentially conflicting interests including: 
 
a. Any litigation involving the Proposer or the Proposer’s personnel  which is 

adverse to the City; and 
 

b. Consulting services currently being provided or provided within the last 
four years to any person, corporation, partnership, or other entity that 
made application to the City for a discretionary land use entitlement or City 
project. 

 
L. Rejection of Submittals – The City reserves the right at its sole discretion to 

reject any and all submittals received without penalty as result of this RFP. 
 
a. A proposal may be immediately rejected if: 

 
i. It contains misrepresentative or misleading information; 

 
ii. It is received at any time after the exact date and time set for receipt of 

proposals; 
 

iii. It does not meet the required specifications or terms and conditions as 
prescribed; 

 
iv. It is not prepared in the format outlined in this RFP; 

 
v. It is signed by an individual not authorized to represent the Proposer; 

 
vi. Proposer is involved in outstanding litigation that could impinge on its 

ability to complete the responsibilities and obligations of the proposal; 
 

vii. Any other reason in the City’s sole and absolute discretion.  
  

M. No Guarantee of Contract – No guarantee is made that any contract will 
be awarded in response to this RFP.  
 

N. Insurance Coverage – If a Proposer is selected, all insurance 
documentation will be provided to the City prior to the execution of a 
contract at the expense of the Proposer. All insurance requirements are 
included as a provision of the contract. 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 64 of 380



O. Sub-consultants – Proposer shall identify any sub-consultants and 
describe the responsibilities that will be assigned to them. The same level 
of references and background information required for Proposers shall be 
required of sub-consultants. 

 
P. Acceptance of Conditions – Proposer shall include a statement offering 

the acceptance of all conditions listed in the RFP document (including, but 
not limited to, all the conditions reflected in the sample Professional 
Services Agreement) which shall be submitted with the proposal. 

 
Q. Public Record – All proposals submitted in response to this RFP will 

become the property of the City upon submission and a matter of public 
record pursuant to applicable law.  City reserves the right to make copies 
of all proposals available for inspection and copying by interested 
members of the public as records of the City and City shall be under no 
obligation to the Proposer to withhold such records.  In so far as a 
proposal contains information that the Proposer regards as proprietary 
and confidential, it shall be the responsibility of the Proposer (and not the 
City) to specifically identify which items of information are proprietary and 
clearly identify in writing which specific pieces of information are 
proprietary.  It shall be insufficient for the Proposer to merely identify the 
entire proposal or an entire page or set of pages of proprietary.   With 
respect to information deemed proprietary, the procedures set forth under 
subsection (T) below shall be observed.  Not-to-exceed sums, hourly rates 
and the like that may be set forth in a proposal shall not constitute 
proprietary information nor shall any information readily available to the 
general public or any other information not regarded as proprietary and 
confidential under federal or state law. 

 
R. Right to Request Additional Information – During the evaluation 

process the City reserves the right, where it may serve the City’s best 
interest, to request additional information or clarifications from Proposers, 
or to allow corrections of errors or omissions.  At the discretion of the City, 
firms submitting proposals may be requested to make oral presentations 
as part of the evaluation process.  

 
S. Additional Services – The Scope of Work describes the minimum 

baseline level of services required for the services contemplated under 
this RFP, however, cost-effective proposals that exceed the minimum 
levels of service are welcome.  Upon final selection of the firm, the Scope 
of Work may be modified and refined during negotiations with the City to 
account for the performance of services that exceed the baseline level 
called for under this RFP. 

 
T. Conflict of Interest - By signing the Agreement, the successful Proposer 

declares and warrants that no elected or appointed official, officer or 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 65 of 380



employee of the City has been or shall be compensated, directly or 
indirectly, in connection with the award of the Agreement or any work for 
the proposed project.  For the term of the Agreement, no elected or 
appointed official, officer or employee of the City, during the term of 
his/her service with the City and for two (2) years following his/her 
termination of office or employment with the City, shall have any direct 
interest in the Agreement, or obtain any present, anticipated or future 
material benefit arising therefrom. 
 

U. Confidential Information -  City reserves the right to make copies of a 
Proposer’s proposal available for inspection and copying by members of 
the public, (including proposals which may contain information the 
Proposer regards as proprietary in nature), unless the City’s legal counsel 
determines that the information which the Proposer regards as proprietary 
may be withheld pursuant to applicable provisions of the California Public 
Records Act (Govt. Code Section 6250 et seq.) or other applicable state or 
federal law.    In the event City proposes to disclose records containing 
information the Proposer has specifically identified as being proprietary 
and confidential, City shall notify the Proposer in writing of its intent to 
release such information and the Proposer shall have five (5) working 
days after City’s issuance of its notice to give City written notice of 
Proposer’s objection to the City’s release of proprietary information.  City 
will not release the proprietary information after receipt of the objection 
notice from the Proposer unless:  (i) the objection notice is not received by 
the City until after the close of business on the 5th day following City’s 
issuance of the notice of intent to disclose; (iii) ordered to release the 
information by a court of competent jurisdiction; or (iii) the Proposer’s 
objection notice fails to include a fully executed indemnification agreement 
wherein the Proposer agrees indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 
City, and its elected and appointed officials, officers, directors, employees 
and agents from and against all liability, loss, cost or expense (including 
attorneys’ fees) arising out of any legal action brought to compel the 
release of records containing the proprietary information which the 
Proposer wishes to withhold. Again, the Proposer must specifically identify 
the information it deems proprietary.  

  
V. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A. Certification            
By submitting a proposal, Proposer certifies that it has fully read and 
understands this RFP and has full knowledge of the nature, scope and scale 
of services and tasks that are to be performed under this RFP.  Proposer also 
certifies that its proposal was prepared without prior understanding, 
agreement or connection with any other Proposer submitting a proposal from 
this RFP, and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud, so that all 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 66 of 380



proposals will result from free, open and competitive proposing among all 
Proposers.   

 
B. Reserving Rights           

The City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received as a result 
of this RFP. City’s potential award of a contract will not be based on any 
single factor nor will it be based solely or exclusively on the lowest cost 
proposal.   If a contract is awarded, it will be awarded to the proposer who in 
the judgment of the City has presented an optimal balance of relevant 
experience, technical expertise, technological innovation, price, quality of 
service, work history and other factors which the City may consider relevant 
and important in determining which proposal is best for the City.   

 
C. Assignment and Guarantee          

No assignment by the Proposer of the contract or any part thereof, or of funds 
to be received hereunder, is binding unless the City has given written consent 
before such assignment.  There is also no guarantee of a minimal amount of 
work or compensation for any Proposer selected for contract negotiations.   

 
D. Financial Responsibility for Proposal Costs       

The City accepts no financial responsibility for any costs incurred by the 
Proposer in responding to this RFP.  Proposals will become the property of 
the City and may be used by the City in any way deemed appropriate.  
Received proposals will not be returned to the Proposer. 

     
E. Clarification          

Should discrepancies or omissions be found in this RFP or should there be a 
need to clarify this RFP, questions or comments should be emailed to Angela 
Bustamante, City Clerk, at abustamonte@cityofcudahyca.gov.  The City shall 
not be responsible for, nor be bound by, any oral instructions, interpretations 
or explanations issued by the City. 

 
F. Discrimination           

The Proposer and all subcontractors must not discriminate, nor permit 
discrimination against any person on the grounds of race, national origin, sex, 
handicap, sexual orientation, or veteran status in their employment practices, 
in any of their contractual arrangements, in all services and accommodations 
they offer the public or in their business operations. 

 
G. Indemnification            

Proposer, at its own expense and without exception, shall indemnify, defend 
and pay all damages, costs, expenses, including attorney fees, and otherwise 
hold harmless the City, its employees and agents from any liability of any 
nature or kind in regard to the preparation or presentation of a proposal in 
response to this RFP.   
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 67 of 380



 
H. Gratuity Prohibition          

Proposer shall not offer any gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value to 
any official, employee or agent of the City for the purpose of influencing 
consideration of this proposal.   

 
VI. PROPOSAL CONTENT 
 

The RFP must provide information in the same order as presented in this document.  
 

A. General Overview/Cover Letter – Introduction of the firm including a general 
description of the firm’s qualifications and experience, with emphasis on 
previous projects similar to the one proposed here. Along with introductory 
remarks, the proposal shall include the following information: 

 
a. Name, address, principal place of business, telephone number, and fax 

number/e-mail address of legal entity with which contract would be written. 
 

b. Name, title, address, e-mail address, and telephone number of each 
principal officer. 

 
c. Legal status of the firm (partnership, corporation, etc.) and the year the 

entity was organized to do business as the entity now substantially exists. 
 

d. Documentation on the financial status of the firm to ensure the firm will 
continue in business through the contract period and finance the costs of 
adequate personnel and other support requirements. 

 
B. Organizational Information – Proposer will include an organizational chart, 

resumes, and certifications for the firm that clearly demonstrates their 
abilities, skill level, and experience to accomplish the required tasks. 

 
C. Previous Experience – Proposer will provide a minimum of five (5) examples 

of comparable work in the last five years which best demonstrates the 
qualifications and ability of the proposed team to accomplish the work as 
outlined in the Scope of Services section of this RFP. A minimum of three (3) 
references and maximum of five (5) references shall be provided. Information 
submitted shall include the name of the client with current address, telephone 
number, e-mail address, and contact person for each reference. The City 
reserves the right to contact any of the listed references at any time and make 
any other reasonable investigation into the consultant’s background and 
experience. 

 
D. Procedures and Methodology – The Proposer should demonstrate their 

understanding of the needs of the City and the objectives of the work 
proposed. Proposal shall provide a detailed description of the firm’s proposed 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 68 of 380



approach demonstrating how the objectives will be accomplished as outlined 
in the Scope of Work.  

 
E. Proposed Staffing and Project Team - This section should establish 

qualifications and experience of staff that will be assigned to this City. Also, 
identify key personnel to be assigned and their qualifications and experience 
(detailed). 
 

F. Other Information to Include 
 Education, experience, applicable professional credentials of project staff 

that will be assigned to City 

 Provide the identity of key personnel proposed: person’s name, current 
location, proposed position, current assignment, level of commitment, and 
how long each person has been with the firm 

 A statement that key personnel will be available for the duration of the 
scope of services and acknowledgement that no person designated as 
key personnel shall be removed or replaced without the prior written 
notification to the City. 

 It is important that key personnel proposed have the background, 
experience and qualifications to properly perform the work detailed in the 
scope of services 

 

G. Insurance - Provide a copy of the firm’s current insurance certificates. 
 

H. Fee - Proposal Sheet with hourly rates of all staff levels anticipated to match the 
scope of services. Scope of Services broken into task and work to be completed 
as part of each task including a timeline. 
 

I. Compensation Plan – Compensation will be based on task (milestone) 
completion. Consistent with the tasks and timeline of the project, provide a 
breakdown of tasks, timeline, and cost associated with each.  Upon completion 
or percentage of completion of an associated task, the City will process invoices 
accordingly. 

 
J. Quality Control – The Proposer shall describe the firm’s policies and procedures 

for assuring high quality work, including monitoring of any proposed sub-
contracts. 

 
VII. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The Consultant shall include in its proposal a detailed scope of work and understanding 

of the process to undertake such projects and complete it in compliance with all 

applicable rules, regulations, standards and requirements.  

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 69 of 380



A detailed schedule showing tasks, milestones, and anticipated public meetings should 

also be included showing a clear timeline, critical path that leads to a final approved 

project. 

 

The scope of work shall indicate the tasks/actions the consultant expects City to 

perform/take; and the schedule shall show critical path items that are dependent of 

City’s actions.  

VIII. EVALUATION PROCEDURES 
 

A. Selection Committee 
Proposals submitted will be evaluated by City staff, which shall be selected by 
the City Manager. 

 
B. Review of Proposals 

City staff will use a point formula during the review process to individually 
score Proposals, as outlined in Section C below, “Proposal Evaluation 
Criteria.”  City staff will then be convened to review and discuss the 
evaluations and combine the individual scores to arrive at an average 
composite score for each firm.  Firms that do not meet the “Mandatory 
Elements” listed in Section C1 below will be eliminated from further 
consideration. 
 
After the composite Project Proposal score for each firm has been established 
based upon the “Qualitative Evaluation” criteria listed in C2, the firms with the 
three (3) highest score may be recommended by the Acting Community 
Development Director to participate in an oral presentation/interview with the 
Selection Committee as outlined below.   

 
C. Project Proposal Evaluation Criteria 

Proposals will be evaluated using two (2) sets of criteria.  Firms meeting the 
mandatory elements will have their proposals evaluated and scored.  The 
following represent the principal selection criteria which will be considered 
during the evaluation process.  City reserves the right to select any firm that 
submits a complete and timely proposal notwithstanding the firms overall 
score in relation to other firms.  

 
1. Mandatory Elements  

 
a. The firm is an independent contractor properly licensed to practice in 

California. 
 

b. The firm has no conflict of interest with regard to any other work 
performed by the firm for the City. 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 70 of 380



c. The firm adheres to the instructions in this RFP on preparing and 
submitting the proposal. 

 
2. Qualitative Evaluation (Maximum Point = 100) 

 
a. Experience and Performance (50 Points): 

 
i. The firm’s past experience and performance on specific 

government engagements (i.e. references). 
 

ii. Distinguishing features, skill and/or services (These may include 
demonstrated experience of the assigned staff to the project). 

 
iii. Firm’s statement on why it believes itself to be best qualified 

(cover letter). 
 

b. Ability to complete work in a timely manner and references (25 points) 
 

c. Cost/Value to City (and/or applicants) (25 points) 
 

i. Reasonable rate for Project services 
 

ii. Ability to stay within budget. 
 

3. Oral presentation/interview (At the option of the City) 
The Proposers with the three highest combined scores should expect to 
be interviewed by the City staff on the date listed in the RFP. Upon 
completion of the interviews and negotiation of compensation, and/or 
terms and conditions a contract shall be prepared and submitted to the 
City Council for approval. 

 
IX. PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL 
 

Three (3) hard copies of the proposal shall be presented in an envelope or package. 
Hard copies should be bound and include the name of the Proposer and the title “City of 
Cudahy General Plan Update RFP.” The envelope of package shall bear the name, 
address, and telephone number of the individual or entity submitting the proposal and 
shall be addressed as follows: 
 

Office of the City Clerk 
City of Cudahy 

5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 

 
Proposals can be hand delivered or mailed to the address listed above. Proposals 
will not be accepted by fax or e-mail. 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 71 of 380



The proposal shall be delivered to the above address on or before 4:00 P.M. on 
April 24, 2015. 
 
X. STAFF CONTACT 
 

For inquiries, please contact Michael Allen at (323) 773-5143 or email at 
mallen@cityofcudahyca.gov 
Issued by: 
CITY OF CUDAHY 
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 
 
____________________________  
Jose E. Pulido 
City Manager 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 72 of 380



APPENDIX A 
 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 73 of 380



 
 
 

A. Work Program: 
Prepare a detailed work program for the General Plan update, including detailed 
schedules of dates and activities. In consideration to the City’s budget, it is the 
desire of the City to complete the entire process within two years. The work 
program shall include but not be limited to the following: 

a. Review existing data sources related to the City of Cudahy including the 
existing available economic data, planning studies, population and 
development trends, and related reports. Compile the necessary 
additional information to prepare the updated General Plan document. 
Conduct field surveys to determine existing land uses, existing building 
conditions, public infrastructure conditions, and other field surveys as 
required. 

b. Based upon the consultant’s research, analysis, and community input, a 
draft updated and revised General Plan shall be prepared which proposes 
policies, programs, realistic objectives standards and schedules to: 

i. Correct existing deficiencies 
ii. Guide the future development of the City of Cudahy 

c. The following mandatory/voluntary elements of the Cudahy General Plan 
shall be updated: 

i. Land Use, Circulation, Conservation, Open Space, Noise, and 
Safety. 

ii. Air Quality 
d. Develop a community participation program which should include 

facilitating meetings of a citizen’s General Plan committee and public 
workshops. The City considers this a key task in the update process. 

e. Public survey of at least 400 residents to identify issues of concern. 
Reports should be full-color and include the methodology, questions 
asked and findings. 

f. Prepare a general plan background report that identifies the current status 
of infrastructure capacity and other critical items. The background will 
inform the decisions of the General Plan Advisory Committee and the 
community as the general plan is prepared. 

g. Prepare a comprehensive update of the General Plan and required 
Environmental Impact Report. All existing elements are proposed to be 
updated except for the Housing Element.  

h. Prepare a fiscal analysis. The fiscal analysis should review the impacts of 
proposed policies to determine if there are sufficient funding sources to 
accommodate anticipated infrastructure and services associated with build 
out of the preferred alternative in the new General Plan and programs 
proposed in the General Plan.  

i. Staff anticipates the City Council will appoint a General Plan Advisory 
Committee of between approximately 5-10 people.  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 74 of 380



j. The scope of work should also include a public survey to solicit public 
input from the community, the Planning Commission and City Council. 

k. Participate in public hearings before the Planning Commission and City 
Council. 

l. Consultation with interested Native American tribes as part of the General 
Plan Update process as required by SP 18.  

m. Provide electronic/digital copies of all work generated as it becomes 
available. 

n. Provide a General Plan “administrative proof document” to be used for 
reproduction and tracking updates. 

o. Provide an electronic/digital copy General Plan document (including 
maps). 

p. Integrate all elements into one General Plan document with uniform text 
layout and format. 

q. Work with staff to identify inconsistencies between the updated General 
Plan and the Municipal Code and recommend a list of programs to ensure 
consistency with General Plan goals and programs or to be implemented.  

r. Prepare a comprehensive update to the City’s Zoning Code (optional). 
 

B. General Plan Issues: 
In addition to the issues contained in the required seven elements of a general 
plan, the following are important issues (in no particular order) that need to be 
addressed in any new general plan: 

s. Overcrowding 
t. Excessive amounts of land area zoned for multiple-family developments 
u. Aging commercial and industrial areas of the City 
v. Condition of the City’s infrastructure 

 
Additional attention shall be devoted to developing specific and achievable goals, 
objectives, and policies, programs, schedules, and standards for solving these 
problems. 

 
C. Current and Recently Completed Planning Initiatives: 

There are several planning studies that recently started, ongoing, or recently 
completed that need to be incorporated into any general plan document. 

w. City-wide Safe Routes to School Plan and Program 
x. Pedestrian Safety Assessment 
y. 2013 - 2021 Housing Element 
z. Strategic Planning Grant 

 
D. Tasks and Deliverables:  

Listen below is a list of expected tasks to be completed by the chosen consulting 
team along with the meetings and deliverables expected for each task. All 
deliverables shall also include an editable, digital copy. 
 
Task 1.0 – Project Coordination 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 75 of 380



 
Task 2.0 – General Plan Background 
 
Task 3.0 – Preparation of the General Plan 
 
Task 4.0 – Preparation of Environmental Documentation 
 
Task 5.0 – Preparation of Final General Plan 
 
Task 6.0 – Preparation of Development Code (Optional) 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 76 of 380



APPENDIX B 
 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 
 

SAMPLE CONTRACT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 77 of 380



 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
([Replace w/ Name of Consultant - Replace w/ Brief Description of Engagement] ) 

     
THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into this ___________day of _________________ 20______  (hereinafter, the 
“Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF CUDAHY, a municipal corporation 
(“CITY”) and [____REPLACE WITH NAME OF CONSULTANT____], a [___REPLACE 
WITH TYPE OF ENTITY, E.G., CORPORATION? PARTNERSHIP? SOLE 
PROPRIETORSHIP? ETC.____] (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of 
this Agreement CITY and  CONSULTANT may be referred to collectively by the 
capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY or 
CONSULTANT interchangeably.  
 
WHEREAS, CITY wishes to engage CONSULTANT to provide the following specialized 
services:__________________________; and 
 
WHEREAS, CITY’s in-house personnel is presently unable to perform the specialized 
services and tasks contemplated under this Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, CONSULTANT possesses the specialized training, skill, expertise and 
experience required to perform the services contemplated under this Agreement; and 
  
WHEREAS, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the various services and tasks set forth 
under this Agreement subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
herein contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  
 

I. 
ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

 
1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT 
agrees to perform the services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Scope of Services”).  CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish 
to CITY all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and 
incidental and customary work necessary to competently perform and timely 
complete the services and tasks set forth in the Scope of Services.  For the 
purposes of this Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks set forth in 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 78 of 380



the Scope of Services shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the capitalized 
term “Work.”    
 

1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of [___REPLACE TEXT WITH TERM 
PERIOD:  X# of  DAYS? MONTHS? YEARS?] commencing from [_REPLACE 
TEXT WITH START DATE OF TERM:  CAN BE EITHER the “EFFECTIVE 
DATE”? SOME OTHER DATE?].  [OPTIONAL LANGUAGE:  Upon the 
conclusion of the Term, this Agreement shall renew automatically for a maximum 
of [_MAXIMUM NUMBER OF EXTENSION TERMS AND MAXIMUM DURATION 
OF EACH SUCH EXTENSION TERM.  EDITOR’S NOTE:  IT IS 
RECOMMENDED THAT ANY INDIVIDUAL EXTENSION TERM NOT EXCEED 
ONE YEAR IN DURATION AND THAT THE TOTAL NUMBER OF EXTENSION 
TERMS NOT EXCEED A MAXIMUM OF TWO YEARS BEYOND THE END OF 
THE INITIAL TERM] …….., unless CITY issues written notice of its intent not to 
authorize an additional extension term(s).   Nothing in this Section shall operate 
to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement at 
any time for convenience or for cause. 
 

1.3 COMPENSATION:    
 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the 
Scope of Services in accordance with the compensation schedule which is 
[_____THIS LANGUAGE MAY VARY DEPENDING ON THE LOCATION OF 
ANY APPLICABLE COMPENSATION SCHEDULE – SOME SCHEDULES 
ARE EMBEDDED IN THE SCOPE OF SERVICES WHILE OTHERS CAN BE 
FOUND IN A SEPARATE STAND-ALONE SCHEDULE WHICH SHOULD BE 
ATTACHED AS AN EXHIBIT TO THE AGREEMENT______] (hereinafter, the 
“Approved Rate Schedule”).     
 

B. Section 1.3(A) notwithstanding, CONSULTANT’s total compensation during 
the Term of this Agreement or any extension term shall not exceed the 
budgeted aggregate sum of [___REPLACE WITH NOT-TO-EXCEED 
SUM____] (hereinafter, the “Not-to-Exceed Sum”), unless such added 
expenditure is first approved by the CITY acting in consultation with the  
Superintendent and the Director of Fiscal Services.  In the event 
CONSULTANT’s charges are projected to exceed the Not-to-Exceed Sum 
prior to the expiration of the Term or any single extension term, CITY may 
suspend CONSULTANT’s performance pending CITY approval of any 
anticipated expenditures in excess of the Not-to-Exceed Sum or any other 
CITY-approved amendment to the compensation terms of this Agreement.  

 
1.4 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: Reserved; No text.  
 
1.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and 

accurate records with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a 
period of three (3) years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 79 of 380



CITY shall have the right to access and examine such records, without charge, 
during normal business hours.  CITY shall further have the right to audit such 
records, to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect all program data, 
documents, proceedings, and activities.  

 
1.6 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to 

perform the Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the 
undertaking contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior 
to completion of any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, 
CONSULTANT shall deliver to CITY immediately and without delay, all materials, 
records and other work product prepared or obtained by CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, CONSULTANT shall only be 
compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks and other work 
performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction for any 
damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of 
CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

 
II. 

PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 
 

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the Superintendent 
and [____REPLACE WITH TITLE OF CITY REPRESENTATIVE WHO WILL BE 
ENGAGED IN THE DAY-TO-DAY ADMINISTRATION OF THE 
CONTRACT_______] (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as its 
representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  The Superintendent shall 
be the chief CITY Representative.  The CITY Representatives or their designee 
shall act on behalf of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  
CONSULTANT shall not accept directions or orders from any person other than 
the CITY Representatives or their designee. 
 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates 
[__INSERT NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON WHO IS CONSULTANT 
REPRESENTATIVE FOR PURPOSES OF CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATION________]  to act as its representative for the performance of 
this Agreement (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT 
Representative shall have full authority to represent and act on behalf of the 
CONSULTANT for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT 
Representative or his designee shall supervise and direct the performance of the 
Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all means, 
methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory 
coordination of all portions of the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the 
CONSULTANT Representative shall constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  
 

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  
CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the 
Work and this Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 80 of 380



Representatives at all reasonable times. All work prepared by CONSULTANT 
shall be subject to inspection and approval by CITY Representatives or their 
designees. 
 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT 
represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

 
A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the 

highest standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 
 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory 
to the CITY; 
 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
laws and regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of 
Government Code Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act 
(Government Code Section 81000 et seq.); 

 
D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be 

performed under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of 
performance;  
 

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, 
knowledge, training and experience to perform those services and tasks 
assigned to them by CONSULTANT; and 

 
F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited 

subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, 
certificates, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are 
legally required to perform the tasks and services contemplated under this 
Agreement and all such licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and 
approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement and 
made available to CITY for copying and inspection. 
 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at 
CONSULTANT’s own cost and expense and without any reimbursement 
from CITY, any services necessary to correct any errors or omissions 
caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the standard of care set 
forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of 
CONSULTANT’s employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and 
subconsultants.   Such effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or 
omissions shall be commenced immediately upon their discovery by either 
Party and shall be completed within seven (7) calendars days from the 
date of discovery or such other extended period of time authorized by the 
CITY Representatives in writing and in their sole and absolute discretion. 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 81 of 380



performed by CONSULTANT or on CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not 
constitute a release of any deficiency or delay in performance. The Parties 
further acknowledge, understand and agree that CITY has relied upon the 
foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to 
the representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, 
knowledge and experience necessary to perform the Work skillfully, 
competently and to the highest standards of CONSULTANT’s profession. 

 
2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT 

are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, 
CITY has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who 
will perform the services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on 
behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of 
this interest, CONSULTANT agrees that it shall not assign or transfer, either 
directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this Agreement or the performance of 
any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior written consent, 
any attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void and shall 
constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  
 

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT 
CONTRACTOR: The Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under 
CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, 
methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requirements of this 
Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an independent contractor basis 
and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right to perform similar or 
different services for other principals during the term of this Agreement, provided 
such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s competent and timely 
performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and provided the 
performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure of 
CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel 
performing the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not 
employees of CITY and shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive 
direction and control.  CONSULTANT shall pay all wages, salaries and other 
amounts due such personnel and shall assume responsibility for all benefits, 
payroll taxes, Social Security and Medicare payments and the like.  
CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting 
such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security taxes, 
income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ 
compensation insurance and the like. 
 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined 
by the CITY Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 
adequate or timely performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat 
to persons or property, or if any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 82 of 380



contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work 
in a manner acceptable to the CITY, such officer, employee, agent, contractor, 
subcontractor or subconsultant shall be promptly removed by CONSULTANT 
and shall not be re-assigned to perform any of the Work. 
   

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in 
compliance with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws 
control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s 
compliance with applicable laws shall include without limitation compliance with 
all applicable Cal/OSHA requirements.   

 
2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT 

shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or 
applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental 
disability or medical condition. 
 

2.10 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, 
understand and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed 
by CONSULTANT are, and shall at all times remain, wholly independent 
contractors and are not officials, officers, employees, departments or 
subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for the 
negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors and subconsultants. CONSULTANT and all persons retained or 
employed by CONSULTANT shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind 
CITY in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on 
behalf of, or against, CITY, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such 
authority is expressly conferred to CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is 
otherwise expressly conferred by CITY in writing. 

 

 
III. 

INSURANCE 
 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of 
and throughout the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and 
maintain polices of insurance that meet the requirements and specifications set 
forth under this Article. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain the following 
insurance coverage, at its own expense: 
 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and 

maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad 
as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage 
(occurrence Form CG 0001) or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall 
have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per 
occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 83 of 380



for bodily injury, personal injury, property damage, operations, products and 
completed operations, and contractual liability. 
 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form 
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such 
Automobile Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage.  
 

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:   A policy 
of workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with 
the laws of the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and 
provide legal defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, 
claim or damage arising from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring 
to any worker employed by or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the 
course of carrying out the Work contemplated in this Agreement. 
 

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a 
period of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and 
maintain Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to 
CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such coverage shall have minimum limits of no 
less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and shall be 
endorsed to include contractual liability.   

   

3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the 
Automobile Liability Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY 
and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers as additional insureds.  
 

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this 
Agreement shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and 
authorized to issue policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise 
provided elsewhere under this Article, all required insurance shall be procured 
from insurers who, according to the latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, 
have an A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII.   CITY may also accept policies 
procured by insurance carriers with a Standard & Poor’s rating of no less than 
BBB according to the latest published edition the Standard & Poor’s rating guide.  
As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance, the 
CITY Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings than those set 
forth in this Section.   
 

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All polices of insurance provided 
by CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s 
elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 84 of 380



officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of 
CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.  
 

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, 
employees, agents, subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of 
subrogation prior to a loss.  CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of 
subrogation against CITY.  

 
3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands 

and agrees, that CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the 
insurance required under this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial 
well-being and, indirectly, the collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  
Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, represents and agrees that its shall 
furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing 
the coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory to CITY in its sole 
and absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and endorsements for 
each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by 
the CITY if requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be 
received and approved by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s 
commencement of any work or any of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, 
CONSULTANT shall also provide CITY with certified copies of all required 
insurance policies and endorsements.   

 
IV. 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 
4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 

employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, 
to the fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, 
damage, claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any 
other cost arising out of or in any way related to the performance of this 
Agreement. Accordingly, the provisions of this indemnity provision are intended 
by the Parties to be interpreted and construed to provide the CITY Indemnitees 
with the fullest protection possible under the law. CONSULTANT acknowledges 
that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in the absence of CONSULTANT’s 
commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY as set forth herein. 

 
4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, 
damage, expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of 
or in connection with CONSULTANT’s performance of work hereunder or its 
failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 85 of 380



such loss or damage which is caused by the sole negligence or willful 
misconduct of the CITY.  

 
4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 

CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT 
as a result of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification 
arising under this Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay 
taxes on amounts received pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with 
applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

 
4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the 

provisions of any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT 
expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY 
and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers.  

  

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions 
identical to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor 
or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT 
in the performance of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain 
such indemnity obligations from others as required herein, CONSULTANT 
agrees to be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY 
and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers from and against any and all claims and losses, costs or expenses for 
any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury to any property 
resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful 
acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person 
or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ 
fees incurred by counsel of CITY’s choice.  
 

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against 
CONSULTANT because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of 
any insurance policy or certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold 
harmless and indemnification provision shall apply regardless of whether or not 
any insurance policies are determined to be applicable to the claim, demand, 
damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

 
4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the 

duty to indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the 
termination or normal expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other 
rights or remedies which the CITY may have at law or in equity.   

 
V. 

TERMINATION 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 86 of 380



5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any 
time for convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of 
five (5) calendar days prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this 
Agreement.   Upon such termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be 
compensated only for those services  and tasks which have been performed by 
CONSULTANT up to the effective date of the termination.   CONSULTANT may 
not terminate this Agreement except for cause as provided under Section 5.2, 
below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, CITY may require 
CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data, as 
defined in Section 7.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared by 
CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT 
shall be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) 
calendar days of CITY’s written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this 
Agreement on the part of CITY pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement for 
convenience as provided under this Section. 

 
5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  
 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or 
task set forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly 
perform any such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this 
Agreement), an event of default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall 
occur.  For all Events of Default, the Party alleging an Event of Default 
shall give written notice to the defaulting Party (hereinafter referred to as a 
“Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i)  the nature of the Event of Default; 
(ii) the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a date by which the 
Event of Default shall be cured, which shall not be less than the applicable 
cure period set forth under Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C below or if a cure is 
not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to begin such 
cure and diligently prosecute such cure to completion.   The Event of 
Default shall constitute a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party 
fails to cure the Event of Default within the applicable cure period or any 
extended cure period allowed under this Agreement.   

 
B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the 

following time periods: 
 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default 
Notice for any failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or 
CITY’s employees or agents with any information and/or written 
reports, documentation or work product which CONSULTANT is 
obligated to provide to CITY  or CITY’s employees or agents under 
this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, 
CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to 
cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 87 of 380



commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event 
of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 3-day cure period.  
The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this 
Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds seven (7) calendar days from the end 
of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

 
ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default 

Notice for any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior 
to the expiration of the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may 
submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of 
Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has commenced 
efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure period.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this 
Section 5.2B.ii that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days from the end 
of the initial 14-day cure period. 

 
In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform 
any duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the 
failure to timely perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation, 
service or task), an Event of Default on the part of CONSULTANT shall 
include, but shall not be limited to the following:  (i) CONSULTANT’s 
refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks called for under 
the Scope of Services;  (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its 
obligations under this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is 
specified, within a reasonable time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its 
employees’ disregard  or violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, 
procedure or regulation;  (iv) the initiation of proceedings under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar legislation 
as relates to CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform or observe any covenant, 
condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement;  and/or (vii) CITY’s 
discovery that a statement representation or warranty by CONSULTANT 
relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous in any 
material respect. 

 
C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within 

forty-five (45) calendar days of  CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default 
Notice, unless the Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 
45-day cure period.   Prior to the expiration of the 45-day cure period, 
CITY may submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event of 
Default upon a showing that CITY has commenced its efforts to cure the 
Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured 
within the 45-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, an Event of 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 88 of 380



Default dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any undisputed sums to 
CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, above, shall be cured by 
CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s 
Default Notice to CITY. 

 
D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 

CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending 
CONSULTANT’s cure of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT 
written notice of CITY’s intent to suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 
(hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY may issue the Suspension 
Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of Default. Upon such 
suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those services 
and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No actual 
or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as 
provided herein. 

 
E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall 

constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  
No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, 
or otherwise.  

 
F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights 

and remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a 
limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise 
imposed or available by law. In addition to any other remedies available to 
CITY at law or under this Agreement in the event of any breach of this 
Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also pursue any 
one or more of the following remedies: 

 
i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately 

terminate this Agreement in whole or in part; 
 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the 
time of performance; 

 
iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the 

terms of the Agreement  to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s 
breach of the Agreement  or to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or 

remedy.  
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 89 of 380



CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and 
expenses that CITY incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the 
CITY’s exercise of its remedies under this Agreement.  

 
G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole 

remedy shall be the suspension  or termination of this Agreement and/or 
the recovery of any unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under 
this Agreement for completed services and tasks.   

 
5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement 

shall constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or 
other covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement 
contained in this Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily 
given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by 
custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  
 

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this 
Agreement pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its 
term or any extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section 
or provision contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination 
or normal expiration of this Agreement. 

 
VI. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All 

Documents and Data shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction 
or limitation upon their use or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this 
Agreement, the term “Documents and Data” means and includes all reports, 
analyses, correspondence, plans, drawings, designs, renderings, specifications, 
notes, summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, 
lists, data compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or 
assembled by or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement and fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not 
limited to Documents and Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or electronically.  
This Agreement creates, at no cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to copy, 
use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain  any and all copyrights, designs, and other 
intellectual property embodied in all Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall 
require all subcontractors and subconslutants working on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that 
CITY shall be granted the same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain 
Documents and Data prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or 
subconsultant as applies to Documents and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in 
the performance of this Agreement.  

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 90 of 380



6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information 
developed or received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this 
Agreement are deemed confidential and shall not be disclosed by 
CONSULTANT without prior written consent by CITY. CITY shall grant such 
consent if disclosure is legally required. Upon request, all CITY data shall be 
returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any 
publicity pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, 
television or radio production or other similar medium without the prior written 
consent of CITY. 

 
6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither 

CONSULTANT nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, 
or has an ownership interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court 
or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 
U.S.C., Section 3789 et seq. and the California False Claims Act, Government 
Code Section 12650 et seq.  

 
6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given 

to the respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as 
the respective Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

 
CONSULTANT:  CITY:  
[_REPLACE WITH Business Name of 
Consultant_] 
[_REPLACE WITH Business 
Address_] 
Attn: [_REPLACE WITH Name/Title of 
Consultant’s chief contact ___] 
Phone: [_REPLACE WITH Phone 
Number_] 
Fax:  [_REPLACE WITH Fax 
Number__] 
Email: [_If available, REPLACE WITH 
e-mail or simply delete_] 

 City of Cudahy 
[Insert Name of Department/Division] 
5220 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 
Attn:  [___Title of CITY Contact___] 
Phone:  [___REPLACE WITH Dept 
Phone__] 
Fax: [___REPLACE WITH Dept 
Fax___] 

 
Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or 
successfully transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or 
when mailed, forty-eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal 
Service, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable 
address.   

 
6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one 

another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is 
reasonably necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this 
Agreement. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 91 of 380



 
6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the 

Work required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the 
prior written approval of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation 
subcontracts with subconsultants), if any, shall contain a provision making them 
subject to all provisions stipulated in this Agreement, including provisions relating 
to insurance requirements and indemnification. 
 

6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right 
to employ other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon 
by CONSULTANT. 
 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains 
that it has not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this 
Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid 
nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, 
brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the 
award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, 
CITY shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term 
of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of 
his or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or 
obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 
 

6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every 
provision of this Agreement. 
 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and 
governed according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation 
between the Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles 
County Superior Court of the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law 
requires that all or part of any such litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, 
venue, without exception, shall be in the Central District of California located in 
the City of Los Angeles, California. 
 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other 
Party, either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with 
this Agreement, the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and 
recover from the losing Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of 
such action. 
 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the 
successors and assigns of the Parties. 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 92 of 380



6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT: There are no intended third party beneficiaries of 
any right or obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this 
Agreement inure exclusively to the Parties. 
 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall not be construed in 
favor of, or against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared 
this Agreement together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of 
their respective attorneys. 

 
6.15 SEVERABILITY: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or 

otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect.  
 

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of 
this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by 
both Parties, subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written 
amendments, modifications or supplements cannot be waived and any attempted 
waiver shall be void and invalid. 
 

6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are 
for convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, 
or describe the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 
 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits 
attached hereto, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.   
 

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the 
entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the 
matters addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or 
understandings, whether oral or written, or entered into between CITY and 
CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this Agreement.  No statements, 
representations or other agreements, whether oral or written, made by any Party 
which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No amendment, 
modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid and binding unless in 
writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.15, above. 
 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS:  .This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original 
counterparts each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or 
typewritten amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts 
shall be valid or binding unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with 
Section 6.16, above.  One fully executed original counterpart shall be delivered to 
CONSULTANT and the remaining two original counterparts shall be retained by 
CITY.  

 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 93 of 380



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed the day and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 
 
CITY OF CUDAHY: 
 
By:______________________________ 
       Henry Garcia, Interim City Manager 
 
Date:_____________________________ 
 
      
 
 

 [REPLACE WITH BUSINESS NAME OF 
CONSULTANT, E.G., ACME CORP., A 
CALIFORNIA CORPORATION ETC.]: 
 
By:______________________________ 
 
Name:____________________________ 
 
Title:_____________________________ 
 
Date:_____________________________ 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
By:______________________________  
        
Date:_____________________________ 
 
 

  
 

 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 94 of 380



APPENDIX C 
 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 
 

SUMMARY SHEET 
 

Firm Name:____________________________________________________________  
 
Firm Parent or Ownership: ________________________________________________  
 
Firm Address: __________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Firm Telephone Number: _____________________ Fax Number: _________________ 
 
Firm Email Address: _____________________________________________________  
 
Firm Website: __________________________________________________________ 
 
Number of years in existence: _____________________ 
 
Management Contact (person authorized to sign an agreement for the firm; and 
ultimately responsible for services required for this Request for Proposal: 
 
Name: _____________________________________ Title: ______________________  
 
Telephone Number: __________________________ Fax: ______________________  
 
Email: ________________________________________________________________  
 
Types of series provided by your firm: _______________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
______________________________________________________________________  
 
______________________________________________________________________  
          
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 95 of 380



APPENDIX D 
 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 
 

CERTIFICATION OF FIRM’S ACCEPTANCE OF CITY OF 
CUDAHY’S PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTAND 

PROPOSAL FOR MODIFICATION OF TERMS (if any) 
 
 
By signing this form below, the firm certifies that the attached Agreement in Appendix B 
is acceptable to the firm and will be signed upon selection of the firm to perform 
consulting services for the City of Cudahy, except for request for modification of the 
agreement (if any), as specifically described below (or listing modifications by number 
that refer to attached sheets if necessary). 
 
Name and Signature of Firm’s Management Representative authorized to sign an 
agreement: 
 
 
              
Name        Title 
 
 
              
Signature       Date 
 
 
Firm Name:              
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 96 of 380



APPENDIX E 
 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 
 

FALSE CLAIMS FORM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 97 of 380



 
CITY OF CUDAHY 

CITY HALL 
5220 SANTA ANA STREET 

CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA 90201 
FALSE CLAIMS/ 

FALSE CLAIMS ACT CERTIFICATION 
(PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES RFP) 

 
Proposer shall provide either the certification requested below or the information 
requested on the next page.  Failure to certify or provide the requested information 
may result in a determination that the Proposer is non-responsive and City may 
reject the proposal on this basis. Failure to fully and accurately provide the 
requested certification or information may result in a determination that the 
Proposer is not responsible and City may reject the proposal on this basis as 
well. “False Claims Act”, as used herein, is defined as either or both the Federal False 
Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. Sections 3729 et seq., and the California False Claims Act, 
Government Code Sections 12650 et seq. 

 
FALSE CLAIMS ACT CERTIFICATION 

 
If the Proposer has no False Claims Act violations as described above, complete the 
following: 
 
I,        , am the ______________________________ 
  (Print name of person responsible for submitting proposal) (Title with proposing entity) 
 
of________________________________________________(hereinafter, “Proposer”). 
 (Print Name of Proposing Entity) 

 
In submitting a proposal to the City of Cudahy, I, hereby certify that neither Proposer nor 
any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has an ownership 
interest in Proposer has been determined by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction 
to have violated the False Claims Act as defined above.  
 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
Executed this    day of    at ______________________________ 
   (month and year) (city and state) 

 

 
By   
  (Signature of Person Responsible for Submitting Proposal on behalf of Proposer) 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 98 of 380



FALSE CLAIMS ACT VIOLATIONS INFORMATION 
 
 

(1) Date of Determination of Violation: _      _____ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
(2) Identity of tribunal or court and case name or number, if any: _________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
(3) Government Contract or project involved: ________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
(4) Government agency involved: _________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
(5) Amount of fine imposed: ______________________________________________ 
 
(6)  Exculpatory Information: _______________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

DECLARATION 
 

I,         , the      _____ 
 (Print name of person responsible for submitting proposal)  (Title with proposing entity) 

 
of ________________________________________________(hereinafter, “Proposer”) 
 (Print Name of Proposing Entity) 

 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the above information is true and correct. 
 
Executed this    day of    at ______________________________ 
   (month and year) (city and state) 

 
by ___________________________________________________________________ 
 (Signature of Person Responsible for Submitting Proposal on behalf of Proposer) 

 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 

 
 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 99 of 380



APPENDIX F 
 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 
 

CIVIL LITIGATION HISTORY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 100 of 380



CITY OF CUDAHY 
CITY HALL 

5220 SANTA ANA STREET 
CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA 90201 

CIVIL LITIGATION HISTORY/ 
CIVIL LITIGATION CERTIFICATION 

(PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES RFP) 
 
Proposer shall provide either the certification requested below or information requested 
on the next page.  Failure to provide such certification or information may result in 
a determination that the Proposer is nonresponsive.  Failure to fully and 
accurately provide the requested certification or information may result in a 
determination that the Proposer is not responsible. For the five (5) years preceding 
the date of submittal of this Proposal, identify any civil litigation arising out of the 
performance of a procurement contract within the State of California in which any of the 
following was a named plaintiff or defendant in a lawsuit brought by or against the entity 
soliciting Proposals: the Proposer submitting the instant Proposal, including any person 
who is an officer of, or in a managing position with, or has an ownership interest in the 
entity submitting the Proposal.  Do not include litigation which is limited solely to 
enforcement of mechanics' liens or stop notices.  Provide on the following page labeled 
“Civil Litigation History Information:” (i) the name and court case identification number of 
each case, (ii) the jurisdiction in which it was filed, and (iii) the outcome of the litigation, 
e.g., whether the case is pending, a judgment was entered, a settlement was reached, 
or the case was dismissed. 
 

CIVIL LITIGATION CERTIFICATION 
 
If the Proposer has no civil litigation history to report as described above, 
complete the following:  
 
I,        , am the ______________________________ 
 (Print name of person responsible for submitting Proposal)  (Title with Proposing Entity) 

 
of _______________________________________________(hereinafter, “Proposer”). 
 (Print Name of Proposing Entity) 

 
In submitting a Proposal to the City of Cudahy for Project Management Services, I, 
hereby certify that neither Proposer nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing 
position with, or has an ownership interest in Proposer has been involved in civil 
litigation as described, above.  
 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
Executed this    day of    at    
  (month and year) (city and state) 

 
by  
 (Signature of Person Responsible for Submitting Proposal on behalf of Proposer) 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 101 of 380



CIVIL LITIGATION HISTORY INFORMATION 
 
 
(1) Name of Case: _____________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
(2) Court case identification number: _______________________________________ 
 
(3) Jurisdiction in which case was filed: _____________________________________ 
 
(4) Outcome of the case: ________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
(5) Name of Case: _____________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
(6)  Court case identification number: _______________________________________ 
 
(7) Jurisdiction in which case was filed: _____________________________________ 
 
(8) Outcome of the case: ________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
DECLARATION 

 
I,        ____, the        
 (Print name of person responsible for submitting Proposal)   (Title with Proposing Entity) 

 
of               (hereinafter, “Proposer”)  
 (Print Name of Proposing Entity) 

 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the above information is true and correct. 
 
Executed this    day of    at ______________________________ 
                                                 (month and year) (city and state) 

 

by ___________________________________________________________________ 
  (Signature of Person Responsible for Submitting Proposal on behalf of Proposer)  

 
 

END OF DOCUMENT 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 102 of 380



Reviewers:
Aaron Hernandez- AH
Michael Allen - MA
Didier Murrillo- DM

Item 
No. ITEM

Total 
Posssible 

Points A.H. M.A. D.M. A.H. M.A. D.M. A.H. M.A. D.M.
1 Submittals and Format 10 10 10 10 9 5 10 10 10 10

2 Approach to Scope 15 15 13 15 14 12 15 15 15 15

3
Description of Distinguished 
features, skills and services 5 5 5 5 4 3 5 4 4 5

4 Firms past experience 10 10 10 10 8 7 7 9 8 8
5 Qualifications of firm 10 10 8 10 9 7 8 9 10 10
6 Workplan/Methodology 5 4.5 4 5 4.5 3 5 4.5 4 4

Proposed Staffing 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
References and Project 
Descriptions 10 10 9 10 8 4 8 9 4 8
Other Information 5 5 2 5 4.5 2 5 4 2 5
Hourly Rate/Fee Schedule 15 14 14 14 11 11 13 11 15 12
Insurance 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10

TOTAL POINTS Evaluation: 100 98.5 90 99 87 69 91 90.5 87 92
TOTAL POINTS Possible: 300

Pricing Point Scale Points GP Update Option 1 Total Vendor Name

Lowest Proposed Fees 3 $379,368 $108,720 $488,088 MIG

2 $580,965 $125,530 $706,495 Kimley Horn

Highest Proposed Fees 1 $804,527 $175,327 $979,854 FTS

Fee Score Final
1 MIG 287.50 3.00 290.50
3 Kimley Horn 247.00 2.00 249.00
2 FTS 269.50 1.00 270.50

RANK

FTS

287.50 247.00 269.50

General Plan Update RFP Review

MIG Kimley Horn

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 103 of 380



 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

Date:  May 19, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Didier Murillo, Planning Technician  

Subject: Overview of General Plans in California and of the Cudahy General Plan 
Update Project.  

 
 

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide an overview of the role, content and adoption 
process for general plans in California in general, and to provide some background on the 
project to update the Cudahy General Plan in particular.   

 
ROLE OF THE GENERAL PLAN: 

In California, a “general plan” is a document that conveys a vision of a community’s future, 
and establishes a comprehensive set of goals, objectives and policies intended to achieve that 
vision over the time-horizon of the plan, usually twenty-five to thirty-years. A general plan is 
expected to reflect the general will of the people in a community, and thus it provides core 
guidance on the myriad of decisions made over time by the city council, the commissions, and 
the staff concerning the physical use and development of the city’s built and natural 
environment.  
 
General Plans also serve a legal purpose in providing the baseline rationale and justification 
for adoption of municipal code zoning, subdivisions and other development regulations, 
including “specific plans,” that implement the general plan’s goals, objectives and policies. 
Adherence of these various regulations and plans, as they are adopted and amended over 
time, to the principles of the general plan promotes consistency in governing the private 
sector in an equitable, understandable and predictable manner. By state law, the adoption of 
all ordinances governing development, as well as all individual development projects 
requiring planning commission or city council approval, must be found to be consistent with 
the general plan in order to be approved.  

 
 
 

         

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 104 of 380



CONTENT OF THE GENERAL PLAN: 

Per state law, all cities are required to “adopt a comprehensive, long-term general plan for 
the physical development” of the city (Gov’t. Code Sec. 65300). General plans must contain 
narrative text with maps and diagrams that set forth the community’s planning policies 
concerning its future development.  
 
More specifically, the general plan must provide such goals, objectives and policies for each of 
the seven key planning topics, referred to as “elements” of the general plan. These seven 
“mandatory” elements are: 
 

1) The land use element, which designates the planned locations, distribution and 
characteristics of land uses in the community including a range of residential, 
commercial, industrial, institutional, and other uses; 

2) The circulation element, which contains policies considering all modes of transport 
to provide for functional mobility in the community in a manner that is integrated 
with the land uses element;  

3) The housing element, which provides policies and programs to address the identified 
housing needs of all economic sectors of the community;  

4) The open space element, which provides policies for the optimal use, preservation 
and, if warranted, augmentation of open space, parks and recreational facilities in 
the community;  

5) The conservation element, which provides for the sustainability, development and 
use of natural resources in the community;  

6) The noise element, which provides policies on noise level standards throughout the 
community, sources of unwarranted noise and measures to mitigate noise 
nuisances; and  

7) The safety element, which addresses protection of the community from risks of 
natural hazards including earthquakes, fire and flood, and provides policies 
concerning public safety service and emergency response capabilities.  

 
An important principle required of general plan elements per state law is that they all be 
internally consistent with each other; that is, no element contains goals, policies, objectives 
or policies that would be inconsistent or in conflict with the goals, objectives and policies of 
any other elements. Moreover, inconsistencies in a city’s general plan, such as the land use 
element not providing sufficient land with development potential to accommodate the 
housing element’s determination of the community’s future housing needs, can expose the 
city to liability form a legal challenge to any city planning decision on a development project 
by proponents or opponents of the project.  
 
However, state law also allows municipalities to adopt additional “voluntary” elements for 
their general plan to address other planning issues that may be of particular concern to a 
community. Examples of such issues include historic preservation, urban design, sustainable 
development, air quality and climate change, health and wellness, and others. Such voluntary 
elements, once adopted, have equal status with all other elements, and must be consistent 
with all other elements.  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 105 of 380



 
Moreover, preparation of a general plan update will also generally entail an analysis of the 
community’s existing infrastructure and “carrying capacity” constraints with respect to 
accommodating potential new developments, including streets and public transport, water, 
sewer, drainage, energy, and other utilities, air quality indicators and greenhouse gas 
emission levels, fiscal constraints on city services, and other background baselines analyses. 
These technical analyses are useful in informing the goals formulation process as it proceeds, 
and they are generally attached to the final general plan documents as “technical 
appendices.” 
 
It is important to note that while state requires general plans to address the basic community 
planning issues posed by each of the mandatory elements, general plans are local policy 
documents, and a community may exercise substantial latitude and creativity in formatting its 
general plan in a manner that is tailored to the community. 

 
GENERAL PLAN FORMATION AND UPDATES: 

 
Municipalities in California are required by state law to involve the public in preparation or 
updating of the general plan (G.C. 65361) and to adopt or update a general plan through a 
process that provides adequately for public notice and participation with at least two public 
hearings, one by planning commission and one by city council (G.C. 65353, 65355). However, 
most cities in California structure the general plan formation or updating process to 
encourage and actually achieve meaningful public input and participation at the outset of the 
process rather than at the end during public hearings.  
 
Such public participation is important so that the adopted general plan legitimately reflects 
the community’s perspective on planning issues. Effort by a city to achieve such participation 
may include a series of public workshops meetings at the outset of the process, a survey of all 
community residents, appointment of residents and other stakeholders to a general plan 
advisory committee and one or more study session by the planning commission. Other 
creative outreach measures might include the use of a city’s newsletter, social media, 
interactive website pages, visualization imaging programs and other applications of 
technology to engage the interest and participation of community members.  
 
An important part of the general plan formation or update process is the environmental 
review of the proposed plan as required per the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
This entails an assessment of potential environmental impacts of the goals, objectives and 
policies of all elements of the plan, including identification of any mitigation measures that 
may be necessary to address potential impacts. Given the scope of planning and 
environmental issues addressed in an update of a general plan, this assessment often entails 
preparation of an environmental impact report, which may then serve as a baseline 
environmental assessment tool for other projects subsequent to adoption of the general 
plan.  
A comprehensive update of all of most of a community’s general plan elements involving 
functional public outreach and environmental review entail a major commitment by a city as 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 106 of 380



this process usually takes one to two years to complete, and usually requires a budget in the 
hundreds of thousands of dollars. However, a well though-out general plan is expected to 
provide benefits to a community that far outweigh the investment costs; benefits such as 
preserving and augmenting the community’s infrastructure, natural and cultural resources, 
amenities and character, economic viability, property values and quality of life.  
 
Since the extensive time and effort required to prepare and process a general plan update is 
beyond the time constraints of existing staff, most cities will contract with an experienced 
planning consulting firm to work with community members, staff, the planning commission 
and the city council in formulating a general plan update that will meet statutory and legal 
requirements in a way that accomplishes the community’s vision.       

 
UPDATE OF THE CUDAHY GENERAL PLAN 

On October 17, 2014, the City Council approved Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-2015 which included a 
total of $150,000 to commence the General Plan Update. The existing General Plan is severely 
outdated. The last time the City of Cudahy completed, adopted, and received certification of 
a comprehensive General Plan update was on May 26, 1992. A more recent update of the 
General Plan was completed on September 15, 2010; however, the update was not submitted 
to or certified by the State of California.  Much has changed since then, and it is necessary to 
plan for the community’s development for the next thirty years through an update of the 
general plan at this time.  

 

To this end, on March 20, 2015, the City released a Request for Proposals to prepare The 
Cudahy General Plan Update. On April 24, 2015, the City received three proposals to prepare 
The Cudahy General Plan Update from: Freedman Tung + Sasaki for $804,527; Kimley-Horn 
$580,965; MIG|Hogle-Ireland $379,368. The staff review committee (i.e., Michael Allen, 
Community Development Director; Assistant City Engineer, Aaron Hernandez-Torres; and 
Didier Murillo, Planning Technician) completed the review of the three proposals on May 8, 
2015. The scope of work entails the update of all mandated elements except the housing 
element update which was adopted on January 7, 2014, covering the period of October 15, 
2013 through October 15, 2021). The scope of work also entails extensive public participation 
including workshops, a community-wide survey and other efforts. The process is expected to 
take at least one – two years to complete.  

 
CONCLUSION  

The envisioned comprehensive update of the Cudahy general plan will involve a major 
commitment on the part of the City organization and the community to plan for the 
development of the community over the next thirty years. As outlined above, it is expected 
that a carefully formulated general plan update will guide that development in a manner that 
will preserve augment the community’s infrastructure, protect its natural and cultural 
resources, preserve its amenities and character, sustain economic viability, protect property 
values and enhance the quality of life in the community, among other benefits.   

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 107 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 108 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 109 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 110 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 111 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 112 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 113 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 114 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 115 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 116 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 117 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 118 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 119 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 120 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 121 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 122 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 123 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 124 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 125 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 126 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 127 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 128 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 129 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 130 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 131 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 132 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 133 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 134 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 135 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 136 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 137 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 138 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 139 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 140 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 141 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 142 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 143 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 144 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 145 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 146 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 147 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 148 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 149 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 150 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 151 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 152 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 153 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 154 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 155 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 156 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 157 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 158 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 159 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 160 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 161 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 162 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 163 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 164 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 165 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 166 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 167 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 168 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 169 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 170 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 171 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 172 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 173 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 174 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 175 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 176 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 177 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 178 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 179 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 180 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 181 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 182 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 183 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 184 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 185 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 186 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 187 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 188 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 189 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 190 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 191 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 192 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 193 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 194 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 195 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 196 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 197 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 198 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 199 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 200 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 201 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 202 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 203 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 204 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 205 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 206 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 207 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 208 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 209 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 210 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 211 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 212 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 213 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 214 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 215 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 216 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 217 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 218 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 219 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 220 of 380



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  July 27, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Jennifer Hernandez, Acting Human Resources Specialist 
   
Subject: Consideration to Approve Resolution No. 15-38, A Resolution of the City 

Council of the City of Cudahy Establishing the Compensation of Elected 
Officials within the City  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to approve Resolution No. 15-38, A Resolution of the City 
Council of the City of Cudahy establishing the compensation provisions for elected officials 
within the City.  
  
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On September 4, 1990, City Council approved Ordinance 422, providing for an increase 

in Councilmanic (sic) Salaries pursuant Government Code Sections 36516. 
 

2. On November 24, 2003, City Council adopted Resolution No. 03-35, increasing the 
employer’s contribution to an amount greater than that prescribed by Section 22825 of 
the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act, to a maximum of $1,200.00 per 
month for Management, City Officials, Miscellaneous Employees, and Retirees.   
 

3. On February 3, 2009, City Council approved Resolution No. 09-02, establishing the 
compensation of elected and appointed officials.  This Resolution provided for a 
contribution to health insurance not to exceed $770.00 per month for elected and 
appointed officials.   

 
4. On November 4, 2014, City Council approved Resolution No. 14-75, amending Section 2 

 

Item Number 

9B 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 221 of 380



and Section 3 of Resolution No. 09-02, which establishes rules for expense 
reimbursement to City Council Members and City Officers.   
 

5. On June 8, 2015, the City Council adopted a Fringe Benefit and Salary Plan for all 
employees and appointed officials. 

 
ANALYSIS 
As a result of outdated Resolutions, which establish compensation for City officials and 
staff, and with increasing public scrutiny over the past few years regarding the recognition 
and rewards for public employees, cities are making changes and have established new 
norms and best practices for developing policy that improves transparency.  
 
The City Council is requested to adopt a Resolution that would establish and approve the 
compensation of Elected Officials, separate from appointed officials and employees, and 
has been updated to reflect appropriate amendments.  
  
In accordance with Municipal Code Section 2.04.070 and California Government Code 
Section 36516, City Council adopts salaries and benefits for various employee groups by 
Resolution.  City Council adopted Resolution No. 15-20 defines the compensation and 
benefits for all employees and appointed officials.   The establishment of one 
comprehensive Fringe Benefit and Salary Plan document was enacted to improve efficiency 
and simplify the tracking process for any and all changes to employee salaries and benefits.  
The Plan includes Range Tables, and a comprehensive Salary Schedule for all City positions 
and employees.   
 
Subsequently, it is necessary to update the salary and fringe benefits for City Council, which 
is recommended to remain as a separate Resolution.  A review of current Resolution, No. 
09-02, found a few areas which require appropriate amendments.   The Analysis below 
describes by provision, the changes, if any, that are proposed for adoption by the City 
Council:  
 
1. Monthly Salary.   No changes are proposed to the monthly salary, which shall remain 

at $483.60 per month as set forth in Ordinance No. 422, the City’s Municipal Code 
Section 2.04.080, and consistent with the Government Code of the state of California. 
 

2. Monthly Automobile Expense Allowance.  No changes are proposed to the monthly 
automobile expense allowance, which shall remain at $375.00 per month.  
 

3. Reimbursement for City Business Related Expenditures.  No changes are proposed for 
the established reimbursement policy approved under Resolution No. 14-75, for City 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 222 of 380



business related expenditures.  
 

4. Health Insurance.  The City contracts with the Public Employees’ Retirement System, 
and previously elected to provide the benefits of the Public Employees’ Medical and 
Hospital Care Act.   Section 22825.6 of the Act provides that a local contracting agency 
shall fix the amount of the employer’s contribution.  Resolution No. 03-35 increased 
the amount necessary to pay the full cost of each employee or annuitant, including 
the enrollment of his/her family members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum 
of $1,200.00 per month for management, City Officials, Miscellaneous Employees and 
Retirees.  City Council subsequently adopted Resolution No. 09-02, which is contrary 
to the amount adopted and approved by the Council in Resolution No. 03-35, 
providing for a maximum of $1,200.00 per month.   

 
5. Dental Insurance.  No changes are proposed to the Dental Insurance coverage which 

shall remain at 100% coverage for the Elected Official and eligible dependents 
coverage.   
 

6. Vision Care Insurance.  No changes are proposed to the Dental Insurance coverage 
which shall remain at 100% coverage for the Elected Official and eligible dependents 
coverage.   

 
7. Retirement Plan.  No changes are proposed to the Elected Official’s participation in 

the City’s retirement plan, other than to reflect that such membership remains 
“optional” and may be elected by the Council Member upon election to office, rather 
than automatic enrollment, consistent with CalPERS rules.  
 
 

8. Annuitant Medical Benefits.  The City contracts with the Public Employees’ Retirement 
System, and previously elected to provide the benefits of the Public Employees’ 
Medical and Hospital Care Act.  Eligibility for annuitant benefits are governed by the 
Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act.    As described under Health 
Insurance above, Section 22825.6 of the Act provides that a local contracting agency 
shall fix the amount of the employer’s contribution.  The City participates in the “Equal 
Method” in which all employees and annuitants receive the same City contribution.  
Resolution No. 03-35 increased the amount necessary to pay the full cost of each 
employee or annuitant, including the enrollment of his/her family members, in a 
health benefits plan up to a maximum of $1,200.00 per month for Management, City 
Officials, Miscellaneous Employees and Retirees.   
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 223 of 380



CONCLUSION 
 

 The City Council is requested to adopt a Resolution that would establish and approve the 
compensation of Elected Officials, separate from appointed officials and employees, and 
which document has been updated to reflect appropriate amendments.   

 
Non-approval of Resolution No. 15-35, will result in the continuation of memorializing  
Council approved compensation schedules and plans in separate documents, staying true to 
past practices and moving away from new practices currently being utilized to improve 
transparency. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
There are no additional fiscal impacts to the General Fund.   
 
ATTACHMENTS  
A. Resolution No. 15-38  
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 224 of 380



RESOLUTION NO. 15-38 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY ESTABLISHING THE COMPENSATION OF 
CUDAHY CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS     

 WHEREAS, the salaries and compensation of officers and employees of 
the City shall be fixed and determined by resolution of the City Council in 
accordance with Municipal Code Section 2.04.070 and California Government 
Code section 36516; and  

 WHEREAS, Section 53232.2 of the Government Code provides that in 
order to reimburse Council members for expenses incurred in the performance 
of official duties, the City Council shall adopt a written policy, in a public 
meeting, specifying the types of occurrences that qualify a member of the 
legislative body to receive the “reimbursement of expenses relating to travel, 
meals, lodging, and other actual and necessary expenses”; and 

WHEREAS, the City has consolidated the compensation and benefit 
provisions for all Management, Miscellaneous, and Hourly employees as well 
as Appointed Officials under one comprehensive Fringe Benefits and Salary 
Plan document; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to maintain compensation and benefit 
provisions for City Council Members in a separate resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY 
DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Monthly Salary 

The City Council’s monthly salary shall be $483.60 per month, as set forth in 
Ordinance No. 422. 

SECTION 2: Monthly Automobile Expense Allowance 

The City Council finds that the conduct of its official responsibilities involves 
necessary and reasonable expenditures for the use of Council members’ 
personal automobiles, and as reimbursement for such use, hereby establishes 
a monthly automobile expense allowance of $375.00. 

SECTION 3: Reimbursement for City Business Related Expenditures 

City Council Members shall be reimbursed for their actual costs of registration 
for lodging for attending meetings or conferences on City Council business. To 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 225 of 380



be eligible for reimbursement, travel and lodging arrangements must have been 
made by the City. Council Members who make their own travel and lodging 
arrangements shall be responsible for whatever expenses they incur. 

To request the expense reimbursements described herein, City Council 
Members must submit expense reports documenting that the expenses comply 
with this policy. Such reports must be completed on a form provided by the City 
Clerk, submitted within a reasonable time, and accompanied by receipts 
substantiating the requested reimbursement amounts.  

SECTION 4: Health Insurance 

Council Members shall receive the City contribution towards coverage in the 
health insurance program available through the Public Employees’ Retirement 
System as provided under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care 
Act.  The City’s maximum contribution for City Council Members and eligible 
dependents shall be: 

$1200.00 per month  

 

SECTION 5: Dental Insurance 

Council Members shall receive the City contribution towards coverage in the 
dental insurance program provided by the City.  The City’s maximum 
contribution for City Council Members and eligible dependents shall be:  100% 
of plan cost. 

SECTION 6: Vision Care 

Council Members shall receive the City contribution towards coverage in the 
vision insurance program provided by the City.  The City’s maximum 
contribution for City Council Members and eligible dependents shall be:  100% 
of plan cost. 

SECTION 7: Retirement Plan  

Council Members may elect to participate in the Public Employees’ Retirement 
plan as adopted by the City Council, and if elected, shall be enrolled in the 
applicable plan in accordance with effective date of appointment to office.     

SECTION 8: Medical Benefits Upon Retirement 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 226 of 380



Upon retirement from the CalPERS System, and upon completion of 5 
continuous years of service with the City, Council Members shall receive up to 
a maximum contribution of $1,200 to pay the cost toward his/her enrollment, 
including the enrollment of his/her family members, in a health benefit plan  

SECTION 9: Prior Resolutions Superseded 

This Resolution shall supersede  previously adopted Resolutions, including 
Resolution Nos. 14-75 and 09-02, or orders of the City Council, pertaining to 
the subject matter hereof, to the extent that they conflict with this Resolution.   

SECTION 10: Effective Date   

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. The Mayor 
shall sign this Resolution and the City Clerk shall attest and certify to the 
passage and adoption thereof. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy at its special meeting on this 27th day of July, 2015 by the following 
vote. 

 

       
  Cristian Markovich  
  Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST:       

 

 

___________________________ 
Victor Ferrer        
Acting Deputy City Clerk     

  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 227 of 380



STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY    ) 
 
 

I, Victor Ferrer, Acting Deputy City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify 
that the foregoing Resolution No. 15-38 was passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Cudahy, signed by the Mayor and attested by the City 
Clerk at a regular meeting of said Council held on the 27th day of July, 2015, 
and that said Resolution was adopted by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:    
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
   
 
 
   
Victor Ferrer 
Acting Deputy City Clerk 

 

 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 228 of 380



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  July 27, 2015  

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members  

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director  
  By:  Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director  

Subject: Consideration to Adopt the Proposed Master Fee and Fine Schedule for Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2015-16 and Adopt Ordinance No. 650, by First Reading Amending 
Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) 3.40.040 to 3.40.060 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to: 
 
1. Review the proposed Master Fee and Fine Schedule for Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 

(Attachment A);  
 

2. Introduce Ordinance No. 650 by First Reading, amending Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) 
Chapter 3.40.040 pertaining to schedule of fees and service charges relating to Leisure 
and Cultural Services (recreation services and programs), and 3.40.050 & 3.40.060 
updating references to sections of the California Government Code; and 

 
3. Provide any direction to staff regarding the proposed fees in preparation for the public 

hearing and a scheduled second reading. 
  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. From 1960 to 2015, City Council has adopted various ordinances and resolutions over 

the years establishing and amending taxes, fees, and fines.  
 
2. On December 14, 1987, the City’s Planning and Development Fee Schedule was updated 

through Ordinance No. 376 in order to ascertain and recover costs reasonably 
associated with the preparation and enforcement of products and services related to 

 

Item Number 

10A 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 229 of 380



the submittal of an entitlement.    
 
 
3. On August 3, 1999, City Council adopted Resolution No. 99-34 increasing the rate 

charged for costs reasonably borne and necessary to provide services for building 
inspection and plan checking. 

 
4. On October 1, 2002, City Council adopted Resolution No. 02-36 establishing procedures 

for the release of impounded vehicles and for the imposition of an administrative fee 
charged upon the release of the impounded vehicle. 

 
5. On March 5, 2013, City Council adopted Ordinance No. 625 to adopt the Los Angeles 

County Building Code, the California Electrical Code, the California Plumbing Code, the 
California Mechanical Code and the California Residential Code, the California Green 
Building Standards Code and local amendments that have been made.  

 
6. On July 1, 2014, City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-03 to modify certain parking 

citation practices and related fees assessed by the City’s municipal officers and/or code 
enforcement officers. 

 
7. On August 5, 2014, City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-52 amending and modifying 

the schedule of facility use fees assessed to residents of the City of Cudahy and Non-
profits. 

 
8. On August 19, 2014, City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-54 revising the existing 

development application fees. 
 
9. On November 25, 2014, City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-77 adopting a City-Wide 

Pilot Program for Overnight On-Street Parking from January 1, 2015 to June 30, 2015. 
 
10. On June 22, 2015, City Council adopted Resolution No. 15-32 allowing the continuation 

of a City-wide pilot program to allow permitted overnight on-street parking in 
designated areas from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016. 

 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Cudahy currently imposes various service fees to recover the costs of providing certain 
services, development fees, business license and permit fees, and parking and administrative 
fines.  Staff has periodically brought forward resolutions to adopt new fees and fines and 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 230 of 380



revise existing fees and fines as needed.  This has resulted in the most recently adopted fees 
and fines being located in multiple City Council resolutions that have been adopted.  Starting 
with FY 2015-16, staff is consolidating all fees and fines for all programs and services City-
wide into a single Master Fee and Fine Schedule.  The intent is that this document will be 
updated as necessary and re-adopted annually with the budget.   
 
In addition to the format change, staff will review the current fees to determine where fees 
are not adequately recovering the cost of providing the service, as well as services that are 
currently being provided without fees.  As a result of this review, the City Manager will 
propose increases to existing fees and/or establishment of new fees in the following areas: 
planning application and processing fees; building plan check and permit fees; public works 
and engineering fees; and parks and recreation fees.   
 
The proposed changes to Chapter 3.40.040 would allow the City to recover costs reasonably 
borne up to 80% relating to recreation services and programs.  The costs of recreational 
services and programs consists of staff time (direct and indirect), facility maintenance, 
trophies, awards, uniforms, umpires, instructors, as well as costs associated with keeping City 
staff trained on current practices. Fees relating to field usage, library building space, bus costs 
and excursion will remain at 100% of costs to be recovered.  
 
The percentage of costs reasonably borne to be recovered in Chapter 3.40.040 for 
Community Development Services, Public Safety Services, Utility and Enterprise Services, 
Maintenance Services, and Administrative Services and Finance will continued to be 
recovered at up to 100%.   
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Adoption of Ordinance 650 and approval of the Master Fee and Fine Schedule would allow 
the City to recover the costs of providing various services, programs, and use of City facilities.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The proposed recovery of 80%-100% of costs reasonably borne of the recreational 
department could impact the City budget from a low cost recovery of $80,000 to a potential 
$320,000 in cost recovery from fees related to sports, classes, special events, fitness center, 
other programs/events that include recovery of administrative costs not directly associated 
with specific programs or events. Cost recovery for departments other than recreation will 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 231 of 380



only have a fiscal impact when those fees are revised. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Master Fee and Fine Schedule – Fiscal Year 2016-16 
B. Proposed Ordinance 650 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 232 of 380



 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Cudahy 
Master Fee and Fine Schedule 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 
 

 
 
 

July 27, 2015 

ATTACHMENT A 

DRAFT 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 233 of 380



City of Temple City 

Master Fee and Fine Schedule 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 

 

Table of Contents 

 

 
A. Animal Control Fees .................................................................................................................................... 1 

 
B. Building Plan Check, Permit & Processing Fees and Development Fees .................................................... 2 

 
C. Business License and Permit 

Fees…………………………………………………………………………………........................................................................3 
 

D. Parking Permit Fees .................................................................................................................................... 7 
 

E. Planning Processing Fees ............................................................................................................................ 8 
 

F. Public Safety Fees ....................................................................................................................................... 9 
 

G. Public Works and Engineering Fees .......................................................................................................... 10 
 

H. Facilities and Usage Fees .......................................................................................................................... 11 
 

I. Recreation Program Fees .......................................................................................................................... 12 
 

J. Vehicle and Parking Violations.................................................................................................................. 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 234 of 380



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 

A Building Permits and Plan Checking Fees 

B Other Fees 

C Other Fees  

D Electrical Permit Fees 

E Mechanical Permit Fees 

F Plumbing Permit Fees 

G Application for Parking Permit 

H Planning and Development 

I Grading Permit and Plan Checking Fees 

J Permit Fees 

K Issuance fee 

L Unit fees for Inspection Costs 

M Facilities Fees – Residents and non-residents 

N Yard Sales 

O Swap Meet 

P Fines for Specified Violation of the CMC

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 235 of 380



 

Animal Control Fees 

Description Fee Notes / Additional Requirements 
Altered Dog  $20.00 Standard licensing  
Altered Cat $5.00 Standard licensing 
Unaltered Dog  $60.00 Standard licensing 
Unaltered Cat $10.00 Standard licensing 
Senior-owned* Dog  $7.50 *Senior age is defined as 60 years. 

Standard licensing 
Delinquent Charge  Equal to amount of 

License 
Delinquency charge applies after 10 

days. 
Field Enforcement Fee  $40.00 Licensing initiated in the field 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 236 of 380



Building Plan Check, Permit & Processing Fees 
and Development Fees 

 

 

Description  Fee  Notes/ Additional Requirements  

Building Permits and Plan Checking Fees  See Exhibit A  Ordinance 625 & Resolution 99-34 

Other Fees  See Exhibit B Ordinance 625 & Resolution 99-34 

Other Fees - effective date 7-14-2014 See Exhibit C Ordinance 625 & Resolution 99-34 

Electrical Permit Fees - effective date  7-14-2015 See Exhibit D Ordinance 625 & Resolution 99-34 

Mechanical Permit Fees - effective 7-14-2014 See Exhibit E  Ordinance 625 & Resolution 99-34 

Plumbing Permit Fees - effective 7-14-2014 See Exhibit F  Ordinance 625 & Resolution 99-34 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 237 of 380



Business Licensing Fees 

• License fees, permit fees and taxes listed below are annual fees due payable when the business application is 
submitted and annually thereafter unless otherwise noted in the table.   
 

• Process fees listed below are one-time fees that are due payable when a business application is submitted.  Process 
fees are required for new businesses and for any change to an existing business that requires a new application to 
be submitted, including but not limited to moving to a different location or a change of ownership. 
 

• Other fees listed below are annual fees that are due payable when a business application is submitted and annually 
thereafter, unless otherwise noted.   

Description  Fee  Notes/ Additional Requirements  

Ambulance operator License - Per License  $10.00 Flat Rate   

Ambulance Vehicle License - Per New 
vehicle  

$70.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Ambulance Driver License - Per Vehicle 
(renew) 

$50.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Ambulance Driver License - Per Driver $10.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Ambulance Attendance - Per Attendant  $10.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Amusements, Bowling - Annual Fee $70.00 Flat Amount   

Amusements, Dance Hall - Annual Fee  $300.00 Flat Rate  

Amusement, Circus - Daily Fee  $200.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Amusement, Carnival - Daily Fee  $50.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Amusement, Theater - Annual Fee Range $100.00 Step Rate  
$150.00 Step Rate 
$150.00 Step Rate 

From 0 - 500 
From 501 - 15,000 
From 15,001 - 99,999,999 

Auction Sales - Weekly Fee $200.00 Per Unit Rate  From Value 0 - 99,999,999 

Secondhand Dealer - Annual Fee  $70.00 Flat Rate  

Auto Wrecking - Annual Fee $300.00 Flat Rate  

Junk Dealers - Annual Fee  $300.00 Flat Rate  

Taxicab/Non-Emergency Operator - Annual 
Fee 

$60.00 Flat rate   

Taxicab/Non-Emergency Vehicles - Per 
Vehicle 

$24.00 Per Unite Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Taxi/Non-Emergency Driver License - Per 
Driver  

$10.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Private Patrolman's License - Annual Fee $10.00 Flat Rate   

Contractor-General - Annual Fee $200.00 Flat Rate   

Contractor - 6 Months General  $100.00 Flat Rate   

Contractor - Subcontractor - Annual Fee $100.00 Flat Rate   

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 238 of 380



Contractor - 3 Months Subcontractor  $25.00 Flat Rate   

Contractor - 6 Months Subcontractor  $50.00 Flat Rate   

Contractor - 9 Months Subcontractor  $75.00 Flat Rate   

Delivery Vehicle - Per Vehicle  $50.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Other Business  Based on Gross  
 

From                        To                            Flat Rate  
0                               9,000                      $50.00 
10,000                     49,000                    $90.00 
50,000                     74,999                    $120.00 
75,000                     99,000                    $140.00 
100,000                   199,999                 $184.00 
200,000                   299,999                 $264.00 
300,000                   399,999                 $336.00 
400,000                   499,999                 $400.00 
500,000                   599,999                 $456.00 
600,000                   699,999                 $504.00 
700,000                   799,999                 $544.00 
800,000                   899,999                 $576.00 
900,000                   999,999                 $600.00 
1,000,000                1,999,999             $740.00 
1,200,000                1,299,999             $880.00 
1,300,000                1,399,999             $1,020.00 
1,400,000                1,499,999             $1,160.00 
1,500,000                1,599,999             $1,300.00 
1,600,000                1,699,999             $1,440.00 
1,700,000                1,799,999             $1,580.00 
1,800,000                1,899,999             $1,720.00 
1,900,000                1,999,999             $1,860.00 
2,000,000                99,999,999           $2,000.00 

Motels and Hotels - Annual Fee  $30.00 Step Rate  
$40.00 Step Rate   
$50.00 Step Rate  

Room/Units 0 - 10  
Room/Units 11 - 15   
Room/Units 16 - 99,999,999 

Advertising Billboards - Per Structure  
Each Additional Structure   

$100.00 Step Rate  
$10.00 Per Unit Rate 

0 - 1 
2 - 99,999,999 

Advertising, Distributing handbills or 
merchandise, or both - Annual Fee 

$100.00 Flat Fee  Annually  

Advertising, Distributing handbills or 
merchandise, or both - Monthly Fee 

$50.00 Per Unite Rate From 0 – 99,999,999 

Advertising, Distributing handbills or 
merchandise, or both - Daily Fee 

$20.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 – 99,999,999 

Advertising Sound Truck Annual - Per 
Vehicle 

$200.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 – 99,999,999 

Advertising Sound Truck - Daily  $40.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Other Outside Business - Annual Fee  $50.00 Flat Rate    

Outside Contractor  $200.00 Flat Rate   

Patrol System - First Year $300.00 Flat Rate   

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 239 of 380



Patrol System - Renewal  $150.00 Flat Rate   

Trucks, Trucking, and U Hire - Annual Fee $70.00 Flat Rate   

Video Games - Annual Fee $150.00 Flat Rate Operating and maintenance of 
video games, per machine 

Video Games - Annual Fee $250.00 Flat Rate  Offering video games or displaying 
video games for public patronage, one or more 
machines per location 

Trailer Park - Per Space  $2.00 Per Unit Rate From 0 - 99,999,999 

Inspection Fee - Per Inspection $50.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Annual Inspection Fee  $120.00 Flat Rate   

Special Inspection Fee  $60.00 Flat Rate   

Solicitors Principal - Annual Fee $200.00 Flat Rate   

Solicitors  - Quarterly, Each Additional  $6.00 Per Unit Rate From 0 - 99,999,999 

Rental Property - Per Unit $30.00 Per Unit Rate From 0 - 99,999,999 

Rental Property - Other  $5.00 Flat Rate   

Exempt  $0.00  

Non Profit  $0.00  

Auto Emissions Testing   $50.00 Per Unit Rate From 0 - 99,999,999 

Home Occupation  $50.00 Flat Rate   

Handbills - Annual  $100.00 Flat Rate  

Handbills - Monthly  $50.00 Per Unit Rate From 0 - 99,999,999 

Handbills - Daily  $20.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Homeowners Association – 1st Year $75.00 Flat Rate   

Homeowners Association - Annual Renewal  $15.00 Flat Rate   

Sale of Goods Wheeled Vehicle - Annual 
Fee  

$50.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Wireless Digital Communication  $0.05 Per Unit Rate From 0 - 99,999,999 

AB1186P & AB1186R $1.00 Flat Rate   

Change of Address  $5.00 Flat Rate   

Adjustable  $0.00  

Administration Fee  $30.00 Flat Rate   

Change Business Name  $5.00 Flat Rate   

Interest  $1.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

Late Fee/Penalties  $1.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

License Fee  $0.00  

Non Sufficient Check  $35.00 Flat Rate   

Processing Fee $30.00 Flat Rate   

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 240 of 380



State Fee $1.00 Per Unit Rate  From 0 - 99,999,999 

 

  

  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 241 of 380



Parking Permit Fees 

City residents may request that a permit for overnight vehicle parking in accordance with the Pilot Program be issued for 
a specific vehicle and dwelling unit.  

Description Fee Notes/ Additional Requirements 

Resident Overnight Parking  $1/day for weekly, 
monthly, quarterly, and 

six month periods. 

Excludes holidays and street sweeping 
twice a week (Resolution 15-32) 

Guest Overnight Parking  $2/day Excludes holidays  
(Resolution 15-32) 

Application   See Exhibit G 
 

  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 242 of 380



Planning Processing Fees 

Description Fee Notes / Additional Requirements 
Planning and Development  Various/See Exhibit H Resolution No. 14-54 

 

  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 243 of 380



Public Safety Fees 

Description Fee Notes / Additional Requirements 
Vehicle impound release fee $200.00  Resolution No. 02-36 
Vehicle impound release fee related to DUI $350.00 Resolution No. 02-36 
Vehicle inspection for correctable violation $10.00  
Verification of disabled person placard for 
correctable violation 

$20.00  

 

  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 244 of 380



Public Works and Engineering Fees 

Description Fee Notes / Additional Requirements 
Grading Permit and Plan Checking Fees - 
9/16/02 

Various/See Exhibit I Ordinance 625 & Resolution 99-34 

Permit Fees See Exhibit J CMC - Various Sections 
Issuance fee $40 See Exhibit K Title 16 Highway 
Unit Fees for Inspection Costs See Exhibit L Title 16 Highway 
 

  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 245 of 380



Facility usage and other Fees 

Description Fee Notes / Additional 
Requirements 

Facilities Fees - Residents and non-residents See Exhibit M Resolution No. 14-52 
Yard Sales See Exhibit N CMC 20.64.080 
Swap Meet See Exhibit O  
 

  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 246 of 380



 

Parks and Recreation Program Fees  

The City Council desires the City Manager to set fees to recover 80% of the cost of the recreation department. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 247 of 380



Vehicle and Parking Violations  

Description Fee Notes / Additional 
Requirements 

Fines for Specified Violations of the CMC Multiple/See Exhibit P Resolution No. 14-03 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 248 of 380



Exhibit A 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 249 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 250 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 251 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 252 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 253 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 254 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 255 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 256 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 257 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 258 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 259 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 260 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 261 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 262 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 263 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 264 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 265 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 266 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 267 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 268 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 269 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 270 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 271 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 272 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 273 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 274 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 275 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 276 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 277 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 278 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 279 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 280 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 281 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 282 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 283 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 284 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 285 of 380



Exhibit B 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 286 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 287 of 380



Exhibit C 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 288 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 289 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 290 of 380



Exhibit D 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 291 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 292 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 293 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 294 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 295 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 296 of 380



Exhibit E 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 297 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 298 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 299 of 380



Exhibit F 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 300 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 301 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 302 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 303 of 380



Exhibit G 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 304 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 305 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 306 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 307 of 380



Exhibit H 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 308 of 380



Planning and Development Fee Schedule as of 

October 1, 2014, Per City Council Resolution No. 14‐54 

 

Minor Variance                    $ 630.00 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP)                 $ 2,660.00 

Variance (VAR)                    $ 2,660.00 

Zone Change                    $ 4,225.00 

Sign Permit                     $ 135.00 

 

Environmental Impact Report / Negative Declaration         $ 10,000.00 Deposit  

R‐1, R‐2, C‐1                     $ 75.00 

C‐M, M‐2, C‐3                     $ 150.00 

 

County Registrar                   $ 75.00 

Preliminary Project Review (SPR)               $ 630.00 

Subdivision Map Review (TTM)                 $ 4,225.00 

Tentative Map Consideration (TPM)               $ 4,225.00 

Admin Appeal                      $ 630.00 

Planning Commission / City Council Appeal             $ 1,295.00 

Rebuild Letter / Zoning Verification               $ 180.00 

Temporary Use Permit Admin                 $ 450.00 

Code Amendment                   $ 3,685.00  

Lot Line Adjustment                   $ 1,800.00 

Development Review Permit                 $ 3,325.00 

 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 309 of 380



Exhibit I 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 310 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 311 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 312 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 313 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 314 of 380



Exhibit J 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 315 of 380



Planning and Development Fee Schedule as of 

October 1, 2014, Per City Council Resolution No. 14‐54 

 

Minor Variance                    $ 630.00 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP)                 $ 2,660.00 

Variance (VAR)                    $ 2,660.00 

Zone Change                    $ 4,225.00 

Sign Permit                     $ 135.00 

 

Environmental Impact Report / Negative Declaration         $ 10,000.00 Deposit  

R‐1, R‐2, C‐1                     $ 75.00 

C‐M, M‐2, C‐3                     $ 150.00 

 

County Registrar                   $ 75.00 

Preliminary Project Review (SPR)               $ 630.00 

Subdivision Map Review (TTM)                 $ 4,225.00 

Tentative Map Consideration (TPM)               $ 4,225.00 

Admin Appeal                      $ 630.00 

Planning Commission / City Council Appeal             $ 1,295.00 

Rebuild Letter / Zoning Verification               $ 180.00 

Temporary Use Permit Admin                 $ 450.00 

Code Amendment                   $ 3,685.00  

Lot Line Adjustment                   $ 1,800.00 

Development Review Permit                 $ 3,325.00 

 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 316 of 380



Exhibit K 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 317 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 318 of 380



Exhibit L 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 319 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 320 of 380



Exhibit M 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 321 of 380



City of Cudahy    

Department of Parks and Recreation  

 

Effective January 7, 2014                                                               Facility Rental Fee schedule (Residents) 

 
Facility  

Capacity Base Deposit 
(Refundable) 

Insurance Kitchen Set-up &  
Tear-down 

Staff Time 
Per Hour Assembly Banquet 

 Clara St Park  

Turner Hall  400 220 $300.00 $200 $220 $50.00 $75.00 N/A 

MPR 1 70 40 N/A $100 $110 N/A N/A $15.00 

MPR 2 100 75 N/A $100 $110 N/A N/A $15.00 

Clara St Park (Expansion)  

Picnic Shelter 1 40 40 N/A $25 N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Picnic Shelter 2 20 20 N/A $25 

Picnic Shelter 3 20 20 N/A $25 

Cudahy Park  

Bedwell Hall  175 110 $100 $100 $150 $25 $50 N/A 

Lugo Park  

MPR 1 100 75 $10/hr 100 100 N/A N/A  

Picnic Shelter 4 40 40  $25     N/A    

 

Facility Rental Fee Schedule (Non-Residents)  

 
Facility  

Capacity Base Deposit 
(Refundable) 

Insurance Kitchen Set-up &  
Tear-down 

Staff Time 
Fee Assembly Banquet 

 Clara St Park  

Turner Hall  400 220 $900 $200 $220 $100 $150 $300 

MPR 1 70 40 $40/Hr 100 (75 Refund) $220 N/A N/A $15/Hr 

MPR 2 100 75 $40/Hr 100 (75 Refund) $220 N/A N/A $15/Hr 

Clara St Park (Expansion)  

Picnic Shelter 1 40 40 $75 N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

Picnic Shelter 2 20 20 $75 

Picnic Shelter 3 20 20 $75 

Cudahy Park  

Bedwell Hall  175 110 $695 N/A $220 N/A $75 $150.00 

Lugo Park  

MPR 1 100 75 $50/Hr $100 $220 NA NA $15/Hr 

Picnic Shelter 4 40 40 $75.00 N/A                                                  

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 322 of 380



Exhibit N 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 323 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 324 of 380



Exhibit O 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 325 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 326 of 380



Exhibit P 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 327 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 328 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 329 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 330 of 380



ORDINANCE NO. 650 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING SECTION 
3.40.040 (SCHEDULE OF FEES) TITLE 3 (REVENUE 
AND FINANCE) OF THE CUDAHY MUNICIPAL CODE 
RELATING TO THE CITY’S COST RECOVERY FOR 
SERVICES PROVIDED FOR LEISURE AND 
CULTURAL (RECREATIONAL) ACTIVITIES 

 
WHEREAS, Section 3.40.040 of the Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) sets the 

percentage of cost recovery for providing certain City of Cudahy (“City”) services, 
programs and products; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 3.40 has not been reviewed and updated since the 

December 14, 1987; and 
 
WHEREAS, the programs and services listed under Leisure and Cultural 

Services of Section 3.40.040 are outdated and do not reflect the current programs 
and services provided by the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to update Chapter 3.40 in order to allow for 

greater cost recovery for Leisure and Cultural Services (recreational services and 
programs) provided by the City and to correct certain Government Code citations to 
reflect current state law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to increase its percentage of costs recovered for 

providing recreational services and programs under 3.40.040 from the current 
estimated recovery of 0-100% to eighty percent (80%). 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  Code Amendment. The Leisure and Cultural Services 

percentages of costs “reasonably borne to be recovered,” as listed under Section 
3.40.040 of Chapter 3.40 of Title 3 of the Cudahy Municipal Code, are hereby 
deleted in order to allow a cost recovery for providing Leisure and Cultural Services 
(of eighty percent (80%) for programs, classes, and events,  and one hundred 
(100%) for usage of fields, Library space, bus costs and excursions 

 
Section 2.  Code Amendment. Pursuant to Section 1 above, the “Leisure 

and Cultural Services” portion of Section 3.40.040 of Chapter 3.40 of Title 3 of the 
Cudahy Municipal Code shall read as follows: 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 331 of 380



 Percentage of  
  Costs  

Regulation, Reasonably  
Products or Borne to Be Review 
Service Recovered Schedule 

 
Leisure and Cultural Services 
 

 
22. Adult Special Interest Classes/Programs  100%  Seasonal 
23. Youth Special Interest Classes  80%  Seasonal 
24. City Adult Sports Program  100%  Annual 
25. City Youth Sports Program  80%  Annual 
26. Private Adult Field Usage  100%  Annual 
27. After School Recreation Program  80%  Annual 
28. Special Community Events  80%  Annual 
29. Bus Excursion  100%  Annual 
30. Beach Bus  100%  Annual 
31. Senior Citizens Program  100%  Annual 
32. Library Building Space   100%  6 months prior to  
   contract expiration 
 

Section 3. Code Amendment. For the purpose of updating the Municipal 
Code to replace repealed statutes with current law, Section 3.40.050 of Chapter 
3.40 of Title 3 of the Cudahy Municipal Code is hereby amended to read:  

3.40.050 Public meeting. 

The city clerk shall cause notice to be provided as set out in Government 
Code Section 66016, and the city council shall receive at a public meeting oral and 
written presentations concerning the fees and charges proposed for those 
categories of fees and charges set out in Government Code Sections 66016 and 
66017.  Such notice, oral and written presentation receipt, and public meeting shall 
be provided by the city council prior to the city manager taking an action on any new 
or increased fees or charges for those categories set out in said Government Code 
sections 66016 and 66017.   

Section 4. Code Amendment. For the purpose of updating the Municipal 
Code to replace repealed statutes with current law, Section 3.40.060 of Chapter 
3.40 of Title 3 of the Cudahy Municipal Code is hereby amended to read:  

3.40.060 Provision of data. 

Pursuant to Section 66016 of the California Government Code, the city 
manager shall, at least 10 days prior to the required public meeting, make available 
to the public data indicating the cost or estimated cost required to provide the 
services set out in Government Code Sections 66016 and 66017.  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 332 of 380



Section  5. Severability.   Should any section, clause, or provision of this 
Ordinance be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unenforceable, the same shall not affect the validity of any other portion of this 
Ordinance and, to that end, the provisions of this Ordinance are severable. 

Section 6.  Inconsistency. Any provision of the Cudahy Municipal Code or 
appendices thereto inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance, to the extent of 
such inconsistencies and no further, is hereby repealed or modified to the extent 
necessary to implement the provisions of his Ordinance. 

Section  7. Effective Date.   This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days 
after its adoption pursuant to California Government Code section 36937. 

Section  8. Certification and Publication.  The City Clerk shall certify to the 
passage and adoption of this Ordinance and shall cause it to be posted according to 
law. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council 
of the City of Cudahy on this 10th day of August, 2015. 

 
 
 
       
Cristian Markovich, Mayor 
 
 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 333 of 380



CERTICATION 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY   ) 
 
 
I, Victor H. Ferrer, Deputy City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that 
Ordinance No. 650 was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy on the 27th day of July, 2015, and adopted and passed at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the City of Cudahy held on the 10th day of August, 2015, by the 
following vote: 
 
 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Victor H. Ferrer 
Acting Deputy City Clerk 
 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 334 of 380



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  July 27, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Didier Murillo, Planning Technician  

Subject: Consideration to Adopt Ordinance No. 648, by Second Reading Adding Cudahy 
Municipal Code (CMC) Chapter 20.110 Density Bonus  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to adopt Ordinance No. 648, by second reading amending 
Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) Title 20 (Zoning), to add Chapter 20.110 Density Bonus.   
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. In 1979, State Density Bonus law (found in Government Code Sections 65915-65918) was 

first enacted.  
 

2. On September 15, 2010, the City approved a General Plan update that included language 
pertaining to Density Bonus.  

 
3. On October 21, 2013, the Planning Commission gave a recommendation of approval to 

the City Council to adopt the 2013-2021 Housing Element Update by Resolution No. PC-
13-12. 

 
4. On January 7, 2014, City Council adopted the 2013-2021 Housing Element Update by 

Resolution No. 14-01, containing Density Bonus language.  
 

5. On June 15, 2015, Planning Commission approved Resolution PC-15-08 recommending 
that the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 648 amending Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) 
Title 20 (Zoning), to add Chapter 20.110 Density Bonus.   

 
6. On July 13, 2015, City Council approved first reading of Ordinance No. 648, amending 

Cudahy Municipal Code Title 20 (Zoning), to add Chapter 20.110 Density Bonus. 

         

Item Number 

11A 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 335 of 380



ANALYSIS 
 

As a result of the City’s 2013-2021 Housing Element Update, programs included Density 
Bonus language to facilitate for the development of affordable housing; address 
overcrowding; increase the number of available housing units; and facilitate senior citizen 
housing.  

 
The State Density Bonus law mandates that awards for increased residential density over the 
otherwise maximum density and favorable development standards to those housing 
development projects that set aside units as affordable and meet other specified criteria. 
Furthermore, State Density Bonus Law encourages the production of senior housing, child 
care facilities, along with affordable housing.   
 
The State Density Bonus law requires all cities and counties to adopt an ordinance that 
describes how the jurisdiction will implement existing State density bonus law. It should be 
noted that the density bonuses, incentives, and concessions outlined in State Density Bonus 
Law are applicable to eligible residential development projects regardless of whether or not 
there is an adopted local ordinance. The function of the local ordinance is to outline the 
process by which the local agency will process and review requests for density bonuses, 
and/or concessions. 
 
Concessions are available in cases where the applicant may have the ability to develop 
affordable units if the municipality allows certain exceptions to development standards. In its 
request, the applicant must provide the following information:  

 
a) A description of the proposed project; 
b) The basis on which the project qualifies for a density bonus;  
c) A site plan showing building footprints, and locations of set-aside units 
d) A description of the concessions requested.   
e) If the density bonus request is based on a land donation, the application shall identify 

the land to be transferred, and demonstrate that the applicable conditions of the state 
density bonus law are met; and  

f) Other relevant information required by the Community Development Director. 
 

For a full description of the information which must be provided by a developer/applicant in 
their request of a Density Bonus, please reference Attachment A.  
 
Currently, the Cudahy Municipal Code does not reflect the State Density Bonus law. Under 
State law, a local jurisdiction is required to adopt an ordinance specifying how it complies 
with this law. Density bonus applies to all zoning districts within the City that allow residential 
uses. A housing development project that satisfies the requirements of both State law and 
this chapter shall be eligible to receive a density bonus, concessions, and vehicular onsite 
parking standards in accordance with the State Density Bonus law. For a full description of: 
Concessions; Alternative Parking Standards; 2013-2021 Housing Element Update (assessment 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 336 of 380



of low income households); Density Bonus Greater than 35%; and Impacts to the Community, 
please reference (Attachment A).   
 
City Council approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 648 during the regular City Council 
meeting held on Monday, July 13, 2015. Staff did not receive any public comments after the 
first reading and is recommending that City Council adopt Ordinance No. 648 by second 
reading.  

 
 

CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT): 
 
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is a statute that requires state and local 
agencies to identify the significant environmental impacts of their actions and to avoid or 
mitigate those impacts, if feasible. 
 
CEQA applies to certain activities that affect the environment of state and local public 
agencies. A public agency must comply with CEQA when it undertakes an activity defined by 
CEQA as a "project." A project is an activity undertaken by a public agency or a private activity 
which must receive some discretionary approval (meaning that the agency has the authority 
to deny the requested permit or approval) from a government agency which may cause either 
a direct physical change or a reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the environment. 
 
Adoption and implementation of this ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code Regs. title 14) section 15061(b)(3) 
(certain to have no significant effect on the environment), because the ordinance implements 
State law and policy, and it is not reasonably foreseeable what projects might be proposed, so 
there can be no meaningful analysis of environmental impacts. (Id. § 15064(d).) Specific 
density bonus projects will each be subject to CEQA. 

 
 

CONCLUSION 
 

A Density Bonus facilitates the development of more housing units in the City. At this time 
staff cannot predict how many more units could be built in the foreseeable future. However, 
an increase in housing units throughout the City could result in more Planning Entitlements, 
Building Permits and Business license Permits; all of which would contribute positively to the 
City’s economic growth.  

 
If the City Council adopts Ordinance No. 648, amending Cudahy Municipal Code (CMC) Title 
20 (Zoning), to add Chapter 20.110 Density Bonus, the City will be in compliance with State 
Density Bonus law (found in Government Code Sections 65915-65918). If adopted by City 
Council, Ordinance No. 648 will take effect 30 days later.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 337 of 380



 
There is no fiscal impact associated with adoption of Ordinance No. 648. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Concessions, Alternative Parking Standards, 2013-2021 Housing Element Update 

(assessment of low income households), Density Bonus Greater than 35%, and Impacts 
to the Community 

B. Government Code Section 65915-65918 
C. Resolution PC-15-08 
D. Ordinance No. 648 

 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 338 of 380



Concessions are available in cases where the applicant may have the ability to develop 
affordable units if the municipality allows certain exceptions to development standards. In its 
request, the applicant must provide the following information:  
 

(a) A description of the proposed project, including the number of dwelling units, set-
aside units and density bonus units, and the calculations that explain the results;  
 

(b) The basis on which the project qualifies for a density bonus;  
 

(c) A site plan showing building footprints, locations of set-aside units, driveway and 
parking layout, and the location and floor area of any proposed child care facility;  

 
(d) A description of the concessions requested. In the case of proposed off-menu 
concessions, demonstrate that they are within the definition of a concession and accord 
with the state density bonus law. The director may require an independent financial 
review at the applicant’s expense to demonstrate the economic effect of the proposed 
concession on the project;  

 
Concessions: 
A project which qualifies for a Density Bonus may request concessions from the menu in 
Table A below: 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To qualify for concessions, an applicant must demonstrate that they need the exceptions 
from the City in order to make the project financially feasible in terms of providing the 
affordable units. This is usually documented through a financial report such as a pro forma, 
demonstrating that the concessions must be incorporated into the project for financial 
feasibility. This is also consistent with the new section 20.110.080 Application subsection (d) a 
description of the concessions requested. In the case of proposed off-menu concessions, 
demonstrate that they are within the definition of a concession and accord with the state 

Concession Modification of Standard 

Building Height Up to 10 feet 

Yard Up to 20 percent 

Common Open Space Up to 20 percent 

Private Open Space Up to 20 percent 

Fee (e.g. plan check, construction 
permit, or development impact) Reduced or deferred fee 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 339 of 380



density bonus law. The director may require an independent financial review at the applicant’s 
expense to demonstrate the economic effect of the proposed concession on the project.  
 
State Law indicates, that the local jurisdiction "shall grant the concession requested by the 
applicant," unless it makes a written finding that the concessions or incentives are: 

 
(1) Not consistent with State or Federal law; 
(2) Not required in order for the designated units to be affordable; 
(3) Has a "specific adverse impact" on health, safety or the physical environment. 

 
Preferred Concessions:  
The City has no discretion regarding the approval of density bonus units and has limited 
discretion in granting concessions. However, the City does have discretion regarding the 
process for reviewing density bonus requests. Some cities have identified concessions in their 
Density Bonus Ordinances that they would prefer to see as part of a project that is submitting 
under the state density bonus program.  
 
Alternative Parking Standards: 
Density bonus applicants are eligible to use the following alternative parking standards 
specified in the State statutes:  

 
- (1) onsite parking space for studio or one bedroom units; (2) spaces for two and three 

bedroom units; and 2.5 spaces for units with four or more bedrooms. Requesting these 
parking standards do not count as a concession, and do not require a pro forma. 

 
2013-2021 Housing Element Update: 
The City’s Housing Element Update was adopted January 7, 2014, and included an assessment 
of low-income households in the City as stated in the proceeding section. The City of Cudahy 
is a very low-income neighborhood. According to the 2010 Census data prepared by SCAG, of 
the City's 5,770 households in 2010, 2,921 households or 52.9% were considered low income. 
Of these, 1,029 households were overpaying for housing. Census data indicated that for 
owner-occupied housing units, the majority of the monthly mortgage payments in the city 
ranged in 2010 was $2,000 or more with the median being $1,812 per month. A household 
was considered to be overpaying for housing if more than 30% of their net “take-home” 
income was used for paying rent or mortgages. According to census figures for the year 2010, 
255 households (45.2% of the total owner-occupied units) living in owner-occupied units paid 
in excess of 30% of their monthly income towards the mortgage. According to the same 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 340 of 380



census figures, 2,624 renter households (56.3% of the total renter households) paid in excess 
of 30% of their monthly income towards the rent.  
 

It cannot be identified where these affordable housing units are located; the City may 
conclude that they include developments with 10 units per acre, as well as those with 14 units 
per acre (as allowed under the current zoning code). The current housing market and 
availability will continue to drive housing prices up within the City. However, new housing 
development is expected to meet some of the demand for affordable housing created by low-
income households in the area, as a function of economic and market forces. These projects 
can be developed with densities of 10 to 14 dwelling units per acre, as found in the City; 
however, increasing the existing allowable density in the MDR Zone to 15 and HDR Zone to 20 
dwelling units per acre will further facilitate meeting the demand for affordable housing. 
These increases will provide an additional 860 new housing units; going from the current 
5,770 to a potential 6,630 housing units. Additionally, increasing allowable density with a 
maximum of 20% density bonus; will encourage the redevelopment of existing properties at a 
higher density, resulting in additional housing stock. 
 
The Housing Element Update states that the City shall explore the feasibility of requiring 
affordable housing units within new housing developments. This may be promoted by density 
bonuses: 

 
The amount of density bonus to which the applicant is entitled shall vary according to the 
amount by which the percentage of affordable housing units exceeds the percentage 
established in subdivision (b).  

 
 Units Affordable to Lower Income 

Households 
Density Bonus Increase 

 
Low 

Income 
Households  

 
For each 1% increase above 10% 

 
 1.5% up to a max. of 

35% 
 

Very Low 
Income 

Households 

 
For each 1% increase above 5% 

 
2.5% to a max. of 35% 

 
 
 

All density calculations resulting in fractional units shall be rounded up to the next whole 
number. The granting of a density bonus shall not be interpreted, in and of itself, to require a 
general plan amendment, zoning change, or other discretionary approval. The density bonus 
shall not be included when determining the number of housing units that is equal to 5 or 10 
percent of the total. The density bonus shall apply. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 341 of 380



 
Density Bonus greater than 35%: 
A conditional use permit approved by both Planning Commission and City Council shall be 
required for any density bonus greater than 35 percent. The city has the authority but no 
obligation to grant a density bonus in excess of 35 percent. For requests under this section, 
the city may consider benefits of the project and other factors, including, without limitation: 
(i) additional affordable units; (ii) on-site amenities; (iii) services for residents; and (iv) the 
distance to neighborhood services. In addition to the findings required in Section 20.44.070 
(conditional use permit), the following findings must be met: 

 
(1) The project is consistent with the affordable housing provisions of the General Plan. 
(2) The project sets aside no less than the percentage and type of units required to earn a 
density bonus of 35 percent under the state density bonus law. 
(3) The applicant has adequately demonstrated that the project will not generate unmitigated 
significant noise, traffic, parking, or other impacts detrimental to surrounding properties or 
the general welfare. 

 
Impact to the Community: 
Adoption of Ordinance No. 648 will bring the City into compliance with State Density Bonus 
law. Additionally, by adopting Ordinance No. 648 the ordinance will help fulfill: 
 

- Housing Element Goal 5: The City of Cudahy will promote equal access and opportunity 
to housing regardless of race, religion, sex, marital status, ancestry, national origin, or 
color.  

 
- Housing Element Policy 5.8: The City of Cudahy will provide density bonuses for low-

income housing projects and senior citizen housing projects. 
 
Density Bonus Ordinance No. 648 will also help fulfill the following Housing Element 
Programs: 
 

- Inclusionary Housing Program; &  
- Housing for Extremely-Low Income Households Program.  

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 342 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 343 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 344 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 345 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 346 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 347 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 348 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 349 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 350 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 351 of 380



Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 352 of 380



RESOLUTION NO. PC-15-08 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF CUDAHY RECOMMENDING APPROVAL 
AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO 648 BY THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE CUDAHY 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD CHAPTER 20.110 TO TITLE 
20 (ZONING) TO PROVIDE AND REGULATE 
RESIDENTIAL DENSITY BONUSES. 
 

 

WHEREAS: the State Density Bonus Law (California Government Code sections 65915 
et seq.) encourages the production of affordable housing, senior housing, and child 
care facilities; and  

WHEREAS: the State Density Bonus Law mandates awards of increased residential 
density over the otherwise maximum density and favorable development standards 
to those housing development projects that set aside units as affordable and meet 
other specified criteria; and 

WHEREAS: all cities must adopt an ordinance that implements the State Density 
Bonus Law; and 

WHEREAS: the City’s General Plan Housing Element and Land Use Element describe 
the need for affordable housing, and density bonuses are expected to be an 
important planning tool to provide for the City’s existing and future housing needs; 
and 

WHEREAS: State law allows density increases greater than 35 percent, but only 
where “permitted by local ordinance”; and 

WHEREAS: the City seeks to enhance the public welfare and promote the goals and 
objectives of the General Plan by establishing incentives for the production of 
affordable housing, and establishing standards and findings for approval that accord 
with State law; and 

WHEREAS: on Monday, June 15 2015, following proper notice and public hearing, 
the City Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. PC-15-08, recommending that 
the City Council adopt an ordinance adding Chapter 20.110 to the Municipal Code 
regarding residential density bonuses; and 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 353 of 380



WHEREAS: the Cudahy Planning Commission has carefully considered all oral and 
written testimony offered at the duly noticed public hearing.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA DOES RECOMMEND THAT CITY COUNCIL ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Chapter 20.110 is hereby added to Title 20 (Zoning) of the 
Cudahy Municipal Code to read: 

Chapter 20.110 

RESIDENTIAL DENSITY BONUS 

 
Sec. 20.110.010. – Purpose and intent. 

This chapter implements the state density bonus law (California Government Code 
section 65915 et seq.), as may be amended, and is intended to provide incentives for 
the production of affordable housing, senior housing, and child care facilities. State 
law shall prevail over any conflicting provision of this chapter. 

Sec. 20.110.020. – Rules and procedures. 

The director may promulgate rules and procedures that are consistent with the 
provisions and intent of this chapter. 

Sec. 20.110.030. – Density bonus. 

(1) A housing development project that satisfies the requirements of both state law 
and this chapter shall be eligible to receive a density bonus, concessions, and 
vehicular onsite parking standards in accordance with the state density bonus law. 

(2) The definitions found in the state density bonus law shall apply to the terms 
contained herein.  

“Concession” shall have the same meaning as “concession or incentive.” 

“Set-aside unit” or “affordable unit” means a dwelling unit restricted pursuant to this 
chapter to qualify the project for a density bonus. 

Sec. 20.110.040. – Fractional units. 

In determining the maximum residential density allowed under the zoning code for the 
purpose of this chapter, any fraction of a unit shall not be counted. In calculating 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 354 of 380



density bonuses and set-aside units, fractions shall be rounded up to the next whole 
number. 

Sec. 20.110.050. – Menu of concessions. 

A project that qualifies under this chapter may request concessions from the menu in 
Table A. 

Table A 

Concession Modification of 
Standard 

Building Height Up to 10 feet 

Yard Up to 20 percent 

Common Open Space Up to 20 percent 

Private Open Space Up to 20 percent 

Fee (e.g. plan check, construction 
permit, or development impact) Reduced or deferred fee 

 

Sec. 20.110.060. – Off-menu concessions. 

The city or applicant may propose concessions that result in identifiable, financially 
sufficient, and actual cost reductions, which proposal shall be considered and 
approved or denied by the Planning Commission, supported by written findings in 
accordance with the state density bonus law. The city may, at its discretion, require 
the applicant to demonstrate that the proposed concession or other waiver of a 
development standard is needed to make the affordable units economically feasible. 

 

Sec. 20.110.070. – Density bonus greater than 35 percent. 

A conditional use permit approved by both the planning commission and city council 
shall be required for any density bonus greater than 35 percent. The city has the 
authority but no obligation to grant a density bonus in excess of 35 percent. For 
requests under this section, the city may consider benefits of the project and other 
factors, including, without limitation: (i) additional affordable units; (ii) on-site 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 355 of 380



amenities; (iii) services for residents; and (iv) the distance to neighborhood services. 
In addition to the findings required in Section 20.44.070 (conditional use permit), the 
following findings must be met: 

(1) The project is consistent with the affordable housing provisions of the General Plan. 

(2) The project sets aside no less than the percentage and type of units required to 
earn a density bonus of 35 percent under the state density bonus law. 

(3) The applicant has adequately demonstrated that the project will not generate 
unmitigated significant noise, traffic, parking, or other impacts detrimental to 
surrounding properties or the general welfare. 

Sec. 20.110.080. – Application. 

The following information shall be included with the first application required for the 
housing development project: 

(a) A description of the proposed project, including the number of dwelling units, 
set-aside units and density bonus units, and the calculations that explain the 
results. 

(b) The basis on which the project qualifies for a density bonus. 

(c) A site plan showing building footprints, locations of set-aside units, driveway 
and parking layout, and the location and floor area of any proposed child 
care facility. 

(d) A description of the concessions requested. In the case of proposed off-
menu concessions, demonstrate that they are within the definition of a 
concession and accord with the state density bonus law. The director may 
require an independent financial review at the applicant’s expense to 
demonstrate the economic effect of the proposed concession on the project. 

(e) If the density bonus request is based on a land donation, the application 
shall identify the land to be transferred, and demonstrate that the applicable 
conditions of the state density bonus law are met. 

(f) Other relevant information required by the director. 

Sec. 20.110.090. – Decision and appeal. 

(1) A request for a density bonus pursuant to this chapter shall be reviewed as part 
of the first required housing development application and shall be considered and 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 356 of 380



acted upon by the decision-making body authorized to make a recommendation or 
approve the housing development. 

(2) A decision involving a density bonus shall be supported by written findings in 
accordance with the state density bonus law, including whether the project meets 
the qualifications for a density bonus. 

(3) Any decision regarding a density bonus may be appealed in the manner and 
within the time set forth in Chapter 20.20 – Appeals. 

Sec. 20.110.100. – Recorded agreement. 

(1) The execution of a density bonus housing agreement with the city in a form 
approved by the city attorney shall be a condition of the discretionary project 
approval or ministerial building permit. The agreement shall be a covenant that runs 
with the land and binds the owner and successors and assigns. The agreement shall 
be recorded prior to building permit issuance, or, in the case of a subdivision, prior to 
final map approval. 

(2) Provisions of the density bonus housing agreement may include, without 
limitation, the following: 

(a) The number of set-aside units, their floor area, number of bedrooms, 
location, and production schedule. 

(b) Ensure continued affordability of set-aside units for the requisite period. 

(c) Standard or index to establish maximum rent or sales price of affordable units. 

(d) Restrict rentals or sales of affordable units to persons and families of 
qualifying income levels and set forth the procedure to certify incomes. 

(e) Prohibit occupants from renting or subletting an affordable unit. 

(f) Control the resale of condominium set-aside units to provide for the 
recapture of any initial subsidy and any required equity-sharing payment 
to the city from the sale proceeds. 

(g) Specify requirements applicable to a child care facility, including floor area, 
percentage of patrons from qualifying income level families, and financial or 
other guarantee of continued operation for the mandated period. 

(h) Specify residency restrictions applicable to a senior citizen housing 
development or mobilehome park. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 357 of 380



(i) Require compliance with state law, this chapter, and all other applicable 
regulations. 

(j) Set forth monitoring and reporting procedures, penalties, and enforcement 
mechanisms, such as a deed of trust to secure performance of obligations. 

SECTION 2: In accordance with Municipal Code section 20.16.100, the City 
Council finds that the amendment is consistent with the objectives of the zoning code 
and the City of Cudahy General Plan. The zoning code contemplates residential uses in 
various zones throughout the city consistent with the Land Use Map (Exhibit 2-2) of the 
General Plan. Density bonuses rely on and work in conjunction with residential zoning. 
The amendment is consistent with General Plan policies, which expressly contemplate 
density bonuses: “The City of Cudahy will provide density bonuses for low-income 
housing projects and senior citizen housing projects.” (Housing Element Policy 5.8.) 
Also, the General Plan identifies density bonuses among the Development Controls 
to implement its residential goals and policies. (Land Use Element section 2.3.3.) 

SECTION 3: Adoption and implementation of this ordinance is exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines (Cal. 
Code Regs. title 14) section 15061(b)(3) (certain to have no significant effect on the 
environment), because the ordinance implements State law and policy, and it is not 
reasonably foreseeable what projects might be proposed, so there can be no 
meaningful analysis of environmental impacts. (Id. § 15064(d).) Specific density 
bonus projects will each be subject to CEQA. 

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall supersede any inconsistent provision of the 
Municipal Code to the extent of such inconsistency and no further. 

SECTION 5: Should any provision of this ordinance be determined to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, all other provisions shall remain in full force and effect as 
approved.  

SECTION 6: This ordinance shall take effect 30 days after its passage 
pursuant to California Government Code section 36937.  

SECTION 7: The City Clerk shall attest to the adoption of this ordinance and 
shall cause the same to be published in the manner prescribed by law.  

SECTION 8: Based on the aforementioned, the City of Cudahy Planning 
Commission hereby recommends approval of Ordinance No. 648 by Resolution PC-
15-08.  

 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 358 of 380



ORDINANCE NO. 648 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE CUDAHY 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD CHAPTER 20.110 TO TITLE 
20 (ZONING) TO PROVIDE AND REGULATE 
RESIDENTIAL DENSITY BONUSES 
 
  

WHEREAS: the State Density Bonus Law (California Government Code sections 65915 
et seq.) encourages the production of affordable housing, senior housing, and child 
care facilities; and  

WHEREAS: the State Density Bonus Law mandates awards of increased residential 
density over the otherwise maximum density and favorable development standards 
to those housing development projects that set aside units as affordable and meet 
other specified criteria; and 

WHEREAS: all cities must adopt an ordinance that implements the State Density 
Bonus Law; and 

WHEREAS: the City’s General Plan Housing Element and Land Use Element describe 
the need for affordable housing, and density bonuses are expected to be an 
important planning tool to provide for the City’s existing and future housing needs; 
and 

WHEREAS: State law allows density increases greater than 35 percent, but only 
where “permitted by local ordinance”; and 

WHEREAS: the City seeks to enhance the public welfare and promote the goals and 
objectives of the General Plan by establishing incentives for the production of 
affordable housing, and establishing standards and findings for approval that accord 
with State law; and 

WHEREAS: on Monday, June 15 2015, following proper notice and public hearing, 
the City Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. PC-15-08, recommending that 
the City Council adopt an ordinance adding Chapter 20.110 to the Municipal Code 
regarding residential density bonuses; and 

WHEREAS: the City Council has considered evidence presented by the Planning 
Commission, City Staff and the public at a duly noticed public hearing. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 359 of 380



NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA 
DOES FIND AND ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: City Council held a first reading of Ordinance No. 648 and 
opened the public hearing on July 13, 2015 to consider the Density Bonus. All 
evidence, both written and oral, presented during said public hearing was considered 
by the City Council in making its determination, and  

A public hearing was held before City Council on of the City of Cudahy on July, 27 
2015, to consider the Density Bonus. All evidence, both written and oral, presented 
during the July 13, 2015, first reading, and public hearing was considered by the City 
Council in making its determination.  

SECTION 2: A record of the public hearing indicated that the City Council of 
the City of Cudahy hereby finds and determines as follows: Chapter 20.110 is hereby 
added to Title 20 (Zoning) of the Cudahy Municipal Code to read: 

Chapter 20.110 

RESIDENTIAL DENSITY BONUS 

 
Sec. 20.110.010. – Purpose and intent. 

This chapter implements the state density bonus law (California Government Code 
section 65915 et seq.), as may be amended, and is intended to provide incentives for 
the production of affordable housing, senior housing, and child care facilities. State 
law shall prevail over any conflicting provision of this chapter. 

Sec. 20.110.020. – Rules and procedures. 

The director may promulgate rules and procedures that are consistent with the 
provisions and intent of this chapter. 

Sec. 20.110.030. – Density bonus. 

(1) A housing development project that satisfies the requirements of both state law 
and this chapter shall be eligible to receive a density bonus, concessions, and 
vehicular onsite parking standards in accordance with the state density bonus law. 

(2) The definitions found in the state density bonus law shall apply to the terms 
contained herein.  

“Concession” shall have the same meaning as “concession or incentive.” 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 360 of 380



“Set-aside unit” or “affordable unit” means a dwelling unit restricted pursuant to this 
chapter to qualify the project for a density bonus. 

Sec. 20.110.040. – Fractional units. 

In determining the maximum residential density allowed under the zoning code for 
the purpose of this chapter, any fraction of a unit shall not be counted. In calculating 
density bonuses and set-aside units, fractions shall be rounded up to the next whole 
number. 

Sec. 20.110.050. – Menu of concessions. 

A project that qualifies under this chapter may request concessions from the menu in 
Table A. 

Table A 

Concession Modification of 
Standard 

Building Height Up to 10 feet 

Yard Up to 20 percent 

Common Open Space Up to 20 percent 

Private Open Space Up to 20 percent 

Fee (e.g. plan check, construction 
permit, or development impact) Reduced or deferred fee 

 

Sec. 20.110.060. – Off-menu concessions. 

The city or applicant may propose concessions that result in identifiable, financially 
sufficient, and actual cost reductions, which proposal shall be considered and 
approved or denied by the Planning Commission, supported by written findings in 
accordance with the state density bonus law. The city may, at its discretion, require 
the applicant to demonstrate that the proposed concession or other waiver of a 
development standard is needed to make the affordable units economically feasible. 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 361 of 380



Sec. 20.110.070. – Density bonus greater than 35 percent. 

A conditional use permit approved by both the planning commission and city council 
shall be required for any density bonus greater than 35 percent. The city has the 
authority but no obligation to grant a density bonus in excess of 35 percent. For 
requests under this section, the city may consider benefits of the project and other 
factors, including, without limitation: (i) additional affordable units; (ii) on-site 
amenities; (iii) services for residents; and (iv) the distance to neighborhood services. 
In addition to the findings required in Section 20.44.070 (conditional use permit), the 
following findings must be met: 

(1) The project is consistent with the affordable housing provisions of the General 
Plan. 

(2) The project sets aside no less than the percentage and type of units required to 
earn a density bonus of 35 percent under the state density bonus law. 

(3) The applicant has adequately demonstrated that the project will not generate 
unmitigated significant noise, traffic, parking, or other impacts detrimental to 
surrounding properties or the general welfare. 

Sec. 20.110.080. – Application. 

The following information shall be included with the first application required for the 
housing development project: 

(a) A description of the proposed project, including the number of dwelling units, 
set-aside units and density bonus units, and the calculations that explain the 
results. 

(b) The basis on which the project qualifies for a density bonus. 

(c) A site plan showing building footprints, locations of set-aside units, driveway 
and parking layout, and the location and floor area of any proposed child 
care facility. 

(d) A description of the concessions requested. In the case of proposed off-
menu concessions, demonstrate that they are within the definition of a 
concession and accord with the state density bonus law. The director may 
require an independent financial review at the applicant’s expense to 
demonstrate the economic effect of the proposed concession on the project. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 362 of 380



(e) If the density bonus request is based on a land donation, the application 
shall identify the land to be transferred, and demonstrate that the applicable 
conditions of the state density bonus law are met. 

(f) Other relevant information required by the director. 

Sec. 20.110.090. – Decision and appeal. 

(1) A request for a density bonus pursuant to this chapter shall be reviewed as part 
of the first required housing development application and shall be considered and 
acted upon by the decision-making body authorized to make a recommendation or 
approve the housing development. 

(2) A decision involving a density bonus shall be supported by written findings in 
accordance with the state density bonus law, including whether the project meets 
the qualifications for a density bonus. 

(3) Any decision regarding a density bonus may be appealed in the manner and 
within the time set forth in Chapter 20.20 – Appeals. 

Sec. 20.110.100. – Recorded agreement. 

(1) The execution of a density bonus housing agreement with the city in a form 
approved by the city attorney shall be a condition of the discretionary project 
approval or ministerial building permit. The agreement shall be a covenant that runs 
with the land and binds the owner and successors and assigns. The agreement shall 
be recorded prior to building permit issuance, or, in the case of a subdivision, prior to 
final map approval. 

(2) Provisions of the density bonus housing agreement may include, without 
limitation, the following: 

(a) The number of set-aside units, their floor area, number of bedrooms, 
location, and production schedule. 

(b) Ensure continued affordability of set-aside units for the requisite period. 

(c) Standard or index to establish maximum rent or sales price of affordable 
units. 

(d) Restrict rentals or sales of affordable units to persons and families of 
qualifying income levels and set forth the procedure to certify incomes. 

(e) Prohibit occupants from renting or subletting an affordable unit. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 363 of 380



(f) Control the resale of condominium set-aside units to provide for the 
recapture of any initial subsidy and any required equity-sharing payment to 
the city from the sale proceeds. 

(g) Specify requirements applicable to a child care facility, including floor area, 
percentage of patrons from qualifying income level families, and financial or 
other guarantee of continued operation for the mandated period. 

(h) Specify residency restrictions applicable to a senior citizen housing 
development or mobilehome park. 

(i) Require compliance with state law, this chapter, and all other applicable 
regulations. 

(j) Set forth monitoring and reporting procedures, penalties, and enforcement 
mechanisms, such as a deed of trust to secure performance of obligations. 

SECTION 2: In accordance with Municipal Code section 20.16.100, the City 
Council finds that the amendment is consistent with the objectives of the zoning code 
and the City of Cudahy General Plan. The zoning code contemplates residential uses 
in various zones throughout the city consistent with the Land Use Map (Exhibit 2-2) 
of the General Plan. Density bonuses rely on and work in conjunction with residential 
zoning. The amendment is consistent with General Plan policies, which expressly 
contemplate density bonuses: “The City of Cudahy will provide density bonuses for 
low-income housing projects and senior citizen housing projects.” (Housing Element 
Policy 5.8.) Also, the General Plan identifies density bonuses among the Development 
Controls to implement its residential goals and policies. (Land Use Element section 
2.3.3.) 

SECTION 3: Adoption and implementation of this ordinance is exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines (Cal. 
Code Regs. title 14) section 15061(b)(3) (certain to have no significant effect on the 
environment), because the ordinance implements State law and policy, and it is not 
reasonably foreseeable what projects might be proposed, so there can be no 
meaningful analysis of environmental impacts. (Id. § 15064(d).) Specific density 
bonus projects will each be subject to CEQA. 

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall supersede any inconsistent provision of the 
Municipal Code to the extent of such inconsistency and no further. 

SECTION 5: Should any provision of this ordinance be determined to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, all other provisions shall remain in full force and effect as 
approved.  

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 364 of 380



SECTION 6: This ordinance shall take effect 30 days after its passage 
pursuant to California Government Code section 36937.  

SECTION 7: The City Clerk shall attest to the adoption of this ordinance and 
shall cause the same to be published in the manner prescribed by law.  

SECTION 8: Based on the aforementioned, the City of Cudahy Planning 
Commission hereby recommends approval of Ordinance No. 648 by Resolution PC-
15-08.  

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 27th day of July, 2015. 

 

__________________________________ 
Cristian Markovich, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
 
Acting Deputy City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 365 of 380



CERTIFICATION 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA    )  
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES   ) SS 
CITY OF CUDAHY    ) 
 
 
I, Victor H. Ferrer, Deputy City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that 
Ordinance 648 was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy on the 13th day of July, 2015, and adopted and passed at a regular meeting 
of the City Council of the City of Cudahy held on the 27th day of July, 2015, by the 
following vote: 
 
 
AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

 
 
   
Victor H. Ferrer 
Acting Deputy City Clerk 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 366 of 380



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  July 27, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director       
  Isabel Birrueta, City Attorney 

Subject: Consideration to Adopt Ordinance No. 651, by First Reading Repealing Chapter 
2.54 of Title 2 of the Cudahy Municipal Code Concerning Campaign Ethics 
Regulations 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to adopt Ordinance No. 651, by first reading repealing Chapter 
2.54 of Title 2 of the Cudahy Municipal Code (“CMC”) concerning campaign ethics regulations. 
  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On July 15, 2014, at a regular City Council meeting Ordinance No. 629 was adopted, 

establishing City campaign ethics regulations. 
 

2. At the July 13, 2015, regular City Council meeting Mayor Markovich presented an item in 
the Council Discussion section to repeal the current campaign ordinance. The City Council 
voted to place an item repealing Chapter 2054 of Title 2 of the CMC concerning campaign 
ethics regulations on the July 27, 2015 City Council meeting agenda.   
 

 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The City Council requested that the City Attorney prepare an Ordinance for its consideration 
to repeal the Chapter 2.54 of Title 2 of the CMC regarding campaign ethics regulations to 
permit the City to conform to state laws governing ethics and conflict-of-interest issues 

 

Item Number 

11B 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 367 of 380



discussed therein.  Currently, State law provisions comprehensively address potential 
wrongdoing and enforcement for such unlawful acts. 
 
Public officials, elected and appointed, wield the power of government and serve as stewards 
of both the public’s resources and trust.  The Political Reform Act of 1974 (the “Act”) 
addresses the financial conflicts of public officials through disclosure of the official’s economic 
interest and prohibitions on participation in making decisions that the official knows or has 
reason to know will result in a material financial effect on one of the official’s economic 
interests.  Public officials are prohibited from making, participating in, or in any way 
attempting to use their official position to influence a governmental decision in which they 
know or have reason to know they have a financial interest (Gov. Code, § 87100).   
 
The California Attorney General, the Fair Political Practices Commission, and local district 
attorneys are empowered to enforce the Act through criminal sanctions, civil liability, civil 
penalties, and administrative sanctions (Gov. Code, §§ 83115-83214, 91000-91014). 
 
The proposed Ordinance would allow the City to utilize the regulatory scheme set forth in 
state law. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
If the City Council approves the proposed Ordinance for introduction and first reading, then 
the Ordinance would return to the City Council for potential adoption and second reading at 
the August 10, 2015 City Council meeting no sooner than five (5) calendar days after its 
introduction (Gov. Code, § 36934.) 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The City Council’s approval of the proposed Ordinance for first reading would have no 
significant financial impact. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Ordinance No. 651 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 368 of 380



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 651 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY REPEALING CHAPTER 2.54 OF TITLE 2 OF 
THE CUDAHY MUNICIPAL CODE  

 
WHEREAS, public officials, elected and appointed, wield the power of 

government and serve as stewards of both the public’s resources and trust; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act of 1974 (the “Act”) addresses the financial 

conflicts of public officials through disclosure of the official’s economic interest and 
prohibitions on participation in making decisions that the official knows or has reason to 
know will result in a material financial effect on one of the official’s economic interests; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, public officials are prohibited from making, participating in, or in any 

way attempting to use their official position to influence a governmental decision in 
which they know or have reason to know they have a financial interest (Gov. Code, § 
87100); and 

 
WHEREAS, the California Attorney General, the Fair Political Practices 

Commission, and local district attorneys are empowered to enforce the Act through 
criminal sanctions, civil liability, civil penalties, and administrative sanctions (Gov. Code, 
§§ 83115-83214, 91000-91014); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that state law provisions governing ethics and 

conflict-of-interest issues comprehensively address potential wrongdoing and 
enforcement for such unlawful acts. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY DOES 
HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  The recitals above are true and correct and incorporated herein by 
reference. 

 
Section 2.  Chapter 2.54 (Campaign Ethics Regulations) of Title 2 (Administration 

and Personnel) of the Cudahy Municipal Code is hereby repealed in its entirety. 
 

Section 3.  CEQA.  The City Council finds that this Ordinance is not subject to the 
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to section 15061(b)(3) of the 
State CEQA Guidelines, California Code of Regulations, title 14, chapter 3, because it 
can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that it will have a significant effect 
on the environment. 

 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 369 of 380



Section 4.  Inconsistent Provisions.  Any provision of the Cudahy Municipal Code 
or appendices thereto that conflicts with the provisions of this Ordinance, to the extent 
of such conflict and no further, is hereby repealed or modified to the extent necessary to 
affect the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 5.  Severability. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance, or any part thereof is for any reason held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance or 
any part thereof.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed each 
section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase thereof, 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 
sentence, clause or phrase would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional. 

 
Section 6.  Publication and Effective Date.  The Mayor shall sign and the City 

Clerk shall attest to the passage of this Ordinance.  The City Clerk shall cause the same 
to be published once in the official newspaper within fifteen (15) days after its adoption.  
This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after adoption. 

 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Cudahy on this 10th day of August, 2015. 
 
 
        
         
  Cristian Markovich, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      
 
 
       
Victor H. Ferrer 
Interim City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 370 of 380



CERTIFICATION 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY    ) 
 
 
I, Victor H. Ferrer, City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that the foregoing 
Ordinance No. 651 was introduced for a first reading on the 27th day of July, 2015 and 
approved for a second reading and adopted by said Council at its regular meeting held 
on the 10th day of August, 2015 by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:    
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
 
 
       
Victor H. Ferrer 
Interim City Clerk 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 371 of 380



 
 

Blank Page 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 372 of 380



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  July 27, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Isabel Birrueta, Assistant City Attorney 

Subject: Consideration to Adopt Ordinance No. 652, by First Reading Amending Title 3 
(Revenue and Finance) of the Cudahy Municipal Code by the Addition of 
Chapter 3.44 (Economic Development) Regarding the Formation of the 
Economic Development Ordinance    

   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 652 by first reading amending 
Title 3 of the Revenue and Finance section of the Cudahy Municipal Code (“CMC”) by adding 
Chapter 3.44 regarding the formation of the economic development ordinance.  
 
BACKGROUND 

 
1. On September 25, 1975, the City authorized the formation and operation of a 

community redevelopment agency within the territorial jurisdiction of the City pursuant 
to California state law. The former Cudahy Community Development 
Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency (“RDA”) undertook the redevelopment of 
certain areas of the City in reliance upon the provisions of state law.   

 
2. The State of California (“State”) ordered the RDA to be dissolved, no later than February 

1, 2012, under the provisions of ABX1 26 (Stats 2011-12, 1st Ex. Sess., Chapter 5), as 
amended by AB 1484 (Stats 2012, Chapter 26) and collectively the State legislation 
identified in this sentence is referred to herein as the “State Redevelopment Dissolution 
Law.”  The City as Successor Agency to the RDA (“Successor Agency”) has initiated the 
implementation of the State Redevelopment Dissolution Law.   

 
3. On March 17, 2011, the City formed the Cudahy Economic Development Corporation, a 

 

Item Number 

11C 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 373 of 380



non-profit public benefit corporation (hereinafter, “Corporation”), to assist the City and 
RDA in undertaking certain community redevelopment activities in the City.   

 
4. On April 1, 2011, the RDA and Corporation agreed for the Corporation to undertake 

development in the City and the RDA made a transfer of $20,978,178 in non-housing 
assets to the Corporation. 

 
5. On April 15, 2014, in a report entitled “Cudahy Redevelopment Agency Asset Transfer 

Review January 1, 2011, through January 31, 2012,” (“Transfer Report”) the Office of the 
State Controller (“State Controller”) found that the RDA transfer of $20,978,178 in non-
housing assets to the Corporation was improper pursuant to Health and Safety Code 
Section 34167.5 and ordered the Successor Agency to recover the redevelopment assets 
previously transferred to the Corporation.   

 
6. On July 12, 2014, the Interim City Manager met with the City Council to create a 

Strategic Plan Outline to establish the priorities for the City 
 
7. On March 17, 2015, the City Council moved forward with the first reading of an 

ordinance to form an Economic Development Commission. 
 
8. On April 21, 2015, the City Council held the second reading of an ordinance establishing 

an Economic Development Commission which review and make written 
recommendations to the City Council regarding economic development policies and 
programs. 

 
9. On February 3, 2015 and February 5, 3015, in accordance with the Transfer Report and 

the State Controller’s mandate, the governing bodies of the Corporation and Successor 
Agency adopted resolutions approving an agreement providing for the transfer of 
redevelopment assets previously transferred to the Corporation (“Asset Transfer 
Agreement”).   

 
10. On June 13, 2015, the City Manager met with the City Council to review the Strategic 

Plan Outline that the City Council had adopted into actionable items to carry out the 
direction / vision of the City Council.  The Strategic Plan Outline included plans for new 
revenue sources in future years to increase the revenue stream to the City’s General 
Fund. 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 374 of 380



ANALYSIS 
 
As part of the City Council’s direction under the past two strategic planning sessions, City staff 
is moving forward with the establishment of an ambitious but achievable multi-year 
economic development program.  However, in order to implement the various projects and 
activities in a post redevelopment dissolution era, the City needs to establish an Economic 
Development Ordinance that sets forth the powers and obligations authorizing the City to 
engage in and continue those economic development activities previously under the purview 
of the former Cudahy Community Development Commission.  As proposed the Economic 
Development Ordinance would authorize the City to enter into activities that include but are 
not limited to property acquisition, public and private property improvements, and financial 
assistance with public and private projects.   
 
City Council approval of the Economic Development Ordinance after a second reading on 
August 10, 2015 would enable the City / Successor Agency to move forward with the 
redevelopment of the 26 properties previously owned by the Cudahy Economic Development 
Corporation sooner rather than later. 
 
 CONCLUSION 
 
If the proposed Ordinance No. 652 is introduced and approved for a first reading, a second 
reading of the Ordinance will take place on August 10, 2015.  Moreover, City Council approval 
of Ordinance No. 652 would be very timely and critical as the City is attempting to take on the 
potential redevelopment of the 26 properties formerly owned by the Economic Development 
Corporation. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None.   
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Ordinance No.  652 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 375 of 380



ORDINANCE NO. 652 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA, 
AMENDING THE CUDAHY MUNICIPAL CODE 
TO ADD NEW CHAPTER 3.44 TO TITLE 3 
(REVENUE AND FINANCE) REGARDING 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the California Constitution and Government Code section 37100 et 
seq. enable cities to make and enforce ordinances and regulations not in conflict with 
State law; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to restate and clarify its powers with 
respect to economic development in the City as one element of an economic 
development strategy for the City to further the goals of the City’s General Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the use of City funds and resources is among the municipal tools 
available to help advance the public purpose of economic growth and development; 
and 

WHEREAS, economic development promotes the health, safety, and general 
welfare of residents and other persons in the City in areas that may include housing, 
commercial, dining and entertainment, cultural experience, and recreation; and 

WHEREAS, the Land Use Element of the City’s General Plan states the policies 
that the City will “work towards the expansion and diversification of the local 
economic base,” and “encourage developments that will increase the City’s tax base” 
for providing City services (Policies 7.1, 7.2). 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY, 
CALIFORNIA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Chapter 3.44 is hereby added to Title 3 (Revenue and 
Finance) of the Cudahy Municipal Code to read: 

 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 376 of 380



Chapter 3.44 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
3.44.010 – Purpose. 
3.44.020 – Authorized activities. 
 
 
Sec. 3.44.010. – Purpose. 

The City is authorized to undertake economic development activities, including, but 
not limited to, those set forth in this chapter, for the purpose of promoting the 
health, safety, general welfare, public convenience, and prosperity of the inhabitants 
of the city. 

Sec. 3.44.020. – Authorized activities. 

The city council or designee is authorized to perform the following activities in 
accordance with state law and this code: 

(1)  Promotion. Undertake the promotion of city’s natural, historic, and cultural 
resources, commercial and residential real estate value, housing options, recreation 
and entertainment options, retail and commercial opportunities, and other attractions 
that generate interest in the city via advertising, public outreach, special events, and 
other marketing. 

(2)  Business attraction and retention. Undertake a business attraction and retention 
program that may include assistance in the form of grants, loans, fee abatements 
and discounts, payments of insurance premiums, tax rebates, tax credits authorized 
under state or federal law, and other assistance to attract or retain commercial, 
mixed-use, industrial and other desired activity in the city. 

(3)  Infrastructure. Develop infrastructure that the city council deems will further the 
generation of economic growth and maintenance of a healthy business climate. 

(4)  Permit processes. Develop tools and technologies to improve and expedite 
permitting and approval processes for economic activities that bolster the local 
economy and provide broad public benefit through, for example, infrastructure, 
manufacturing, job creation, fiscal benefits, and visitor spending. 

(5)  Cultural resources. Preserve and protect historic structures, landmarks, heritage 
trees, and archaeological resources as provided by state law and this code. 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 377 of 380



(6)  Property acquisition. Purchase, lease, obtain option or other interest, receive by 
gift or grant, or otherwise acquire real or personal property. 

(7)  Disposal of real property. Dispose of surplus real and personal property to 
advance the purposes of this chapter. 

(8)  Site preparation. Provide for real property site preparation, including demolition, 
clearing, and environmental remediation, for public or private developments. 

(9)  Property improvement. Rehabilitate, maintain, build upon, or otherwise improve 
real property in anticipation of use, disposal or lease of the property. 

(10)  Funding. Seek and accept grants, agreements, and other financial assistance 
from public or private sources for the purpose of economic development. 

(11)  Bonding and debt. Issue bonds or other forms of debt in accordance with state 
law. 

(12)  Assessment districts. Allow for the establishment of community benefit or 
assessment districts, including business improvement districts. 

(13)  Joint powers agreements. Allow for joint powers agreements, and otherwise 
collaborate with other government agencies to develop and fund regional economic 
development. 

(14)  Affordable housing. Develop, or assist the development, of affordable housing, 
including mixed-use development and live-work projects. 

(15)  Economic development agency. Allow for the formation of an economic 
development agency to carry out economic development activities. 

(16)  Other activity. Take such other actions as the city council finds appropriate to 
encourage economic development. 

 

SECTION 3. Adoption and implementation of this ordinance is not subject 
to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because it is a statement of 
general policy, which is not a project under CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code Regs. title 
14) section 15378(b), and it is exempt pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 
15061(b)(3) (certain to have no significant effect on the environment), and there can 
be no meaningful analysis of environmental impacts because it is not reasonably 
foreseeable what projects might be proposed. (Id. § 15064(d).) 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 378 of 380



SECTION 5. Should any provision of this ordinance be determined to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, all other provisions shall remain in full force and effect as 
approved.  

SECTION 6. This ordinance shall take effect 30 days after its passage 
pursuant to California Government Code section 36937.  

SECTION 7. The City Clerk shall attest to the adoption of this ordinance 
and shall cause the same to be published in the manner prescribed by law.  

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of ______________, 2015. 

 

__________________________________ 
Cristian Markovich, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      

Victor H. Ferrer 
Acting Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Isabel Birrueta 
Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 379 of 380



CERTIFICATION 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  )  
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES) SS 
CITY OF CUDAHY  ) 
 
 
I, Victor H. Ferrer, Acting Deputy City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that 
Ordinance No. 652 was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Cudahy on the 27th day of July, 2015, and adopted and passed at a regular 
meeting of the City Council of the City of Cudahy held on the 10th day of August, 
2015, by the following vote: 
 
 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 
 
   

Victor H. Ferrer 
Acting Deputy City Clerk 

Agenda Packet 7-27-2015    Page 380 of 380




